
 

 
1 

Committee Administrator 
Sally Gabriel 

Tel:  01884 234229 
E-Mail: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk 

 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  Members of the public wishing to speak to a planning application 
are requested to contact the Committee Administrator before the meeting starts.  
 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
A MEETING of the PLANNING COMMITTEE will be held in the Phoenix Chamber, 
Phoenix House, Tiverton on Wednesday, 4 October 2017 at 2.15 pm 
 

The next ordinary meeting of the Committee will take place on Wednesday, 1 
November 2017 at 2.15 pm in the Phoenix Chamber, Phoenix House, 
Tiverton 

 
STEPHEN WALFORD 
Chief Executive 
26 September 2017 
 
Councillors: Mrs F J Colthorpe (Chairman), Mrs H Bainbridge, Mrs C Collis, R J Dolley, 
P J Heal, D J Knowles, F W Letch, B A Moore, R F Radford, J D Squire and R L Stanley 
 

A G E N D A 
 

MEMBERS ARE REMINDED OF THE NEED TO MAKE DECLARATIONS 
OF INTEREST PRIOR TO ANY DISCUSSION WHICH MAY TAKE PLACE 

 
1   APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS   

 
To receive any apologies for absence and notices of appointment of 
substitute. 
 

2   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

To receive any questions relating to items on the Agenda from members 
of the public and replies thereto. 
 
Note: A maximum of 30 minutes is allowed for this item. 
 

3   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 5 - 22) 
 

  To receive the minutes of the previous meeting (attached). 
 

4   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 

  To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make.   
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
2 

5   ENFORCEMENT LIST  (Pages 23 - 36) 
 
To consider the items contained in the Enforcement List. 
 

6   DEFERRALS FROM THE PLANS LIST   
 
To report any items appearing in the Plans List which have been 
deferred.  
 

7   THE PLANS LIST  (Pages 37 - 112) 
 
To consider the planning applications contained in the list. 
 

8   MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION  (Pages 113 - 116) 
 
List attached for consideration of major applications and potential site 
visits. 
 

9   APPLICATION 16/01830/FULL - SITING OF 1 MOBILE HOME, 2 
MOTOR HOMES AND A COMPOST WC AT OAK MEADOW, 
SILVERTON (Pages 117 - 134) 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Planning and Economic 
Regeneration regarding this application deferred from the previous 
meeting to enable a site visit by the Planning Working Group to take 
place. 
 

10   APPLICATION FOR A TREE PRESERVATION ORDER LAND AT 
NGR 306770/113041, CLAY LANE , UFFCULME (Pages 135 - 138) 
 
To receive a report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration regarding 
this application deferred from a previous meeting. 
 

11   PLANNING PERFORMANCE  (Pages 139 - 144) 
 
To consider a report of the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration providing the Committee with information on the 
performance of aspects of the planning function of the Council for 
quarter 1 for 2017/18. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
3 

The Human Rights Act 1998 came into force on 2nd October 2000.  It requires all public authorities 
to act in a way which is compatible with the European Convention on Human Rights.  The reports 
within this agenda have been prepared in light of the Council's obligations under the Act with 
regard to decisions to be informed by the principles of fair balance and non-discrimination. 

 
Anyone wishing to film part or all of the proceedings may do so unless the press and 
public are excluded for that part of the meeting or there is good reason not to do so, as 
directed by the Chairman. Any filming must be done as unobtrusively as possible from a 
single fixed position without the use of any additional lighting; focusing only on those 
actively participating in the meeting and having regard also to the wishes of any 
member of the public present who may not wish to be filmed. As a matter of courtesy, 
anyone wishing to film proceedings is asked to advise the Chairman or the Member 
Services Officer in attendance so that all those present may be made aware that is 
happening.  
 
Members of the public may also use other forms of social media to report on 
proceedings at this meeting. 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and listen to discussion. Lift 
access to the first floor of the building is available from the main ground floor entrance. 
Toilet facilities, with wheelchair access, are also available. There is time set aside at the 
beginning of the meeting to allow the public to ask questions. 
 
An induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone wearing a hearing aid or using 
a transmitter. If you require any further information, or 
 
If you would like a copy of the Agenda in another format (for example in large print) 
please contact Sally Gabriel on: 
Tel: 01884 234229 
Fax:  
E-Mail: sgabriel@middevon.gov.uk 
 
Public Wi-Fi is available in all meeting rooms. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 45 

MID DEVON DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
MINUTES of a MEETING of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held on 6 September 
2017 at 2.15 pm 
 
Present   
Councillors 
 

Mrs F J Colthorpe (Chairman) 
Mrs H Bainbridge, Mrs C Collis, R J Dolley, 
P J Heal, D J Knowles, F W Letch, 
B A Moore, J D Squire and C J Eginton 
 

Apologies  
Councillor(s) 
 

R F Radford and R L Stanley 
 

Also Present  
Councillor(s) 
 

Mrs A R Berry, R Evans and Mrs J Roach 
 

Present  
Officers:  
 

Jenny Clifford (Head of Planning, Economy 
and Regeneration), Simon Trafford (Area 
Team Leader), Joanna Williams 
(Enforcement Officer) and Sally Gabriel 
(Member Services Manager) 
 

 
 

47 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  
 
Apologies were received from Cllr R F Radford who was substituted by Cllr C J 
Eginton. 
 
Cllr R L Stanley sent his apologies for the meeting. 
 

48 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 
Mr Barry Warren, Chairman of Willand Parish Council, asked a series of questions in 
relation to item 7 on the agenda – outline for the erection of 30 dwellings on the 
Uffculme Straight. 
 
More than two years ago when it was apparent that the submission of the Local plan 
Review 2013 – 2033 was to be delayed Willand Parish Council questioned the 
potential effects of such a delay and particular emphasis was placed on the 5 year 
land supply. Councillor Chesterton assured us that officers were confident that there 
was a sufficient land supply and in any case there were some contingency sites 
available to increase the supply if needed. How did that information get to be so 
wrong? 
 
An Inspector found that there was not a deliverable 5 year land supply in Mid Devon 
when considering an appeal for one site next to the current applied for site. Could the 
Inspector have taken a different view if the original application were for the full 90 
houses – it is the same field and he did condition the development to a maximum of 
60 houses? We now have a number of applications in the immediate area where 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 46 

developers are relying on this finding and officers appear to be recommending to 
committee that they should approve the application in most cases because a five 
year land supply cannot be delivered. Could this deficit be caused by developers not 
building sufficiently quickly on the sites they have already – thus causing a shortfall? 
Could it be that houses are being built slowly to maintain demand and keep prices 
inflated? 
 
The Copplestone appeal finding showed that applications can be defended on appeal 
and each set of circumstances are different. 
 
Under current policy COR18 this site is in the open countryside. Under the emerging 
plan policy S14 it is still open countryside and subject to limitations on development.  
The emerging plan has been registered; an Inspector has been appointed and has 
set dates for preliminary hearings. NPFF allows a loophole in paragraph 14 if it is 
found that a development plan is absent, silent or relevant policies are out of date. 
MDDC have a continuation of policy between the two plans. It does offer some 
protection if adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits. What are the benefits of approving this application – more 
houses, new homes bonus – some affordable homes – profit for the landowner and 
developer?  
 
Is it not reasonable to look at the adverse cumulative impact on the wider area rather 
than restrict them to the site alone? Is this not a matter for our elected Members to 
decide using their local knowledge and common sense?  
 
Mr David Morgans speaking in relation to item 10 on the agenda, Stubnail Post, 
Oakford, stated that he lived in the parish of Knowstone and was a near neighbour to 
the application site. When this was first considered he was a Parish Councillor for 
Knowstone Parish and although he was no longer a Councillor he had retained an 
interest in this application. As Mid Devon District Council had failed in their 
obligations to provide any of the required number of gypsy/travellers pitches in their 
area for the last ten years, is it now the policy of the Council to allow permanent 
pitches just anywhere? 
 
Mr Jeremy Filmer-Bennett, also speaking in relation to Stubnail Post, Oakford, stated 
that he was a current Councillor for Knowstone Parish and had been asked by the 
Parish to consider objecting to this application. He asked whether the councillors had 
had the opportunity to visit the site and have a good look at it because the current 
occupation had already exceeded the existing agreement by the people who are 
there and any future agreement, were it to be confirmed, would continue to have this 
effect? 
 
Mr Roger Cashmore spoke in relation to item 2 on the Plans List, land south of 
Broadlands, Thorverton. He stated that he was resident of Thorverton village and 
while I find the planning officers extremely patient, professional and courteous, I 
however feel that the current planning processes here in Mid Devon fall short of best 
practice.   
 
1. You are all aware of a planning appeal in Uffculme and this authorities inability to 

demonstrate a viable 5 year land supply of deliverable housing and that it’s local 
plan is also yet to be approved.  Does this committee not agree with me that it is 
unfair that issues regarding the authority’s inability to manage it’s own Forward 

Page 6



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 47 

Planning Process override the legitimate concerns of our community?  The valid 
issues of over 20 local objectors appear to have been overruled by the NPPF and 
we are now forced to make up the shortfall in the Authorities’ strategic numbers 
for the inspector.  This situation is well understood the applicant, who as a 
consequence has submitted a pretty cynical application.   
 

2. Section 5 of your Planning Application form concerns Pre application advice.  
While I respect commercial confidentiality, if an applicant has benefited from pre - 
application discussions with the authority,  Does this committee not agree with me 
that the public should also be able to benefit from this advice, at some point in the 
planning process?  
 

3. The application I am currently interested in has an incredible number of 
inaccuracies.  Does this committee not agree with me that the planning process 
could benefit considerably from a code of conduct allowing applicants to be 
penalised for unnecessary, errors and omissions? As well actively promoting 
planning best practice, it discourages time wasting and may even become a new 
source of income for our cash strapped authority!   
 

4. To the layman, continuous, often contradictory references to National, Regional 
and Local Planning Policies is incredibly confusing!.  Does this committee not 
agree with me that the authority’s planning process could benefit immensely by 
the simple expedient of publishing  % age weightings alongside each applicable 
policy used to support a particular decision.?  This is no different than current 
Local Government tendering processes where the provision of decision criteria 
weightings has been standard practice for many years.  

Where does the lay person go for planning advice in Mid Devon?  I understand 
that there has been an active recruiting campaign, but there were no enforcement 
officers at all for over 6 months of this year, and, more importantly the availability 
of a morning duty planning officer has also been cut back to only Tuesday and 
Thursday mornings.  Does this committee agree with me that not having the 
correct number of qualified officers is a false economy that risks increasing 
workloads for the planning officers?     

Mr John Spivey, also speaking in relation to item 2 on the Plans List, land south of 
Broadlands, Thorverton, stated that although he was a councillor on Thorverton 
Parish Council he was present at the meeting as a member of the public who lived in 
the village. He was here specifically to point out a few things regarding the 
development at the top end of the village which allows new traffic to service the 
houses and passes through very narrow streets in the village, one of which was a 
blind corner and very narrow indeed. The applicant for this development owns 
virtually all the land round the village. If the National Planning Policy Framework is 
overriding local considerations then why don’t they reapply for a sensible larger site 
on the eastern end of the village where there is very easy access to the A396 to 
Tiverton and Exeter without negotiating the narrow streets of the village? This site is 
adjacent to the Court Barton Close site which is still under construction and 
producing 20 new houses for the village, 50% of them at affordable rates which was 
of great benefit to the village. The application for the new Broadlands site makes no 
mention of affordable housing whatsoever. 
 
Ruth Hickman, speaking in relation to item 10 on the agenda, Stubnail Post, Oakford, 
stated that she lived in the neighbouring property to this development at Highfield 
Gate. She knew this site well and would like the committee to consider two 

Page 7



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 48 

questions. Firstly, I am concerned that should this application be allowed, further 
expansion of this site will occur. The Planning Inspectorate appeal stated as a 
condition of temporary occupancy that the traveller’s site should remain within the 
boundary of the hardstanding already in place. In fact the site is already expanded 
without permission to both the south and east of the hard standing. The expansion to 
the south is into grassland and is used as an amenity area. The total increase in the 
area of the site is approximately half an acre producing greatly increased capacity for 
the siting of additional caravans on this site. My first question to you is that as the site 
plan does not show the expanded areas, can we assume that these areas will be 
restored to their previous state in order to comply with the Planning Officers imposed 
conditions?  
 
My second question also concerns conditions imposed by the Planning Inspector at 
appeal. The conditions limited the number of caravans on the site to two. There have 
regularly been 4 caravans on site, additional visiting caravans can be added to that 
number and many of the caravans are occupied from time to time. A further 
requirement was the formation of a reed bed soakaway system for sanitation. It 
would now appear from the site plans that a septic tank has been installed apparently 
without permission. The whole ethos of this site was supposed to be green living. We 
have raised our concerns with the Planning Department so my question to you is why 
have these key concerns not been given to you to consider so that you can reach a 
more informed decision? Further, in view of the applicants complete disregard for the 
conditions imposed by the Planning Inspector, what measures could be taken to 
ensure that any further conditions imposed will be complied with? 
 
Mr Tim Hugill spoke in relation to item 3 on the Plans List, the erection of 30 
dwellings in Uffculme. He stated that he was a member of Halberton Parish Council. 
Whilst this application was ongoing there was already an application (17/300), 
refused by yourselves, that was currently at appeal. The site for this development 
near Uffculme lies within Halberton parish and is right adjacent to Uffculme village. At 
recent Parish Council Planning meetings in Halberton during July and August, given 
the possibility that the development of the 30 dwellings might still go ahead, our 
councillors have discussed options for the development of amenities both onsite and 
linking from the site into the village of Uffculme. Planning Officer Fish initiated some 
correspondence on 21 August on the S106 topic about amenities being funded for 
that development and her correspondence started by assuming that although the 
possible development lies within Halberton parish, that Halberton need not be 
involved in those S106 agreement discussions. Halberton Parish Council was not 
copied into that correspondence at the time. In Halberton we take exception to this 
and would like to know why Halberton Parish Council has not been consulted yet on 
this S106 matter and when will we be consulted so that we can discuss options for 
this potential development? 
 
The Chairman indicated that the questions raised would be answered when the 
particular items were reached on the agenda.  
 

49 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (00-18-45)  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 August 2017 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

Page 8



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 49 

50 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS (00-19-35)  
 
The Chairman had the following announcements to make: 
 

 She welcomed the return of the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration following her back surgery. 

 She introduced new members of staff, Adrian Deveraux, Principal Planning 
Officer and Luke Thorpe, Planning Student to the meeting. 

 
51 ENFORCEMENT LIST (00-20-53)  

 
Consideration was given to the cases in the Enforcement List *. 
 
Note: *List previously circulated; copy attached to signed Minutes. 
 
Arising thereon: 
 
a) No. 1 in the Enforcement List (Enforcement Case ENF/17/00180/COU –   
Change of use of part of a building to a single dwellinghouse in breach of 
condition 7 to planning permission 07/00257/FULL – Annexe, Pitt Barn, 
Washfield). 
 
The Enforcement Officer outlined the contents of the report explaining that planning 
permission had been approved for 3 live/work units on the site, since 2013 these 
units had been used as 6 independent dwellings, the agent had been requested to 
regularise the issue but no application had been submitted and therefore the breach 
of planning control still existed.  Owing to the amount of time since the breach was 
confirmed in 2013 without any formal action being taken to secure the cessation of 
the unlawful use of the work units as dwellings, one of the dwellings had now been 
occupied as an independent dwelling for more than 4 years and was therefore 
immune from any formal enforcement action, however the other dwellings were not 
and therefore agreement for formal enforcement was being sought. 
 
Consideration was given to those dwellings still in breach of the planning application 
and the compliance period. 
 
RESOLVED that the Legal Services Manager be given delegated authority to take all 
such steps and action necessary to secure the cessation of the unauthorised change 
of use, including the issue of an enforcement notice and prosecution and/or Direct 
Action in the event of non-compliance with the notice. 
 
(Proposed Cllr Mrs H Bainbridge and seconded by Cllr B A Moore ) 
 
b) No. 2 in the Enforcement List (Enforcement Case ENF/17/00181/COU –   
Change of use of part of a building to a single dwellinghouse in breach of 
condition 7 to planning permission 07/00257/FULL – Annexe, Pitt Barn, 
Washfield). 
 
The Enforcement Officer outlined the contents of the report explaining that planning 
permission had been approved for 3 live/work units on the site, since 2013 these 
units had been used as 6 independent dwellings, the agent had been requested to 
regularise the issue but no application had been submitted and therefore the breach 

Page 9



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 50 

of planning control still existed.  Owing to the amount of time since the breach was 
confirmed in 2013 without any formal action being taken to secure the cessation of 
the unlawful use of the work units as dwellings, one of the dwellings had now been 
occupied as an independent dwelling for more than 4 years and was therefore 
immune from any formal enforcement action, however the other dwellings were not 
and therefore agreement for formal enforcement was being sought. 
 
Consideration was given to those dwellings still in breach of the planning application 
and the compliance period. 
 
RESOLVED that the Legal Services Manager be given delegated authority to take all 
such steps and action necessary to secure the cessation of the unauthorised change 
of use, including the issue of an enforcement notice and prosecution and/or Direct 
Action in the event of non-compliance with the notice. 
 
(Proposed  by the Chairman) 
 

52 DEFERRALS FROM THE PLANS LIST  
 
There were no deferrals from the Plans List. 
 

53 THE PLANS LIST (00-33-48)  
 
The Committee considered the applications in the plans list *.   
 
Note: *List previously circulated; copy attached to the signed Minutes. 
 
(a) Applications dealt with without debate. 

 
In accordance with its agreed procedure the Committee identified those applications 
contained in the Plans List which could be dealt with without debate. 

 
RESOLVED that the following applications be determined or otherwise dealt with in 
accordance with the various recommendations contained in the list namely: 

    
(i) No 5 on the Plans List (17/01251/FULL – Installation of new shop front – 10 
Market Walk, Bampton Street, Tiverton) be approved subject  to the receipt of no 
representations raising new issues by 12  September 2017, the Head of Planning, 
Economy and Regeneration be given delegated authority to grant permission subject 
to conditions  
 
(Proposed by the Chairman) 
 

(b)  No 1 on the Plans List (17/00001/MOUT – Outline application for the erection 
of 7 dwellings, improvements to access and change of use of agricultural land 
to community facility - land and buildings at NGR 294119 106891 (Adjacent to 
Highfield) Bickleigh) 
 
The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration outlined the contents of the 
report highlighting by way of presentation the issues being addressed within the 
outline application, that of improvements to the access and the change of use of 
agricultural land to a community facility.  Members viewed a site location plan which 

Page 10



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 51 

identified the area of the conservation area and the listed buildings close to the 
proximity of the site, the distance from the school,  an indicative layout of the 
proposed dwellings, plans for scale purposes and photographs from various aspects 
of the site. 
 
Having identified the area for the play area she explained that she had spoken with 
the school and the County Council Education Department to see if there was an 
appetite for the school to make use of the open space as a sports field by agreement.  
She reported views received that the area would be surplus to requirements and that 
the area would be of no benefit to the school. 
 
Consideration was given to: 
 

 The grade of the agricultural land 

 The setting in the midst of the Conservation Area and the impact on the listed 
buildings including Bickleigh Castle 

 Possible screening of the site 

 The impact on the hedgerow and the narrowness of the access road 

 Safety issues with regard to pedestrians walking to the school 
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be refused as recommended by the Head of 
Planning, Economy and Regeneration for the following reasons: 
 
1. The Local Planning Authority has a statutory duty under the Planning (Listed 

Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 to pay special attention to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character of a Conservation Area. 
Section 66 of the Act indicates that the Local Planning Authority is to have 
special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building or its setting.  In 
addition, local and national policy attaches great weight to the conservation of 
heritage assets and there is a strong presumption against granting permission 
for development which does not preserve or enhance a Conservation Area.  
The sense of enclosure created by the existing hedgerow and the narrowness 
of the lane forms part of the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area.  Consequently, the creation of a vehicular access and its associated 
visibility splay would detract from the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area and result in less than substantial harm to the designated 
heritage assets. The benefits of the proposal do not outweigh the proposal's 
adverse lasting impacts on that character and appearance and the appreciation 
of the setting of a group of listed buildings to the east of the site.  This would be 
contrary to the statutory duty and policies COR2 of the Mid Devon Core 
Strategy (LP1), DM2 and DM27 of the Local Plan Part 3 Development 
Management Policies and the National Planning Policy Framework. 

  
 2. The proposed development is likely to generate an increase in pedestrian traffic 

on a highway lacking adequate footways with consequent additional danger to 
all users of the road contrary to paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework and policies COR1and COR9 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy 
(Local Plan Part 1).  

 
(Proposed by Cllr B A Moore and seconded by Cllr F W Letch). 
 

Page 11



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 52 

Update - immediately following the committee meeting, the agent withdrew the 
application. 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) Cllrs R J Dolley and C J Eginton declared personal interests as the applicant 

was known to them; 
 
(ii) Cllrs Mrs H Bainbridge, Mrs C A Collis, Mrs F J Colthorpe, R J Dolley, C J 

Eginton, P J Heal, D J Knowles, F W Letch, B A Moore and J D Squire made 
declarations in accordance with the Protocol of Good Practice for Councillors 
in dealing with planning matters as they had all received correspondence 
regarding the application; 

 
(iii) Mr Hay spoke as an objector; 
 
(iv) Mr McNeil spoke on behalf of the applicant 
 
(v) Cllr Harrison (Bickleigh Parish Council) spoke in objection to the application; 
 
(vi) The following late information was reported: Updated comments received from 

Local Lead Flood Authority – 4th September 2017 
 

Our objection is withdrawn and we have no in-principle objections to the above 
planning application at this stage, assuming that the following pre-
commencement planning conditions are imposed on any approved 
permission: 

- No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until 
the detailed design of the proposed permanent surface water drainage 
management system has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority, in consultation with Devon County Council as the 
Lead Local Flood Authority. The design of this permanent surface water 
drainage management system will be in accordance with the principles of 
sustainable drainage systems, and those set out in Drawing No. 70029096-
DR101-A (Rev. A, dated 20/03/2017)  
 
Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is 
managed in accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage systems. 
 
Advice: Refer to Devon County Council’s Sustainable Drainage Guidance. 
 
No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the 
detailed design of the proposed surface water drainage management system 
which will serve the development site for the full period of its construction has 
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority, in 
consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. 
This temporary surface water drainage management system must 
satisfactorily address both the rates and volumes, and quality, of the surface 
water runoff from the construction site. 

 

Page 12



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 53 

Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the construction site is 
appropriately managed so as to not increase the flood risk, or pose water 
quality issues, to the surrounding area. 
 
Advice: Refer to Devon County Council’s Sustainable Drainage Guidance 
 
No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the full 
details of the adoption and maintenance arrangements for the proposed 
permanent surface water drainage management system have been submitted 
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority, in consultation 
with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development’s permanent surface water drainage 
management systems will remain fully operational throughout the lifetime of 
the development. 
 
Observations: 
Further to our comments within our consultation response dated 17/01/2017, 
the applicant's consultant engineers have submitted additional information in 
their email dated 02/05/2017; which addresses our concerns. Drawing No. 
70029096-DR101-A (Rev. A, dated 20/03/2017) and associated calculations 
detail an appropriate surface water strategy and therefore we remove our 
objections subject to the above conditions. 
 
Update to recommended reasons for refusal: 
Reason 3 to be deleted due to the withdrawn objection from the Local Lead 
Flood Authority. Their recommended conditions can be applied in the event 
planning permission is granted.  
 
Reason 4 to be deleted: The agent has indicated that her client is willing to 
sign a S106 agreement to secure public open space, affordable housing (off 
site contribution) and requested financial contribution towards secondary 
school transport. In the vent that planning permission is to be granted it can be 
made subject to a S106 to cover these aspects.  
 
Other matters: 
Playing field: The agent has advised on the proposed terms upon which the 
facility would be made available to the school and maintained. The scheme 
provides for delivery of the prepared facility to the school on an initial 10-year 
lease term on a peppercorn rent and maintained under a bond by the 
applicant.  The lease would be renewable for the same term, the school taking 
the obligation to maintain at a cost estimated by the school at between £800-
900 pa.  Upon the expiration of that second term the school would have the 
option to acquire for £100.The applicant has indicated a willingness to commit 
to a Unilateral Undertaking on this matter.  

 
Impact upon Conservation Area:  
Consultants acting for the applicant do not consider the access works erode 
the enclosed character and refer to the ability to set back the exiting hedge. 
The Council’s Conservation Officer sustains her recommendation of refusal.  
 
Observations: 

Page 13



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 54 

Further to our comments within our consultation response dated 17/01/2017, 
the applicant's consultant engineers have submitted additional information in 
their email dated 02/05/2017; which addresses our concerns. Drawing No. 
70029096-DR101-A (Rev. A, dated 20/03/2017) and associated calculations 
detail an appropriate surface water strategy and therefore we remove our 
objections subject to the above conditions. 

 
(c)  No 2 on the Plans List (17/00878/MOUT – Outline application  for the erection 
of up to 16 dwellings with associated access, landscaping and other ancillary 
development – land at NGR 292294 101802 (South of Broadlands) Thorverton). 
 
The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration outlined the contents of the 
report highlighting by way of presentation the site location plan, the details of the 
access to the site and footway plan, the indicative layout of the proposed dwellings 
and photographs from various aspects of the site.  She informed the meeting of the 
proposed allocation within the Local Plan Review for 12 dwellings and the issue of 
the 5 year land supply and highlighted the amount of affordable housing on the site. 
 
In answer to questions posed in public question time, she provided the following 
answers: with regard to traffic generation from the site, she stated that there had 
been no objection from the Highway Authority and that a suite of conditions was in 
place to address those issues; with regard to there being a more appropriate site in 
another part of the village, there was a need for the Members to determine the 
application they had before them.  Issues with regard to affordable housing had 
already been dealt with.  She explained that the site was proposed to be allocated 
within the emerging Local Plan Review for 12 dwellings, the proposed allocation had 
not been tested and therefore held little weight, but it had been proposed within the 
plan that the site was appropriate for development. 
 
Consideration was given to: 
 

 The principle of development on the site 

 The ratio of cars per dwelling 

 The detail of the proposal within the outline application 

 The footpath from the site to the village 

 The amendment to the settlement limit proposed within the emerging Local 
Plan Review 

 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject: 
 
i)  to the signing of a S106 agreement to secure the following: 

 

 £7994.00 public open space contribution 

 £9975.00 towards transport to secondary school 

 30% affordable homes 
 
(ii)  Conditions as recommended by the Head of Planning, Economy and 

Regeneration with amendments to:  Condition 4 - cross refer to condition 1 not 
CO1. Condition 11 -  remove ‘in consultation with Devon County Council as the 
Lead Local Flood Authority’.   Condition 15 -  remove ‘in consultation with Devon 
County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority’.  Condition 16 - remove ‘in 
consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local Flood Authority’’. Add 

Page 14



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 55 

at end of condition ‘Adoption and maintenance arrangements shall be in 
accordance with the approved details’  
Condition 17 - remove ‘in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead 
Local Flood Authority’’. Add at end of condition ‘The surface water drainage 
management system shall be in accordance with the approved details’ 

 
(Proposed by Cllr P J Heal and seconded by Cllr Mrs H Bainbridge) 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) Mr Cashmore spoke in objection to the application; 

 
(ii) Mr Jonathan Hoban (Agent) spoke; 

 
(iii) Cllrs R J Dolley and F W Letch requested that their vote against the decision be 

recorded; 
 

(iv) The following late information was reported: Revised recommendation: 
Subject to the signing of a S106 agreement to secure the following : £7994 
public open space contribution; £9975 towards transport to secondary school; 
30% affordable housing  and conditions; permission be granted.  

 
Amendments to conditions: 
4. cross refer to condition 1 not CO1. 
11. Remove ‘in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local 
Flood Authority’.  
15. Remove ‘in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local 
Flood Authority’ ’. 
16. Remove ‘in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local 
Flood Authority’’. Add at end of condition ‘Adoption and maintenance 
arrangements shall be in accordance with the approved details’  
17. Remove ‘in consultation with Devon County Council as the Lead Local 
Flood Authority’’. Add at end of condition ‘The surface water drainage 
management system shall be in accordance with the approved details’ 

 
(d)  No 3 on the Plans List (17/00886/MOUT – Outline application for the erection 
of 30 dwellings and new vehicular and pedestrian accesses – land at NGR 
305578 112053 – Uffculme Road, Uffculme). 
 
The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration outlined the contents of the 
report stating that although this was a stand-alone application it was a duplicate to 
the previous application on the site which was currently in the process of being 
appealed.  The officers recommendation remained for the application to be approved, 
however the Committee had resolved to refuse the previous application at its meeting 
in June 2017. 
 
She highlighted by way of presentation the site location plan and made reference to 
the adjacent ‘Harvesters’ site which had gained approval via appeal.  Members 
viewed the proposed vehicular and pedestrian access and the proposed link to the 
‘Harvesters’ site and photographs were shown from various aspects of the site. 
 

Page 15



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 56 

Referring to the questions posed in public question time she provided the following 
answers: with regard to the S106 contributions on the earlier application, she would 
correspond with the case officer and provide a response; the former case at 
‘Harvesters’ had identified the lack of a 5 year land supply, prior to the outcome of 
the appeal, the Local Planning Authority had not been challenged having adopted the 
existing Local Plan.  Some of the larger sites had taken longer to construct and 
therefore there was no immediate supply, the emerging Local Plan Review would re-
set the 5 year land supply; in the meantime a housing contingency site had been 
released to bring forward a strategic site for development.  With regard to the 
cumulative effect of development in the Uffculme area, this had been taken into 
consideration. 
 
Consideration was given to: 
 

 The cumulative effect of development in the area 

 The previous application and reasons for refusal 

 Why an identical application was being considered when the original was at 
appeal 

 Highway issues 
 
At this point, the Committee received some legal advice, informing it that they had 
the power (under Section 70(b) of the Town and County Planning Act 1990, as 
amended) to decline to determine the application as the previous application was still 
under the consideration of the Secretary of State and that the inspector had  yet to 
issue a decision. 
 
RESOLVED that the Local Planning Authority declined to determine this overlapping 
application under S70(b) of the Town and County Planning Act 1990 as amended. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr B A Moore and seconded by Cllr  R J Dolley) 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) Cllr Mrs F J Colthorpe made a declaration in accordance with the Protocol of 

Good Practice for Councillors in dealing with planning matters she knew the 
representative from Halberton Parish Council; 
 

(ii) Cllr Hugill, (Halberton Parish Council) spoke as an objector; 
 

(iii) Cllr  Warren (Willand Parish Council – adjacent Parish Council) spoke; 
 

(iv) Cllr R Evans spoke as an adjacent Ward Member; 
 

(v) The following late information was reported: Reference to refusal reasons in 
this report relate to the decision on the previous application 17/00300/MOUT. 
Officers remain as that on the previous application, that it should be granted 
and are not recommending refusal. 

 
Halberton Parish Council 11th July 2017: 
The Council is unclear why this application has been allowed to be submitted 
again as it has previously been refused twice and there appear to be no 

Page 16



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 57 

amendments to the previous application. The Council’s objection to this 
application remains unchanged.  

 
Previous views of the Parish Council of 24th March 2017 on previous 
application 17/00300/MOUT are given in full within the appendix.  

 
(e)  No 4 on the Plans List (17/00913/HOUSE – Erection of ancillary 
accommodation (revised scheme) – 3 Hayne Barton Cottages, Cullompton) 
 
The Area Team Leader outlined the contents of the report highlighting by way of 
presentation the 4 cottages situated in the open countryside, he provided a site plan 
which identified the proposal within the grounds of No 3 Hayne Barton Cottages, and 
explained the differences between the approved scheme and the current application 
which now included a new treatment plant within the curtilage of No 3 Hayne Barton 
Cottages The proposed building would be ancillary to the dwelling house and that the 
conditions prevented the building being occupied independently from the main 
house. 
 
Consideration was given to: 
 

 The concerns of the owner of the neighbouring property with regard to 
whether the proposal would be used as ancillary to the main dwelling and foul 
water issues. 

 The building had not been built in accordance with the original approved plans 

 The proposed conditions should the application be approved 

 The new treatment plant 
 
 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted subject to conditions as 
recommended by the Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr P J Heal and seconded by the Chairman) 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) Cllrs Mrs H Bainbridge, Mrs C A Collis, Mrs F J Colthorpe, R J Dolley, C J 

Eginton, P J Heal, D J Knowles, F W Letch, B A Moore and J D Squire made 
declarations in accordance with the Protocol of Good Practice for Councillors 
in dealing with planning matters as they had all received correspondence 
regarding the application; 
 

(ii) Mrs Stuart spoke in objection to the application; 
 

(iii) Cllr Mrs A R Berry spoke as Ward Member; 
 

(iv) The following late information was reported: While the detached nature of the 
accommodation and fencing shown in the photographs might suggest that the 
accommodation might be a completely separate unit, it is confirmed that 
officers are recommending approval on the basis that the accommodation is 
ancillary to the main house. A planning condition has been recommended to 
ensure that the accommodation is not used, sold, let or otherwise disposed of 
as a separate unit. It is further noted that if the applicant wished to erect 

Page 17



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 58 

fences in this location, they could erect fences up to 2 metres in height under 
permitted development. The dwelling has full permitted development rights 
intact.  The proposed unit of accommodation accounts for a modest 20 square 
metres of ancillary living accommodation. 

 
54 MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION (2-47-23)  

 
The Committee had before it, and NOTED, a list * of major applications with no 
decision.  
 
It was AGREED that: 
 
Application 17/01346/MOUT -  North of Tiverton Road, Cullompton 
Application  17/01178/MFUL – West of Willand Road, Cullompton 
Application  17/01179/MFUL – Land off Silver Street, Cullompton 
 
be brought before committee for determination and that site visits take place. 
 
Note: *List previously circulated; copy attached to the Minutes 
 

55 APPEAL DECISIONS (2-50-54)  
 
The Committee had before it and NOTED a list of appeal decisions * providing 
information on the outcome of recent planning appeals. 
   
Cllr Mrs J Roach spoke with regard to the appeal outcome for 19 Exeter Road, 
Silverton, she outlined the history of the site, the various times it had appeared 
before Committee and the site visit that had taken place.  The Committee had 
refused the application against officer recommendation and that she was very 
pleased with the outcome and wished it to be noted. 
 
Note: *List previously circulated; copy attached to signed Minutes.  
 
 

56 APPLICATION  17/00567/FULL - VARIATION OF CONDITION 1 OF APPEAL 
DECISIONS A & B: APP/Y1138/C/10/2139560 AND 2139561 AND APPEAL 
DECISION C: APP/Y1138/A/10/2133187 GRANTING TEMPORARY PLANNING 
PERMISSION TO ALLOW PERMANENT RESIDENCE OF THE SITE AT LAND 
AND BUILDINGS AT NGR 286077 123613 (STUBNAIL POST), OAKFORD (2-52-
29)  
 
The Committee had before it a * report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration 
regarding the above application. 
 
The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration outlined the contents of the 
report by way of presentation highlighting the layout of the site, the existing 
accommodation, the barn and amenity block and providing photographs of the 
access to the site.  She explained the temporary consent that had been granted at 
appeal in 2010 and a further 5 year extension approved in 2014 and the conditions 
for a personal permission as outlined within the report. 
 

Page 18



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 59 

She added that although there were provisions within the  masterplan for the urban 
extensions of Tiverton and Cullompton for a gypsy and travellers site, no such site 
was in place at the current time . She also explained the circumstances of the family 
which had been taken into consideration. 
 
Referring to questions posed in public question time, with regard to gypsy/ traveller 
pitches being allowed anywhere in the district, the answer was no, the temporary 
approval had been granted at appeal, the Inspector concluded that the lack of 
alternative sites and circumstances of the family outweighed the sustainability 
concerns over the site.   The committee had not visited the site, but may choose to.  
With regard to the expansion of the site, she would raise this with the enforcement 
officer. 
 
Consideration was given to: 
 

 The number of caravans on the site 

 Any enforcement issues which would be addressed 

 The lack of sites in the area 

 The amount of time left on the temporary permission 

 Whether specific sites would be available by the time the temporary 
permission period ended 

 The family were integrated into village life 

 The wording of the conditions with regard to the personal occupation of the 
site and the clearing of the site once dependents were no longer dependent 

 
RESOLVED that planning permission be granted, and that the Head of Planning, 
Economy and Regeneration be given delegated authority to draft conditions to 
include: 
 

 A personal permission 

 The limitation on the number of caravans  and the location of such 

 The limitation on commercial vehicles 

 The restoration of the site if it was no longer being used for this purpose. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr P J Heal and seconded by Cllr Mrs H Bainbridge) 
 
Notes: 
 
(i)  Cllr B A Moore declared a personal interest as some of the objectors were 

known to him; 
 

(ii) Mr Holton spoke in objection to the application; 
 
(iii) Dr Murdock spoke on behalf of the applicant; 
 
(iv) Cllr B A Moore spoke as Ward Member; 

 
(v) Cllr F W Letch left the meeting following consideration of the application. 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 60 

57 APPLICATION FOR A TREE PRESERVATION ORDER LAND AT NGR 
306770/113041, CLAY LANE , UFFCULME (3-28-00)  
 
The Committee had before it a * report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration 
regarding the above application. 
 
The Head of Planning, Economy and Regeneration outlined the contents of the 
report stating that the tree was of good amenity value at the edge of the Uffculme 
Conservation Area. Two objections had been received to the making of a Tree 
Preservation Order as it was felt that the tree threatened local property, the roots 
were damaged, the tree was dangerous, and that it was unhealthy.  The Tree Officer 
had stated in her report that the tree continued to merit protection. 
 
Consideration was given to: 
 

 The views of the local Ward Member with regard to the position of the tree and 
concerns about the safety. 

 The proximity of adjacent buildings 

 The landowner had requested that he remove  the tree and replace  it with 3 
trees in a better location 

 The age of the tree 

 The need for the Tree Officer to revisit the location and provide an updated 
report and amenity score 

 
 
RESOLVED  that the matter be deferred to allow the Tree Officer to further inspect 
the tree with regard to its current status and that further photographs identifying the 
proximity of the tree to adjacent buildings be made available. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr P J Heal and seconded by Cllr B A Moore) 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) Cllrs Mrs H Bainbridge, Mrs C A Collis, Mrs F J Colthorpe, R J Dolley, C J 

Eginton, P J Heal, D J Knowles, F W Letch, B A Moore and J D Squire made 
declarations in accordance with the Protocol of Good Practice for Councillors 
in dealing with planning matters as they had all received correspondence 
regarding the application; 
 

(ii) Cllr R Evans spoke as a Ward Member. 
 
 

58 APPLICATION 16/01830/FULL - SITING OF 1 MOBILE HOME, 2 MOTOR HOMES 
AND A COMPOST WC AT OAK MEADOW, SILVERTON (3-48-43)  
 
The Committee had before it a * report of the Head of Planning, Economy and 
Regeneration regarding the above application. 
 
She outlined the contents of the report stating that the site already had permission in 
place for 1 pitch to be occupied by a named individual and her dependents; 2 
additional pitches were now proposed.  She highlighted via a block plan and 
photographs depicting the siting of the original and proposed mobile homes, the 

Page 20



 

Planning Committee – 6 September 2017 61 

motorhomes, the proposed additional composting toilet and the proposed location of 
the borehole. 
 
Consideration was given to: 
 

 The dependent relatives 

 Concerns that the number of people living on the land could not be controlled 
with further dependents arriving 

 Traffic implications 

 The failure to provide suitable pitches 

 The facilities on site 
 
RESOLVED that the application be deferred to allow a site visit to take place by the 
Planning Working Group to consider: 
 

 The access 

 The present layout of the site in relation to what was being proposed 

 The location of the bore hole in relation to the siting of the composting toilets 

 The provision of the bore hole and the expected flow 

 Landscaping possibilities. 
 
(Proposed by Cllr D J Knowles and seconded by Cllr C J Eginton) 
 
Notes: 
 
(i) Cllrs Mrs F J Colthorpe, C J Eginton and P J Heal declared personal interests 

as the objectors present were known to them; 
 

(ii) Mr Custance-Baker, spoke in objection to the application; 
 

(iii) Miss N  Perrot spoke on behalf of the applicant; 
 

(iv) Cllr Mrs J Roach spoke as Ward Member. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 6.55 pm) CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE – 4th OCTOBER 2017 

ENFORCEMENT REPORT LIST 

1. 16/00246/UDRU – Change of use of land from agriculture to mixed use agriculture and the 

siting of a caravan for human habitation at West Loosemoor Farm Oakford Tiverton Devon 

EX16 9JE 

2. 16/00189/LIS – Without listed building consent, the execution of works for the alternation to 

the listed building, namely: The removal from the front façade of two timber framed sash 

windows and two timber framed casement windows and their replacement with uPVC 

windows at 18 Exeter Road Crediton Devon EX17 3BL 

16/00190/LIS - Without listed building consent, the execution of works for the alternation to 

the listed building, namely: The removal from the front façade of one timber framed sash 

window and stone cill and one timber framed casement window and stone cill, and their 

replacement with uPVC windows at 19 Exeter Road Crediton Devon EX17 3BL 

3. 15/00171/UCU – Unauthorised material change of use of land from agricultural to a mixed 

use of agriculture and use for storage of builders materials at Land at NGR 310656 113326 

(Hillmoor), Culmstock, Devon 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



COMREP 

Enforcement List  Item  1 
Committee Date:  4th October 2017 

 
Case No. ENF/16/00246/UDRU Grid Ref: 290233 122951 
 
Address: 
West Loosemoor Farm, Oakford, Tiverton, Devon 
 
Alleged Breach: 
 
Change of use of land from agriculture to mixed use agriculture and the siting of a caravan for 
human habitation. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That Members, having regard to the provisions of the Mid Devon Development Plan and all other 
material planning considerations in accordance with Section 172, Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, ("the Act") should grant authority to the Legal Services Manager take all such steps and 
action necessary to secure the cessation of the unauthorised change of use and the removal of 
the caravan and associated domestic paraphernalia from the site, including the issue of an 
enforcement notice and prosecution and/or Direct Action in the event of non-compliance with the 
notice. 
 
Site Description: 
West Loosemoor Farm, Oakford, Tiverton, Devon   
 
The site is located within the parish of Oakford, approximately 1 mile north-northwest of the village 
of Oakford.  It is in the open countryside lying to the east of the B3227 South Molton Road. 
 
Site Plan: 

Page 25



COMREP 

 
Site History: 
 
 

96/00485/FULL Erection of brood house for free range chickens 
provision of new vehicular access and associated 
landscaping works 

PERMIT 

 

05/01354/DET Query regarding application 96/00485/FULL CLOSED 

 

05/02151/FULL Removal of condition (1) of planning permission 
4/39/96/0485 to allow permanent retention of 
poultry brood house and associated infrastructure 
and works 

PERMIT 

 

 
Development Plan Policies: 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM10 - Rural workers dwellings 
DM31 - Planning enforcement 
 
Reasons/Material Considerations: 
 
It appears to your Officers that the above breach of planning control has occurred within the last 
10 years.   Evidence strongly suggests there was no caravan on the site around 2005/2006.  This 
is clearly visible from the aerial photograph data held from this period.  In addition, in late October 
2005 the Council's Principal Planning Officer made a site visit in connection with application 
05/02151/FULL.  The Officer report provides a detailed description of the whole site, referring to it 
overgrown and having the feeling and appearance of not being used for some time.  There was no 
mention of a caravan being on site at the time of this application. 
 
In October 2016 the Revenues Team had a conversation with the caravan owner about whether 
payment of Council Tax was necessary.  At this time the owner indicated the caravan had been 
there since 2009, and whilst registered to pay Council Tax on a property elsewhere, the owner 
occupied the caravan for 2-3 nights per week but wanted to move into the caravan on a permanent 
basis. 
 
Planning Enforcement were made aware of the situation in October 2016 and, having confirmed 
that a breach of planning had occurred, contacted the owner to discuss the removal of the 
caravan.  The owner of the caravan was advised by telephone and letter that the change of use of 
the land (from agriculture to a mixed use agriculture and the siting of a caravan for human 
habitation) was unauthorised and that because the caravan was not the occupier's main or sole 
residence that the unauthorised use should cease immediately and the caravan be removed from 
the land.  In October 2016 the owner was given a deadline of January 2017 by which to resolve 
the breach. 
 
A further site visit was undertaken in February 2017 and it was noted that the caravan remained in 
situ and formal enforcement was required. 

Page 26



COMREP 

 
A brief period of inactivity followed due to a lack of resource within the Enforcement Team.  
 
At the end of July 2017 the matter was chased by the Revenues Team who had noted the caravan 
was still on site.  A further site visit was undertaken in early August and the caravan was still on 
site and appeared to be occupied.  A letter was sent to the owner on 1st August 2017 requesting 
the caravan was removed from the land within 28 days or the Council would commence formal 
enforcement action. 
 
A further site visit was undertaken on 30th August 2017 and it was confirmed the caravan was still 
on site and still appeared to be occupied.   
 
An email was received from the owner of the land jointly with the owner of the caravan stating 
there was no need to remove the caravan from the land because caravans had been on site since 
2003 (another caravan in another location) and since 2005/2006 (the caravan that is the subject of 
this enforcement investigation).  It was stated in the email that the caravan was necessary as 
somewhere warm and dry to change clothes whilst waiting for vets and other trade persons, and 
somewhere to stay in bad weather. 
 
A response was sent to both the owner of the land and the owner of the caravan advising that the 
use of the land remained unauthorised until such times as either planning permission were granted 
for a temporary agricultural worker's dwelling; a certificate of lawful use were granted or the 
unauthorised use ceased and the caravan removed from the land. 
 
To date neither planning permission nor a certificate of lawful use have been applied for and the 
caravan remains on site.   
 
Human Rights and Equality Issues: 
 
The expediency of Enforcement action has been assessed with reference to the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF). Expediency has also been assessed with regard to the statutory 
Development Plan, comprising the Core Strategy 2026 (July 2007), the Allocations and 
Infrastructure Development Plan Policies (January 2011) the Local Plan Part 3 Development 
Management Policies (October 2013) the Proposed Local Plan Review Policies 2013 - 2033. 
 
When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation, 
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.   
 
In addition, Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it unlawful 
for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the Committee must take 
account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware of the fact that the HRA 1998 
makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the Convention) directly applicable to the 
actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The specific parts of the Convention relevant to 
planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and 
family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of 
discrimination). 
 
Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is unlikely 
that this article will be breached.  
 
Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of these rights 
protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for example where required 
by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which means it must achieve a fair 
balance between the public interest and the private interest infringed and must not go beyond what 
is needed to achieve its objective.  

Page 27



COMREP 

 
Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without discrimination on 
grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, national or social origin, 
association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'. 
 
The power to issue an Enforcement Notice is discretionary and should only be used where the 
Local Planning Authority are satisfied that there has been a breach or breaches of planning 
control.  It must also be satisfied that it is expedient to issue the Notice having regard to the 
provisions of the Development Plan and to any other material considerations.  Consequently the 
Council must decide based on the particular circumstances of each individual case the question of 
expediency.  The decision to take enforcement action must be reasonable and not based on 
irrational factors or taken without proper consideration of the relevant facts and planning issues or 
based on non-planning grounds.  
 
Reasons for Issuing the Notice: 
 
The Council does not consider the unauthorised use has been carried on continuously for a period 
of 10 years and therefore the serving of an Enforcement Notice is necessary before the matter 
becomes immune from enforcement due to the passage of time.   
 
The current unlawful use of the site, for the siting of a caravan for residential accommodation 
without a strong evidence base to demonstrate otherwise, is considered to be contrary to policy 
COR18 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and policies DM10 and DM31 of the 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3. 

Page 28



COMREP 

Enforcement List Item  2 
Committee Date:  4

th
 October 2017 

 
Case No. 16/00189/LIS & 16/00190/LIS  
 
Address:  
18 & 19 Exeter Road, Crediton, EX17 3BL 
 
Alleged Breach: 
Without listed building consent, the execution of works for the alternation to the listed building, 
namely: 
 
18 Exeter Road The removal from the front façade of two timber framed sash windows and 

two timber framed casement windows and their replacement with uPVC 
windows 

 
19 Exeter Road The removal from the front façade of one timber framed sash window and 

stone cill and one timber framed casement window and stone cill, and their 
replacement with uPVC windows 

 
Recommendation: 
That Members, having regard to the provisions of the Mid Devon Development Plan and all other 
material planning considerations in accordance with Section 172, Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, ("the Act") should grant authority to the Legal Services Manager to take all such steps and 
actions necessary to secure the removal and replacement of the unauthorised windows, including 
the issue of an enforcement notice and prosecution and/or Direct Action in the event of non-
compliance with the notice. 
 
Site Description: 
Numbers 18 and 19 Exeter Road form part of a row of 6 adjoining grade II listed cottages located 
on the west side of Exeter Road, approximately 1 mile south-east of Crediton town centre.  The list 
description states that “the combination of brick and thatch is an unusual one in Devon [and] these 
houses are an important part of the entrance into the town from the Exeter side”. 
 
Site Plan: 
 

 

Page 29



COMREP 

 
 
Site History: 
None relevant  
 

Development Plan Policies: 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012 – Chapter 12 “Conserving and enhancing the historic 
environment” 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
COR2 – Local Distinctiveness 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
DM27 – Development affecting heritage assets 
DM31 – Planning enforcement 
 
Reasons/Material Considerations: 
Members will recall passing a resolution authorising the issue of two Listed Building Enforcement 
Notices for the removal of unauthorised uPVC windows from the front façade of the listed buildings 
at 18 and 19 Exeter Road on 3 August 2016. 
 
Prior to issuing the notices, the enforcement officer undertook a site visit to check whether the 
breach(s) remained and found that the requirement to remove and replace the two first floor 
windows at 18 Exeter Road had been omitted from the original report and the description for the 
window to be installed at ground floor level at 19 Exeter Road was incorrect.  The requirements of 
the original listed building enforcement notices have been amended as follows (shown in bold): 
 
Requirement of the notice in the case of 18 Exeter Road: 
 
(a) Remove the four uPVC windows installed in the front façade of the building at 

ground and first floor level 
(b) Within the aperture vacated by the unauthorised uPVC at ground floor level, install a 

3/3 timber framed sliding sash window on the left hand side of the entrance door and 
a 2/2 timber framed sliding sash window on the right hand side of the entrance door 
(when viewed externally).  The new windows shall be painted white and set back so 
as to provide a 100mm external reveal 

(c)   Within the two apertures vacated by the unauthorised uPVC windows at first floor 
level, install two 2-light timber casement windows with horizontal glazing bar.  The 
new windows shall be painted white and set back so as to provide a 100mm external 
reveal 

(d) All new timber windows to be glazed with slim profile double glazing 
 
Requirement of the notice in the case of 19 Exeter Road: 
 
(a) Remove the two uPVC windows installed in the front façade of the building at ground and 

first floor level 
(b) Install stone cills at the base of the window apertures on both the ground floor and first floor 

vacated by the unauthorised uPVC windows.  The cills shall match as far as reasonably 
practicable the stone cills installed in the window aperture of number 20 Exeter Road 

(c) Within the aperture vacated by the unauthorised uPVC window at ground floor level, 
install a 3/3 timber framed sliding sash window.  The new sash window shall be painted 
white and set back so as to provide a 100mm external reveal 

(d) Within the aperture vacated by the unauthorised uPVC window at first floor level, install a 
2-light timber casement window with horizontal glazing bar.  The new window shall be 
painted white and set back so as to provide a 100mm external reveal 

(e) All new timber windows to be glazed with slim profile double glazing 
 
 

Page 30



COMREP 

The uPVC windows installed in the front façade of 18 and 19 Exeter Road continue to adversely 
affect the character of the row of cottages of special architectural or historic interest.  Members 
are, therefore, requested to authorise the issue of the two amended listed building enforcement 
notices directing the unauthorised works at numbers 18 and 19 Exeter Road are corrected. 
 
Human Rights and Equality Issues: 
 
The expediency of Enforcement action has been assessed with reference to the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF). Expediency has also been assessed with regard to the statutory 
Development Plan, comprising the Core Strategy 2026 (July 2007), the Allocations and 
Infrastructure Development Plan Policies (January 2011) the Local Plan Part 3 Development 
Management Policies (October 2013) the Proposed Local Plan Review Policies 2013 - 2033. 
 
When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation, 
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.   
 
In addition, Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it unlawful 
for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the Committee must take 
account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware of the fact that the HRA 1998 
makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the Convention) directly applicable to the 
actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The specific parts of the Convention relevant to 
planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and 
family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of 
discrimination). 
 
Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is unlikely 
that this article will be breached.  
 
Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of these rights 
protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for example where required 
by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which means it must achieve a fair 
balance between the public interest and the private interest infringed and must not go beyond what 
is needed to achieve its objective.  
 
Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without discrimination on 
grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, national or social origin, 
association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'. 
 
The power to issue an Enforcement Notice is discretionary and should only be used where the 
Local Planning Authority are satisfied that there has been a breach or breaches of planning 
control.  It must also be satisfied that it is expedient to issue the Notice having regard to the 
provisions of the Development Plan and to any other material considerations.  Consequently the 
Council must decide based on the particular circumstances of each individual case the question of 
expediency.  The decision to take enforcement action must be reasonable and not based on 
irrational factors or taken without proper consideration of the relevant facts and planning issues or 
based on non-planning grounds.   
 
Reasons for issuing the Notice 
The insertion of uPVC windows in the front façade of the listed buildings constitutes unsympathetic 
and inappropriate alterations which adversely affect the character and appearance of the 
buildings.  The unauthorised works are contrary to the advice contained in paragraphs 126-141 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework, policy COR2 of the Mod Devon Core Strategy 2026 and 
policies DM27 and DM31 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3. 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



COMREP 

Enforcement List  Item  3 
Committee Date:  4th October 2017 

 
Case No. ENF/15/00171/UCU Grid Ref: 310657 113330 
 
Address: 
Land at NGR 310656 113326, (Hillmoor), Culmstock, Devon 
 
Alleged Breach: 
Untidy site causing an adverse effect on the visual amenity of the area arising from the 
unauthorised change of use of the land from agriculture to a mixed use of agriculture and the 
storage of business and domestic materials. 
 
Recommendation: 
That Members, having regard to the provisions of the Mid Devon Development Plan and all other 
material planning considerations in accordance with Section 215, Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, ("the Act") should grant authority to the Legal Services Manager to take all such steps and 
action necessary to secure the improvement of the appearance of the land, including the issue of a 
Section 215 (Untidy Site) Notice and prosecution and/or Direct Action in the event of non-
compliance with the notice. 
 
Site Description: 
Land at NGR 310656 113326, (Hillmoor), Culmstock, Devon   
 
The site, which forms part of Hillmoor Common, is located within the parish of Culmstock, to the 
south-east of the village centre and to the south of Hemyock Road (B3391).  The site is accessed 
via a lane off Hemyock Road and falls outside of the settlement boundary and approximately 400m 
to the north of the boundary of the Blackdown Hills AONB. 
 
Site Plan: 

 

Page 33



COMREP 

 
Site History: 
 

16/01241/CLU Certificate of lawfulness for the existing use of land 
for parking in excess of 10 years 

PERMIT 

 

 
Development Plan Policies: 
National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
Policy DM20 - Rural employment development  
Policy DM31 - Planning enforcement 
 
Reasons/Material Considerations: 
 
Members will recall passing a resolution authorising the issue of an enforcement notice for the 
unauthorised change of use of the land from agriculture to a mixed use of agriculture and use for 
business and domestic storage on 29 March 2017.  The notice was issued on 27 April 2017 and 
subsequently appealed by the landowner on the grounds that the land had been used for the 
storage of materials for a period in excess of 10 years and therefore, immune from any 
enforcement action.  The Planning Inspectorate agreed to the landowners request that the matter 
be heard at a public inquiry and a date was set for November 2017.   
 
Following discussions between the enforcement officer and legal services, it was felt that a public 
inquiry into this matter was disproportionate with a potential to incur unnecessary costs.  
Furthermore, Members are advised that in November 2016, an application for a Certificate of 
Lawfulness for the existing use of the land for storage purposes (reference 16/01241/CLU) was 
refused by the LPA as the landowner was unable to provide sufficient evidence to support his 
claims that the land had been used continuously for this purpose for a period of 10 years or more.  
Having previously considered the evidence submitted with the CLU, your officers having been 
advised by legal services considered there to be little merit in revisiting the same evidence in a 
public inquiry.  A decision was taken to withdraw the enforcement notice, but to seek to address 
the issue by other planning enforcement means; namely the issuing of a Section 215 notice. 
 
Your officers recognise that the ongoing storage of materials on the land is having a detrimental 
impact upon the visual amenity of the locality.  Your officers seek to secure improvement of the 
condition of the land by the removal of all the domestic and business materials, i.e. all those 
materials not reasonably required in relation to the lawful use of the land for agriculture.  It is, 
therefore, proposed that a Section 215 (Untidy Site) Notice should be served, securing an 
improvement in the condition of the land.  Members are advised that failure to comply with the 
terms of the Section 215 Notice is an Offence for which the landowner may be prosecuted in the 
Magistrates Court.  In addition, the LPA may also elect to carry out the works in default and 
recover the costs from the landowner. 
 
Human Rights and Equality Issues: 
 
The expediency of Enforcement action has been assessed with reference to the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF). Expediency has also been assessed with regard to the statutory 
Development Plan, comprising the Core Strategy 2026 (July 2007), the Allocations and 
Infrastructure Development Plan Policies (January 2011) the Local Plan Part 3 Development 
Management Policies (October 2013) the Proposed Local Plan Review Policies 2013 - 2033. 

Page 34



COMREP 

 
When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning legislation, 
regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.   
 
In addition, Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it unlawful 
for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the Committee must take 
account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware of the fact that the HRA 1998 
makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the Convention) directly applicable to the 
actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The specific parts of the Convention relevant to 
planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and 
family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of 
discrimination). 
 
Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is unlikely 
that this article will be breached.  
 
Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of these rights 
protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for example where required 
by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which means it must achieve a fair 
balance between the public interest and the private interest infringed and must not go beyond what 
is needed to achieve its objective.  
 
Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without discrimination on 
grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other opinion, national or social origin, 
association with a national minority, property, birth or other status'. 
 
The power to instigate enforcement action is discretionary and should only be used where the 
Local Planning Authority are satisfied that there has been a breach or breaches of planning 
control.  It must also be satisfied that it is expedient to issue the Notice having regard to the 
provisions of the Development Plan and to any other material considerations.  Consequently the 
Council must decide based on the particular circumstances of each individual case the question of 
expediency.  The decision to take enforcement action must be reasonable and not based on 
irrational factors or taken without proper consideration of the relevant facts and planning issues or 
based on non-planning grounds.   
 
Reasons for Issuing the Notice: 
 
The breach of planning control concerns an untidy site where the condition of the land is having a 
detrimental impact upon the visual amenity of the locality. 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA 1 

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA - 4th October 2017 

Applications of a non-delegated nature 
 
 

Item No. Description 
 
 

  
01.  17/00855/MFUL - Erection of extension to garden centre to form additional retail space, 

pallet store, covered entrance and covered outdoor areas and erection of a separate 
warehouse following removal of polytunnels (1,567sqm total) at Bow Garden Centre, Bow, 
Crediton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
  

02.  17/00914/OUT - Outline for the erection of 9 dwellings with associated access at Land at 
NGR 277111 102951, Sunnymead, Copplestone. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions and the signing of a S106 agreement   

  
  

03.  17/01108/OUT - Outline for the erection of a dwelling and new vehicular access at Land 
and Buildings at NGR 301748 115242, North-East of Twin Oaks, Uplowman. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Refuse permission. 
 

  
  

04.  17/01142/FULL - Variation of Condition 9 of planning permission 16/01180/FULL to change 
sections i) and ii) of the condition with reference to the location and source of feedstock 
and the subsequent ultimate destination of digestate from the anaerobic digester  
at Land at NGR 299621 112764 (Red Linhay), Crown Hill, Halberton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
  

05.  17/01197/CAT - Notification of intention to coppice 1 Sycamore tree (T2); coppice 
Hornbeam trees (G3) and Sycamore trees (G1) to form hedge; crown raise Sycamore trees 
(G2) to 4m and raise crown of 1 Oak tree (T3) by 3m within the Conservation Area at Land 
at NGR 301044 112936, Between 46-48 High Street, Halberton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
No objection  
 

  
  

06.  17/01224/FULL -  Construction of new footpath and access steps to school entrance at 
Land at NGR 301924 107472, (Adj. To St Andrews Primary School), St Andrews Estate. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
 
 
 

 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



AGENDA 2 

07.  17/01240/OUT - Outline for the erection of a dwelling at Land at NGR 306965 114496 (2 
Appledore Court), Burlescombe, Devon. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Refuse permission. 
 

  
  

08.  17/01265/HOUSE - Retention of 1.8m high fence on block wall on west boundary and 
erection of 1.8m fence on existing block wall on north boundary at Hilary, Barnfield, 
Crediton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
  

09.  17/01332/HOUSE - Erection of two storey extension following demolition of single storey 
extension and porch; internal and external repairs and alterations; alterations to northern 
boundary/access; erection of den and relocation of greenhouse and polytunnel at Shapcott 
Cottage, Whitnage, Tiverton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 

  
  

10.  17/01333/LBC - Listed Building Consent for the erection of two storey extension following 
demolition of single storey extension and porch; internal and external repairs and 
alterations; alterations to northern boundary/access; erection of den and relocation of 
greenhouse and polytunnel at Shapcott Cottage, Whitnage, Tiverton. 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant Listed Building Consent subject to conditions. 
 

  
 
 
 

Page 38



AGENDA 3 

 
 

Plans List No. 1 
 
Application No. 17/00855/MFUL 
 
Grid Ref:  271301 : 101739  
 
Applicant: Mr D Tucker  
   
Location: Bow Garden Centre  

Bow  
Crediton  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Erection of extension to garden centre to form additional retail space, pallet store, covered 

entrance and covered outdoor areas and erection of a separate warehouse following 
removal of polytunnels (1,567sqm total)  

 
 
Date Valid:         25th May 2017 
 
 

 

Page 39



AGENDA 4 

Application No. 17/00855/MFUL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Planning permission is sought for an extension to Bow Garden Centre for additional indoor retail space, to 
enclose external areas that are used to display merchandise for sale with a rain canopy (directly adjacent 
and adjoining the shop) and for the construction of a dry storage warehouse. 
 
The existing shop unit provides in excess of 500 square metres (gross) of floor space the majority of which 
(net area) is used for the display and sale of goods and merchandise, including comparison and non- 
comparison goods. At present the majority of the floorspace is used to display traditional garden centre type 
products. 
 
The proposed retail extension will be accessed from the existing unit, constructed on the same floor level as 
the existing and proposes an extension of 498 square metres, as a broadly square extension to the existing 
unit. The new building will be a 3 gable steel portal frame and be of a lower ridge height to that of the 
existing building whilst replicating the colour and texture of finishes of the main building.  
 
The new warehouse facility will provide dry storage for perishable goods.  Access to the warehouse will be 
through the existing main entrance and through to the top of the car park. This will need some redundant 
polytunnels to be removed and the immediate area prepared with crushed stone to provide a level and safe 
access for delivery vehicles and forklift trucks. These areas will be self-draining.  The warehouse will be a 
simple vernacular design utilising lightweight agricultural type steel portal frame and will be clad in 
corrugated coloured panel in dark green. It measures 25m x 10m with 4.2m to eaves and 5.7m to ridge, thus 
providing 250 square metres of floorspace.  
 
In addition, it is proposed to enclose a significant area of the outside sales space with a roof cover.  
 
In total the area covered by the application is in excess of 1500 square metres. The site area is 1.21 
hectares with the external area is laid out to provide 76 car parking spaces, and circulation space.  
 
The application site is a countryside location, beyond the settlement boundary of Bow to the west, and as 
stated is an existing trading garden centre.  
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Application forms and plans 
Design and Access Statement and Outline Specification for construction prepared by Haldons 
Review of Devon County Council Historic Environment Record 
Surface Water Drainage Strategy Report prepared by Aquatech; 30th August 2017 
 
The applicant submitted amended plans on September 14th to clarify the scope of the additional retail 
floorspace proposed as reported above 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
92/02042/FULL - PERMIT date 28th March 1995 
Erection of specialist garden centre and nursery   
97/01574/FULL - PERMIT date 15th December 1997 
Erection of a polytunnel   
03/05331/FULL - PERMIT date 16th December 2003 
Erection of storage building   
14/01606/FULL - PERMIT date 18th November 2014 
Erection of cafe/restaurant   
 

Page 40



AGENDA 5 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR1 - Sustainable Communities 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR4 - Meeting Employment Needs 
COR7 - Previously Developed Land 
COR9 - Access 
COR12 - Development Focus 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM8 - Parking 
DM17 - Development outside town centres 
DM19 - Rural shopping 
DM20 -  Rural employment development 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Waste and Transport Manager - Consultation Date: Fri 26 May 2017  
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY - Consultation Date: Fri 26 May 2017  
 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES MANAGER (PROPERTY SERVICES) - Consultation Date: Fri 26 May 2017  
 
LEAD LOCAL FLOOD AUTHORITY Comment Date: 6th September  
Further to the submission of a Surface Water Drainage Strategy Report (Ref: AT2168, Rev. -, 
dated30/08/17) a suitable surface water strategy has been proposed and we have no further objection 
application to the application. 
 
22nd June 2017 - Recommendation: 
At this stage, we object to this planning application because we do not believe it satisfactorily conforms to 
Policy DM2, specifically part (f), of Mid Devon District Council's Local Plan (Adopted October 2013), which 
requires developments to include sustainable drainage systems. The applicant will therefore be required to 
submit additional information in order to demonstrate that all aspects of the proposed surface water drainage 
management system have been considered. 
 
Observations: 
The applicant has noted in the Application Form that surface water will be disposed of via soakaway's. 
However, no information has been submitted regarding surface water drainage management. The applicant 
must therefore submit a surface water drainage management plan which demonstrates how surface water 
from the development will be disposed of in a manner that does not increase flood risk elsewhere, in 
accordance with the principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems. The applicant is therefore advised to refer 
to Devon County Council's draft Sustainable Drainage Design Guidance, which can be found at the following 
address: https://new.devon.gov.uk/floodriskmanagement/sustainable-drainage/.  
 
BOW PARISH COUNCIL - Comment Date: 20th June 2017 - Approves the application.  
 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY - Comment Date: 12th June 2017 
Observations: 
The Highway Authority would raise no objection to the proposal and it is a matter for the Local Planning 
Authority to consider if the proposed parking is in compliance with the Local Plan policy. Should the parking 
meet the standards the Highway Authority would advise that the application is acceptable 
Recommendation: 

Page 41



AGENDA 6 

THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON BEHALF OF DEVON 
COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY,HAS NO OBJECTION TO THE PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No letters of representations received at the time of writing (20/07/2017) 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
1. Policy and retail impact; 
2. Design, impact on streetscene and the character and appearance of the location 
3. Impact on the living conditions of nearby residential properties; and 
4. Other matters raised. 
 
1. Policy and retail impact 
 
The Government's commitment to a "plan led" planning system is apparent throughout the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF). Paragraph 2 acknowledges the statutory presumption in favour of the 
development plan in section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, and the status of the 
NPPF as another material consideration. 
 
Under the heading "Delivering sustainable development" (page 6) The NPPF states that:- 
The Government is committed to ensuring that the planning system does everything it can to support 
sustainable economic growth. Planning should operate to encourage and not act as an impediment to 
sustainable growth. Therefore significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth 
through the planning system (paragraph 19). 
 
It also states that planning should proactively drive and support sustainable economic development 
(paragraph 17). 
 
Section 3 of the NPPF Supporting a prosperous rural economy seeks to encourage Local Planning 
Authorities to support economic growth in rural areas.  It goes on to say that plans should:- 

• support the sustainable growth and expansion of all types of business and enterprise in rural areas, 
both through conversion of existing buildings and well-designed new buildings; 

• promote the development and diversification of agricultural and other land-based rural businesses; 
• support sustainable rural tourism and leisure developments that benefit businesses in rural areas, 

communities and visitors, and which respect the character of the countryside. This should include 
supporting the provision and expansion of tourist and visitor facilities in appropriate locations where 
identified needs are not met by existing facilities in rural service centres (para 28). 

 
The site is located in open countryside where COR18 of the Core Strategy permits agricultural and other 
appropriate rural uses, such as appropriately scaled retail.   Policy COR1 seeks to manage development so 
that it meets sustainability objectives including enhancing the self-sufficiency and vitality of communities, 
providing settlements with a vibrant mix of flexible and compatible uses and providing access to jobs. 
 
Therefore there is a policy within the Local Plan that governs rural shopping, the extension aspect of the 
proposed development.  Whilst the site is some 460m from the defined settlement of Bow, it is within the 
countryside.  In such locations, Policy DM19 supports retail development where they demonstrate that the 
location and scale of the development would not harm the vitality and viability of town centre or village 
shopping facilities, the development would not lead to an unacceptable impact on the local road network and 
there would not be an unacceptable adverse impact to the character and appearance of the countryside.   
 
Policy COR7 seeks to minimise the loss of greenfield sites and follow a sequential approach to 
development, guiding development towards the most sustainable locations. 
 
 
 

Page 42



AGENDA 7 

Policy DM2 seeks high quality design. 
 
In planning terms Garden Centres do not fit neatly within any single land use category and usually comprise 
a mix of uses that can include retail (A1 use class), cafe/restaurant (A3 use class), and  to a lesser extent an 
element of horticulture (agricultural use). Garden centres can also be classed as sui generis, but they form 
more of a retail (A1) use in comparison within plant nurseries as a result of selling a wider range of non plant 
products. In addition to this, due to the nature of garden centres and the land use involved, they are usually 
located within the countryside, outside of the boundaries of towns, cities and villages. This provides a 
challenge to garden centre operators as the land on which they are located is often strictly controlled in 
planning terms, and whilst the businesses need to change and evolve in line with retailing trends and 
customer demands and, the planning policy relating to the land on which they are located does not readily 
permit the types of uses involved in modern day garden centres. 
 
As mentioned above, the focus of the NPPF is the delivery of sustainable development. The proposed 
development would comply with this by providing sustainable development as follows: 
 
Economic Benefits: The garden centre has been operating since 1992 and a cafe/restaurant extension has 
recently (2014) been completed. The business employs 8 FTE's, and clearly the proposals will seek to assist 
to the maintain the viability of those jobs.   
 
In addition to the positions that will be created within the garden centre, there are also secondary and 
tertiary positions which will be made available. For example, the local suppliers which the garden centre 
buys from will experience an increase in trade from an expanded business. This is in accordance with Policy 
COR4 (Meeting Employment Needs). 
 
Environmental benefits: Being a brownfield site, there are no known protected species on site. 
 
The site is accessible by bus and cycle and on foot from Bow. Cycle parking will be provided on the site to 
encourage visitors and staff to access the site via more sustainable methods of transport, in accordance with 
criteria b of policy DM19. 
 
Social benefits: The site has been operating for many years and it could be argued is part of the local 
community.  The garden centre could provide visitors with more retail choice and provides a forum for 
community interaction. The NPPF recognises the need that established shops, facilities and services are 
able to develop and modernise in a way that is sustainable, and retained for the benefit of the community. 
 
Furthermore, paragraph 69 states that planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve places which 
promote, inter alia, opportunities for meetings between members of the community who might not otherwise 
come into contact with each other … 
 
The jobs creation at the site would also bring about social benefits. 
 
The analysis as set out above seeks to demonstrate that the proposed development is considered 
sustainable development as it will provide environmental, economic and social benefits and whilst the site is 
not within a settlement, it would involve development of an existing business and will largely take place on 
areas of existing hardstanding/land associated with that use. 
 
The proposal can be supported in principle in this case as it is development in the countryside, which is 
justifiable as it is clearly associated to the existing, established business on site. As per the supporting 
information provided by the applicant the extension is required to meet growing business needs and to 
improve seasonality of the business. By providing additional retail space and covering some of the outside 
sales area. The warehouse would allow the existing polytunnels on the site and their contents to be 
removed. In this case the semi-rural location is key to the operation of the Garden Centre and expansion of 
the site is welcomed as an alternative to relocation. 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



AGENDA 8 

RETAIL IMPACT  
 
In terms of retail impact the proposals include a significant extension to the retail sales area, however it the 
extension does not exceed 500 square metres it has not been necessary for the applicant to submit a retail 
impact assessment. 
 
An overview of both national and local planning policies direct retail development towards town centre 
locations in order to ensure viability and vitality of existing centres are not impacted by new commercial 
development.  This aim is reflected in criterion (a) of Policy DM17.  An enlarged unrestricted retail unit in this 
location could affect the vitality and viability of the local centre in Crediton as the nearest protected retail 
centre.   
 
The proposed development is for an extension to an existing business, not a new business, and there is 
therefore logically it would be unreasonable to suggest that there could be a sequentially better site for the 
application scheme. Furthermore the controls imposed regarding the use of the existing floorspace is not 
considered to be particularly clear and/or precise as set out at condition 12 pursuant to the 1992 permission 
as set out below. 
 
12) The use hereby permitted shall be strictly limited to the use of the site as garden centre and for no other 
purpose including any purpose in Class A1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use 
Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re 
enacting that Order. 
 
In terms of completing this part of the assessment (i.e. against the requirements of policy DM17 as outlined 
above) given that a retail impact assessment is not required to be submitted it is necessary to understand 
how the trading pattern with the proposed alterations will differ from the existing situation.  
 
Given that the scope of the external space to display merchandise for sale is to remain the same, albeit 
proposed to be formally covered with an Upvc roof covering, the amount of new retail floorspace is the main 
consideration.  
 
The application proposal doubles the amount of shop floorspace at the site, and proposes a larger 
proportion of the shop floor area to be used for the sale of convenience goods, fashion, clothing and 
footwear (141 square metre). In addition a small (approximately 5 square metres) concession area for the 
ice cream and confectionary sales is proposed. As a percentage of the total net sales floor area this 
amounts to 14.6 % (150/1022).   
 
With the proposed extension the applicant has confirmed that the net area for sales would be 1022 square 
metres. It is considered reasonable to reflect the requirements of policy DM17, in terms of maintaining the 
vitality and viability of other centres, to restrict the amount of floorspace for the sale and display of all 
convenience goods, fashion, clothing and footwear to a maximum of 25% of the covered floor area new 
sales. This allows the proposed arrangements put forward in this application and provides some limited 
flexibility for future trading patterns (for instance at Christmas) whilst ensuring the majority of net floor space 
is controlled so that it can be used for mainstream retail sales and in order to protect the higher order retail 
centres across the district.  
 
Please refer to condition 8, 9 and 10 which provide the safeguards as referred above.   
 
2. Design, impact on streetscene and the character and appearance of the location 
 
The site is not in a protected landscape, and whilst the buildings and the site generally are visible from the 
public highway that runs adjacent, there are no public footpaths in the locality presenting clear views of the 
site.   
 
Reflecting on the fact that the buildings are the site are located approximately 21m from the A3072 and the 
proposed ridge line of the new built form is set below that of the existing building on site, it is not considered 
that any visual harm will arise from the extension to the shop with the proposed extension sitting as a 
comfortable addition to the existing building.  

Page 44



AGENDA 9 

 
The proposed canopy over the outdoor sales area is to the rear of the existing and proposed building and, 
as such, is not highly visible from the A3072.  As there are no public rights of way to the rear of the site 
(south), this rain canopy is not highly visible from public viewpoints. The new arrangement at the access to 
the building will help mark the entrance to the building 
 
The site of the proposed warehouse is in a reasonably discrete corner of the site and where a number of 
polytunnels are located.  Whilst the proposed warehouse has more presence than the polytunnels due to its 
size, it is not considered that the building would be intrusive in this landscape. 
 
In light of the above, the proposals are considered acceptable in this instance in terms of form, scale, layout, 
detailing and choice of materials for the new build elements; and would be compatible with the surrounding 
built and natural environment and in compliance with the development plan, in particular policies DM2. 
 
3. Impact on the living conditions of nearby residential properties 
 
It would appear that the nearest unrelated residential property is Hampson Cottage just a short distance to 
the north east of the site.  Other than the flat roof cover over the existing entrance, the majority of the 
proposed works are to the south and west and away from this neighbour.   Bearing in mind the use and 
resulting noise and disturbance from the existing operation, it is not anticipated that the proposed 
development would have a significantly more harmful effect on the living conditions or amenity of that or 
other properties.   
 
4. Other matters raised 
 
1. Whilst the site is adjacent to the A3072 and there is an existing bus stop some 160m to the east, it is 

acknowledged that the existing enterprise attracts private vehicular traffic.  The plans as submitted 
confirm that the external area provides 76 car parking spaces, although these are not formally 
marked out at present. 

 
The Local Plan Part 3 (Policy DM8) Parking Standards do not specify a parking requirement for 
garden centres. However if the standards required for non food  A1 retail floorspace were applied to 
the net covered sales area 51 spaces would be required. If the same standards were applied to the 
proposed gross covered and uncovered floor areas (54 sq m x 35 sq m) 94 spaces would be 
required. It is therefore considered that 76 spaces presents an acceptable level of car parking given 
the nature of the proposed activities on the site. However due to the nature of change recently 
undertaken and as proposed by this application it is considered necessary  for the car parking area 
to be properly marked out and to include cycle parking provision and larger spaces for mobility 
impaired customers. Refer to condition 4. In summary, subject to the submission of a parking plan 
indicating suitable and accessible parking and cycling spaces, it is considered that there is sufficient 
parking for the enterprise and the relationship with the public highway is adequate to manage any 
increase in traffic likely to be attracted to the site. Finally it is noted that the Highway Authority has 
not raised objections based on the traffic generation. On this basis Policy COR9 and DM 8 are 
considered to have been satisfied. 

 
2. Policies DM2 and COR11 of the Adopted Local Plan confirms developments will not be supported if 

they would increase the risk of flooding, nor will they be supported if Sustainable Urban Drainage 
Systems (SUDS) or other similar appropriate measures are not undertaken.  

 
Following initial concerns from The Lead Local Flood Authority regards the increase in hardscape 
across the site and the resultant levels of surface water drainage the applicants have undertaken  
further survey work in terms of how the site drains. The results are set out in a report which includes 
a strategy for dealing with surface water drainage issues. It is recommended that an underground 
storage tank provided adjacent to the site of the proposed warehouse storage tank with surface 
water then released on a controlled basis. Condition 4 controls the delivery of this important 
infrastructure.   

 
 

Page 45



AGENDA 10 

3. Archaeology: Whilst the areas is sensitive, the results of the archaeological evaluation indicate that 
much of the site has been already been disturbed by the operation of the garden centre.  Therefore 
there are no concerns in terms of how the application scheme would affect any heritage assets.  

 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 3. Before the development hereby permitted is first brought into use, the parking and turning areas and 

cycle spaces shall be marked out and be available for use in accordance with plans be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Following their provision, these facilities shall 
be so retained in perpetuity for that specific use. 

 
 4. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the drainage scheme as set 

out in the Surface Water Drainage Strategy Report prepared by Aquatech (dated 30th August 2017) 
has been fully implemented and maintained as such thereafter as set in approved Report. 

  
 5. No external lighting shall be installed on site unless details of such lighting, including the intensity of 

illumination and predicted lighting contours and proposed hours of operation, have been first 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Any external lighting that is 
installed shall accord with the details as approved and retained as such thereafter. 

 
 6. Prior to the completion of the warehouse building, all rubble and associated demolition materials 

resultant from demolition of the existing polytunnel structures shall be adequately disposed of and 
removed from the site. 

 
 7. The warehouse building hereby approved shall be used only in association with and ancillary to the 

garden centre. 
 
 8. The net retail sales area of the covered retail space at the site as shown on the approved drawings 

shall not exceed 1022 square metres. 
 
 9. No more than 25% of the net sales area, as identified in the covered retail space as confirmed at 

condition 8 above shall be used for the sale and display of  convenience goods, fashion, clothing 
and/or footwear. 

 
10. The new covered external display area as shown on the approved plans shall not be enclosed other 

than by the roof hereby permitted and shall not be used for the sale and display of convenience 
goods, fashion, clothing and/or footwear. 

 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. In the interest of highway safety, and to ensure that adequate on-site facilities are available for traffic 

attracted to the site in accordance DM2 (criterion d) Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management 
Policies) and/or in accordance with guidance in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). 

 
 4. To ensure the site is drained in an acceptably sustainable manner and the drainage infrastructure is 

properly maintained. 
 

Page 46



AGENDA 11 

 5. To satisfactorily protect the character and appearance of the area, the residential amenities of nearby 
occupiers and wildlife. To comply with DM7 of the Local Plan Part 3: (Development Management 
Policies) and COR18 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1). 

 
 6. In the interests of residential amenity; to ensure that there is no significant detrimental impact on 

adjacent properties. 
 
 7. In the interest of protecting the vitality and viability of Bow and other such shopping centres in 

accordance with Policy DM19 of the Local Plan Part 3: (Development Management Policies). 
 
 8. In order to minimise the retail impact of the proposed development on the vitality and viability of 

Crediton town Centre, in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
 9. In order to minimise the retail impact of the proposed development on the vitality and viability of 

Crediton town Centre, in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
10. In order to minimise the retail impact of the proposed development on the vitality and viability of 

Crediton town Centre, in accordance with Policy DM17 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
INFORMATIVE NOTES 
 
 1. The developer must ensure compliance with the requirements relating to protected species by virtue 

of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and the Habitats Regulations.  Any operations that would 
disturb bird nesting habitat should be undertaken outside the breeding season (March to August 
inclusive). 

  
 2. Foul drainage should be kept separate from clean surface and roof water and connected to the 

public sewerage system. 
  
3. If you alter your proposals in any way, including to comply with the requirements of the Building 

Regulations, planning permission may be required. 
  
4. The Council's Waste Service should be consulted about refuse storage and collection 

arrangements. 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The application scheme is for an extension to an existing garden centre just outside of Bow, including; an 
extension to the sales area, a roof covering over an existing external area and a new warehouse; and is 
considered to supportable in principal. It is considered that the benefits of the proposals will help safeguard 
it's future without adversely affecting the retail hierarchy in the district.  The scope of the new build elements 
at the site by virtue of their overall scale, design and location are not considered to harm the semi-rural 
character and appearance of the area. The level of parking at the site is considered acceptable and no 
highway safety issues are raised. On balance the development proposals are considered to constitute 
sustainable development. Conditions are recommended to manage the arrangements for the management 
of surface water and to control the proportion of the site that can be used for the sale and display of 
convenience goods at the site.  
  
As such the proposal is considered to comply with policies COR1,  COR7, COR9, COR11 and COR18 of the 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and Policies DM1, DM2, DM8, DM17 and DM19 of the Local 
Plan Part 3 Development Management Policies. 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



AGENDA 12 

 
Plans List No. 2 

 
Application No. 17/00914/OUT 
 
Grid Ref:  277210 : 102996  
 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs G Pearcey  
   
Location: Land at NGR 277111 102951  

Sunnymead  
Copplestone  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Outline for the erection of 9 dwellings with associated access  
 
 
Date Valid:         5th June 2017 
 
 

 
 

Page 48



AGENDA 13 

Application No. 17/00914/OUT 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions and the prior signing of a S106 agreement to secure: 
 
Section 106 agreement to include: 
 
1.    Primary school contribution of £30,717 and Secondary school contribution of £5,320 as per DCC 

request. 
2.   Air Quality contribution of £39,906. To be allocated and spent towards the delivery of the 

community/sports/village hall proposed at Copplestone. 
3.   Open Space contribution of £10,845). To be allocated and spent towards the delivery of the 

community/sports/village hall proposed at Copplestone. 
4.         Financial commuted contribution toward the delivery of two affordable housing units following 

completion.  
5. Pedestrian link between the application site and the Village school/ Recreation ground campus 

areas. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This description of development for the application is for the erection of 9 dwellings with associated access. 
The application is submitted as an outline with access and the principal of delivering housing on the site for 
consideration at this stage. 
 
The site is agricultural land (classified as grade 3) and covers an area of 0.72 hectares (part of agricultural 
land which forms part of Bewsley Farm).The site is elongated piece of land, which slopes down in a south-
westerly direction towards  Sunnymead Road. It is enclosed by existing boundaries of mature hedgerows 
and trees, and located beyond the village boundary for Copplestone directly to the rear boundary of the 
Primary School site curtilage and the village recreation ground. The school is located to the south. 
 
The new vehicular access is proposed via the existing Sunnymead estate extending the section of cul-de-
sac road that currently serves no's 87-105. The existing hedgerow to this boundary is to be removed to 
create a new entrance and to extend the parking area for existing residents. A new section of hedgerow 
adjacent to this new parking area is proposed.  
 
An indicative layout showing how the 9 dwellings could be arranged across the site has been submitted in 
support of the application, although formal approval of this layout is not being sought under this application 
submission. 
 
Since the application was initially lodged, the proposals have been amended in terms of the position of the 
new opening to accommodate the access and the provisions made for surface water drainage.  
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Draft Heads of Terms as set out in email from applicant's agent dated 25th July 2017.  
Design & Access Statement prepared by Hilton Barnfield Architects 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment Report and Tree Constraints Appraisal and Plan both  prepared by Doug 
Pratt Tree Consultancy 
Ecological Appraisal Report prepared by Richard Green Ecology 
Planning Statement prepared by Bell Cornwall consultants 
 
Plans & Drawings: 
Plans prepared by Bellamy Transport Consultancy for new access arrangements. 
Indicative Masterplan drawing prepared by Hilton Barnfield Architects  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
None in relation to this site. 

Page 49



AGENDA 14 

 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR1 - Sustainable Communities 
COR3 - Meeting Housing Needs 
COR8 - Infrastructure Provision 
COR9 - Access 
COR11 - Flooding 
COR12 - Development Focus 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan (Local Plan 2) 
 
AL/DE/2 - Overall Affordable Housing Provision 
AL/DE/3 - Affordable Housing Site Target 
AL/IN/3 - Public Open Space 
AL/IN/5 - Education Provision 
AL/IN/6 - Carbon Footprint Reduction 
AL/CRE/8 - Crediton Air Quality 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
39 letters of objection to the application have been received in response to the publicity and consultation 
processes that have been undertaken. A summary of the key concerns expressed is set out below:  
 
1. Copplestone as a village is already considered to be at capacity and the development would have a 

negative impact on the village with additional strain on all services, including capacity issues at the 
Village school, and public transport provision, pollution and associated traffic problems 

2. Concern for children crossing Bewsely Hill in order to get to the school with extra traffic from the 
development. 

3.  Concern about the new access in terms of loss of existing off street car parking and capacity of the 
Sunnymead network to accommodate increased levels of traffic and associated health and safety 
concerns for existing residents 

4. There are no community facilities in Copplestone (village hall / community centre) 
5. The development will affect existing residents on the cul-de-sac in terms of how the scheme will 

affect parking opportunities  
6.  The site is outside the development boundary for Copplestone, and is considered unsustainable, as 

was the case at the Dulings Meadow site. 
7.  The village needs a village hall.  
8.  Concern about flooding arising from increased surface water run off levels from the site.  
10. The existing drainage system in the village can cope with any further development.  
11.  Cumulative impact with other developments in the village and locality  
12. Increase in traffic from the village will cause safety concerns ion the A377.  
13. The new housing proposed for the Old Abattoir site is sufficient to meet the needs in the village.  
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
COPPLESTONE PARISH COUNCIL - 14th July 2017 - Copplestone Parish Council object to the application 
for the following reasons. 
 
a.       The application is for land that is outside of any adopted development areas set by MDDC within 
Copplestone.  

Page 50



AGENDA 15 

b.      Highways. The Parish has expanded significantly over the past 15 - 20yrs. Insufficient Highway 
infrastructure already exists within the Parish and has not kept pace with the expansion of population here. It 
is felt that this development will put a further strain on the Highway. Limited information exists on any 
highways improvements that are to take place with this application. The Council note the comments 
provided by the Highways to MDDC on this application dated 27/06/17. 
c.       Copplestone Primary School. The Comments from DCC Education of the 22/06/17 are noted.  It is 
stated that Copplestone Primary School is at maximum capacity. The number of extra places that is stated 
to be generated by this development cannot be agreed to. It is felt that significantly more places would be 
required for this development. The village lacks infrastructure to deal with a development such as this. 
d.      It is felt that the character of the village would be greatly affected if the application was granted. 
e.      The application would be classed as overdevelopment. 
f.        Copplestone Parish Council note the relevant comments within appeal decision Ref: 
APP/Y1138/W/17/3167891. Many areas discussed within this appeal decision should be to be applied to this 
application  
 
Initial comments from  Highway Authority - 26th June 2017 - Observations: 
I have visited the site and have the following concerns and observations The proposed layout does not 
provide sufficient details in terms of the connection of the new road to the existing. There currently exists a 
parking lay-by at the end of the existing road on the south eastern kerb edge. The proposed drawing 
indicates that the existing kerb edge will continue into the site and will nullify the lay-by this is not acceptable 
the existing lay by will need formal termination and the new road width aligned to the existing carriageway 
edge. 
 
The Highway Authority will require details design of this section, In addition to which the Turning head 
appears to be insufficient for a refuse vehicle to turn and this should be shown with swept path analysis. The 
Highway Authority would also seek the provision of the footway from the site to the junction on the south 
eastern side currently verge. The Highway Authority would welcome a footpath leading to the playing fields 
as indicated in the application and this should be secured through the appropriate legal agreement. 
 
Further comments from Highway Authority - 15th August 2017 - Observations: 
The Highway Authority has viewed the revised drawings published on 14th August 2017. 
Drawings numbers BTC1702T-P01-P3; and P02 P2; are acceptable to the highway Authority 
And should be conditional of any consent. The Highway Authority proposed 3 conditions for consideration 
(6-8 as recommended)  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - 19th June 2017 - Contaminated Land 
 
There is no supporting information in respect of land contamination risks provided in support of this 
application. 
 
Our contaminated land and historic mapping records are not sufficiently clear at this location/for this size of 
plot. Consequently, we cannot be certain of the site history therefore we recommend as a minimum that a 
Phase I contaminated land risk assessment be carried out. This should be provided prior to determination of 
the application in order to advise on probable risks from land contamination and if further Phase II-IV 
contaminated land assessments should be provided via appropriate conditions. This is consistent with the 
introduction of a new sensitive/vulnerable land-use, in this case a proposed residential dwelling. 
 
A Phase I assessment should also provide additional information on the current status of the site including 
any contemporary potential sources of contamination e.g. heating oil tanks, asbestos containing material, 
waste/fly-tipped deposits, localised in-filling or raised ground and small vehicle workshops etc. 
 
Air Quality - No objection 
Environmental Permitting - N/A 
Drainage - No objection 
Noise & other nuisances - No objection 
Housing Standards - No comments 
Licensing - No comments 
Food Hygiene - N/A 

Page 51



AGENDA 16 

Private Water Supplies - N/A 
Health and Safety - No objection to this proposal enforced by HSE 
 
 
LEAD LOCAL FLOOD AUTHORITY - 25th August 2017 - Devon County Council's Flood and Coastal Risk 
Management Team is not a statutory consultee for the above planning application because it is not classed 
as a major development under Part 1(2) of The Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order (2015). However, we have 
been approached by the Local Planning Authority to provide advice in respect of the surface water 
drainage aspects of the above planning application, which is outlined below. 
 
Observations: 
The applicant has submitted sufficient information in relation to the surface water drainage aspects of the 
above planning application in order for it to be determined. It is recommend that the following 
pre-commencement planning conditions are imposed on any approved permission: 
 
1. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design of the 
proposed permanent surface water drainage management system has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The design of this permanent surface water 
drainage management system will be in accordance with the principles of sustainable drainage 
systems, and those set out in Preliminary Drainage Layout (Drawing No. 0663-PDL-101-B, Rev. B, 
dated 26/07/2017) 
 
Reason: To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is managed in accordance with the 
principles of sustainable drainage systems. 
 
2.  No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the full details of the adoption 
and maintenance arrangements for the proposed permanent surface water drainage management system 
have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: To ensure that the development's permanent surface water drainage management systems 
will remain fully operational throughout the lifetime of the development. 
 
3.   No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design of the 
proposed surface water drainage management system which will serve the development site for the 
full period of its construction has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority. This temporary surface water drainage management system must satisfactorily address 
both the rates and volumes, and quality, of the surface water runoff from the construction site. 
 
DEVON COUNTY EDUCATION - 21st June 2017 
Devon County Council would like to provide an education response for the application above. 
 
The proposed 9 dwellings, will generate 2.25 additional primary pupils and 1.35 Secondary Pupils  
 
Devon County Council will seek a contribution towards additional education infrastructure at the local 
primary school that serve the address of the proposed development. The primary contribution sought is 
£30,717 (based on the current DfE extension rate per pupil of £13,652) which will be used to provide 
education facilities in the Copplestone area. 
 
There is currently capacity secondary school for the number of pupils likely to be generated by the proposed 
development. Devon County Council will however seek a contribution towards secondary school transport 
due to the proposed development site being further than 2.25 miles from Queen Elizabeth's Academy Trust. 
The costs required are as follows: -  
 
2 secondary pupils 
£2.80 per day x 2 pupils x 190 academic days x 5 years = £5,320 
 
In addition to the contribution figures quoted above, the County Council would wish to recover legal costs 
incurred as a result of the preparation and completion of the Agreement.   

Page 52



AGENDA 17 

 
Legal costs are not expected to exceed £500.00 where the agreement relates solely to the education 
contribution.  However, if the agreement involves other issues or if the matter becomes protracted, the legal 
costs are likely to be in excess of this sum. 
 
HOUSING ENABLING & BUSINESS SUPPORT MANAGER - 8th June 2017 -  
 
Housing Demand for Copplestone as of 01/06/2017   
  
Housing Demand for Copplestone as of 01/06/2017     
Bed Need Band C  Band D  Band E  Grand Total 
1                      2            5              5   12 
2                                              4               4 
3                      1            1                2   4 
4                      1                            1   2 
Grand Total            4            6               12   22 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main issued in the determination of this application are: 
 
1. Principle of development, including 5 year land supply - Policy Issues. 
2. Local context considerations, impact on landscape character and visual amenities and 

density of development 
3. Highways, Movement & Air Quality Issues. 
4. Affordable housing provision and Section 106 matters 
5. Other matters  
6. Summary & Planning balance 
 
1. Principle of development, including 5 year land supply - Policy Issues 
 
COR 17 / COR18: 
Policy COR18 seeks to control development outside defined settlement limits to appropriate rural uses, 
excluding new market housing.   
 
The application scheme is for up to 9 houses and is not being proposed for 100% affordable housing.  
 
Given that the site for the application scheme is beyond the settlement boundary of the village it is 
considered to be contrary to policies COR18 and COR17 of Mid Devon's Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1). 
 
In terms of determining how much weight can be given to the fact the application site is not as a matter of 
principal supported by development plan policy members will be aware that Mid Devon has been found not 
to be able to demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply. The National Planning Policy Framework (referred 
to NPPF hereafter) advises that where a five year land supply of deliverable housing sites cannot be 
demonstrated, policies on housing supply should not be considered up to date.  This includes settlement 
limits identifying areas which are open countryside and those which are within defined settlements, and 
therefore it would not be reasonable to automatically refuse the application because it is contrary to these 
policies and the requirements of Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) are 
triggered.  
 
The guidance in the NPPF states that where development plan policies are considered to be out of date, 
planning permission should be granted unless adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the NPPF as a whole. Housing applications 
need therefore to be considered in the context of sustainable development, unless specific policies indicate 
development should be restricted.  This is reflected in policy DM1 of the Mid Devon Local Plan part 3 
(Development Management Policies) which takes a positive approach to sustainable development, allowing 
development to be approved wherever possible.   
 

Page 53



AGENDA 18 

The remaining sections of this report (2-6) consider the impacts of the development, the extent to which the 
scheme is complaint with the range of other development plan policies, and finally weigh in the balance the 
benefits of the proposal against identified harm. 
 
Other Policies: 
Other policies in the development plan that need to be considered in the assessment of the application 
scheme  are policy COR1 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (LP1) seeks to manage growth in a sustainable 
way to support the diverse needs of communities, including the provision of affordable housing and making 
the most efficient use of land.  Policy COR3 seeks to meet the diverse housing needs of the community, 
including a target provision of approximately 100 affordable dwellings per year across the District. COR8 
with COR9 seek to improve accessibility by reducing the need to travel by car and increasing public 
transport use, cycling and walking. Policies relating to affordable housing are set out policy AL/DE/3 which 
requires as a general requirement that 35% affordable housing is required on sites of more than 2 dwellings.  
Policy AL/IN/3 of the Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan Document (AIDPD) seeks to provide 
at least 60 square metres of public open space for each new market dwelling. Policy AL/IN/5 states that new 
housing development must cover the cost of additional education facilities where the development would 
lead to existing facilities being oversubscribed. Policy AL/IN/3 requires development to contribute to the 
provision and maintenance of existing and new open space. Policy AL/CRE/8 requires development which 
would result in increased levels of traffic passing through Crediton and which would worsen existing air 
quality in the Management Area to mitigate its likely impact on air quality by making a financial contribution 
toward the implementation of the mitigation measures contained in the town's Air Quality Action Plan and in 
accordance with the adopted Air Quality SPD. 
 
2.  Local context considerations, impact on landscape character and visual amenities and density of 
development 
 
The application scheme is an outline application and proposes a maximum of 9 dwellings across a gross site 
area of approximately 0.72 hectares. 
 
The site a well-defined area of pasture surrounded on all sides by established hedgerows. The western 
edge to the site defines the boundary with existing residential areas of the village, the southern boundary is 
with the primary school /playing field and recreation ground, which is densely wooded adjacent to the school 
grounds to the south but more sparse adjacent to the playing field/recreation ground.  A drainage ditch runs 
along the length of the southern boundary. To the north is a continuous and well established hedgerow with 
open pasture further to the north and east.  
 
The design and access statement confirms that the site was selected following a review of a number of 
development opportunities across the applicants land holding. The site is presented as an accessible and 
sustainable location where development can be carefully integrated within the village envelope without 
resulting in environmental harm and or damage and well placed in connection to the village facilities.  An 
illustrative masterplan layout to set out how the site could be developed. A number of the key principles are 
set out below: 
 
The units are pulled away from the southern boundary to avoid overshadowing for future occupiers and 
damage to the existing hedgerow. 
 
The plot dimensions, proportions and positioning of the buildings within the plot are generous attempting to 
reflects the principles of garden village design and avoid town cramming, providing sufficient space to 
accommodate generous rear gardens in order to safeguard the common boundary with the school campus.            
 
The new road is indicated with a hammer head for vehicle turning and while currently there is no policy for 
further growth to the village the masterplan does not prohibit this possibility in the long term.  
 
In the south west corner of the site it is proposed to accommodate an open attenuation basin set within a 
defined open space area. 
 
All existing hedgerows are to be retained with grassland corridors immediately adjacent to maintain existing 
habitats, with the exception of the western boundary.  

Page 54



AGENDA 19 

 
The inclusion for pedestrian link to and from the primary school and the playing field /recreation ground is 
also shown. 
 
The layout safeguards all mature trees during the construction and operational phases of the development. 
 
This layout is not for approval at this stage as the detailed layout would be approved at the reserved matters 
stage, along with the layout, appearance and landscaping details, however it seeks to demonstrate what the 
physical impacts of the development would be on the site and the wider locality. 
 
The Mid Devon Landscape Character Assessment identifies the application area and the northern edge of 
Copplestone within Landscape Character Type 3B: Lower rolling farmed and settled valley slopes.  A 
detailed description of the characteristics of this type of landscape is set out in the aforementioned 
document. 
 
The site displays a number of the characteristics that you would expect to see given its pastoral use and it's 
location on the edge of the settlement boundary of the village.  Although the appearance of the site would 
change, it is considered that the development of the site for a limited number of new homes could be 
brought forward in a respectful manner to the local landscape character of the area integrating landscaping 
features across the development, area including the area to accommodate the SUDs scheme, and the short 
footpath link to the School campus. Given the local context the visual impact will be restricted to a local 
impact and sitting as an extension to the existing Sunnymead housing estate. 
 
The level of development equates to approximately 8 dwellings per hectare.   
 
In summary, at this stage of the planning process the applicant is not seeking to provide the level of 
information in terms of the sitting, layout  and design of the scheme to enable an assessment to be 
undertaken in terms of resolving if the criteria outlined at policy DM2, DM8 and DM14 have been 
satisfactorily met. However based on the information within the Design and Access statement which is 
overviewed above it is considered by officers that if the application was to be supported at this outline stage 
the level of development proposed (up to 9 dwellings) could reasonably be expected to be delivered in a 
manner which would sit comfortably within the locality, be respectful to the existing houses adjacent and not 
adversely affect the landscape character and/or visual amenities. As part of this process the applicant is 
advised that parking provision within a courtyard type arrangement would not be supported from a policy 
point of view. 
 
3. Highways, Movement & Air Quality Issues 
 
There are a number of aspects to consider under this part of the assessment as follows. The site is directly 
adjacent to the village boundary, with the school site located to the south, adjacent to the full length of the 
application site boundary. 
 
Pedestrian access from the site to the village school and recreation ground could be facilitated directly from 
the site.  Pedestrian access to the village shop, pub and train station would be achievable without passing 
over the busy A377.  
 
From a more regional point of view there are reasonably frequent bus and train services from the village and 
serving Exeter, Crediton North Tawton and Oakhampton. 
 
Given the fairly modest level of development proposed, and based on traffic generation data, the predicted 
additional traffic arising from the development would should not exceed 9 additional vehicular trips in the am 
or pm peak. Given the predicted low levels of additional traffic no objections are raised by the Highway 
Authority on capacity or highway safety grounds grounds. Finally it is noted that the position of the new 
access into the site has moved in order to protect the existing parking area for existing residents.  
 
 
 
 

Page 55



AGENDA 20 

With regards to Air Quality, policy AL/CRE/8 is relevant given the site location in relation to the Crediton Air 
Quality Management Area. In response to the requirements of this policy the applicant has agreed to make a 
financial contribution of up to £39,906.00 to be provided towards supporting initiatives to manage air quality 
(see also section below). 
 
In summary the proposals to access the development site are considered acceptable by the Highway 
Authority and therefore there are not considered any reasons on highway safety and/or capacity ground to 
refuse the application. In addition a pedestrian link to the primary school is achievable from within the site 
with safe and convenient pedestrian access to other village services from the site. On this basis the 
proposals are considered to be in accordance with policies COR9. 
 
4. Affordable housing provision and Section 106 matters 
 
Given the quantum of development proposed, the policy requirement (following guidance issued at national 
level) is for the applicant to make a financial contribution towards off site delivery.  The applicant has agreed 
to this.  The scope of off- site education related contributions reflect the comments and advice provided by 
Devon County Council in their role as statutory consultee on these matters is also agreed  The scope of the 
off-site contributions towards open space and air quality initiatives have been calculated using the formula 
set out in the respective Supplementary Planning Guidance Notes to support AL/CRE/8 and AL/IN/3 and the 
applicant has also agreed to these payments as summarised in the recommendation section at the start of 
this report. If planning permission is granted the detailed heads of terms for each obligation would be drafted 
accordingly reflecting the recommendation as set at the start of this report. 
 
In terms of the off- site contributions members will note in lieu of open space to be delivered on site the 
contributions is to be used to assist with the delivery of the facilities at the sports and re recreation adjacent 
to the site. In addition given that the delivery off these facilities will reduce the number of journeys to other 
sports and recreation facilities elsewhere in the district (ie to Crediton Sports centre) it is recommended that 
the air quality contribution in this instance can also be directed to delivering these facilities. In addition to 
mitigating the impacts of the development proposed the delivery and improvement of these facilities will be 
of benefit to wider community in Copplestone.  
 
5. Other Matters 
 
Contaminated Land Issues: As stated above if planning permission was granted at this outline stage a 
phase1 assessment would be required in advance of any reserved matters submissions, which would be 
required to include mitigation strategies in the event that any contamination is found. Given the historic use 
this is considered an acceptable approach.   
 
Flood Risk Issues: Storm water run-off generated by the proposed development will be intercepted by a new 
storm network and conveyed to a retention basin located down slope of the site close to the site entrance on 
the western boundary, as shown on the plans. The technical details of it (size and control mechanisms) can 
ensure that the run off is no greater than the green field run off rates, plus an addition allowance for climate 
change. The Lead Flood Authority has recommended a number of conditions to ensure that the framework 
that has been submitted for can be progressed through to detailed scheme in an acceptable manner.  
 
Ecological Impacts:  The applicant has submitted information regards the quality of the trees across the site 
and has proposed a masterplan for the detailed development phases which retains all existing trees. Clearly 
the application scheme will have an impact on the ecological value of the site resulting in the loss of 
approximately 0.75 ha of improved grassland and a section of hedgerow at the west boundary to create the 
access point. Survey work to determine the extent of the ecological value of the site has been undertaken as 
summarised in report prepared an Ecologist. The survey work did not uncover any bat roosts across the site 
and/or locations for nesting birds but it is likely that birds and bats use this site as a movement corridor. The 
site hedgerows were surveyed for dormice and their presence was evident.  The report includes a series of 
recommendations to manage the site's development in order to minimise the impact of and development on 
its ecological value.   
 
 
 

Page 56



AGENDA 21 

In summary the survey work undertaken indicates that the application scheme could be accommodated 
without resulting in significant adverse impact on the ecological and wildlife value of the site, and the 
recommendations outlined in the report will be secured by condition.  Furthermore it is noted that no 
objections have been raised from Natural England.   
 
Heritage Impact: Given the site location the application proposals raises no heritage impacts which require 
further investigation and analysis.  
 
Cumulative impact on Copplestone: Concern has been expressed by local stakeholders and the Parish 
Council as to the impact that the proposals will have on Copplestone and the facilities that are within the 
village given the growth that has occurred in recent years and the planned growth that has now been 
permitted on the Old Abattoir for an additional 40 house adjacent to the Shambles housing estate and under 
LPA ref: 16/01888/MOUT.  
 
Of concern (to those responding to this application) in terms of the existing facilities is how the village school 
would accommodate any additional pupil places. However given the relatively modest amount of new 
development that is proposed the County Council education department has confirmed in it's consultation 
response that up to an additional 3 primary places at the primary school would be required to serve the 
development and up to 2 secondary school places. With regards to the impact on the Primary School, the 
school is a popular one form intake and has historically operated close to capacity (Capacity is 210 with 199 
pupils currently on the roll). Therefore in addition to the planned and permitted planned development at the 
Old Abattoir site a further 13 spaces would need to be provided. This would be equal to the provision of an 
additional 2 pupils per year group across the school roll. The applicant has agreed to make a contribution 
towards to funding improvements that are required to accommodate any additional capacity to serve the 
development, in accordance with the supplementary planning guidance published by Devon County Council, 
as was the case with the scheme at the Old Abbatoir site.  
 
Although some local residents and the Parish Council remain very sceptical as to the legitimacy of the 
published guidance which the Education Authority are required to apply in the determination of planning 
applications such as this case the applicant has agreed as part to meet the requirements of this guidance 
and the specific advice that they have provided regards the determination of this application.  
 
The applicant has agreed to make a reasonably significant contribution towards (approximately £50,000) 
facilities off site  which could be used to assist the delivery of the sports village / community centre building 
which is to be delivered on the existing recreation ground adjacent to this application site. The lack of 
facilities and community meeting spaces in the village is a matter that has been raised by local stakeholders 
in response to the local consultation undertaken on this application.  
 
The other local matter that has been raised is the fact that this application is on land outside of the 
Copplestone Village boundary and should therefore be refused planning permission as was the application 
for 60 houses on the Dulings farm site (LPA ref: 16/00924/MOUT) following a recent planning appeal. The 
following section of this report completes the planning balance for this application, but there are clear 
differences between this application and the scheme on the Dulings site as summarised below under the 
three main headings as set out. 
 
1. Land use issues:  This application proposes a low density modest development (of 0.7 ha as 

opposed to a major site specific scheme 3.8 ha Dulings).  In terms of the grade of agricultural land 
the site is less valuable. 

2. Visual and Landscape character impacts :From a visual impact point of view this low density 
scheme will sit more comfortably with the existing built form of the village flanked by the Primary 
school campus to the south, thus not presenting as intrusively within the rural landscape/countryside 
/edge of village setting. 

3. Environmental Impacts: The existing trees, softscape and hedgerows to the site boundaries will be 
largely unaffected with only the hedgerow on the western boundary to be removed and partially 
replaced to accommodate the new access arrangements. No surface water management concerns 
are raised. 

 
  

Page 57



AGENDA 22 

New Homes Bonus: The proposed dwellings would be eligible for counting towards the New Homes 
Bonus. If the New Homes Bonus is distributed across Council Tax Bands in the same way as in 
2015, the award for each house would be £1,028 per year.  Therefore if the Bonus continues to be 
paid for 5 years this development would generate £46,260.00.  

 
6. Summary & Planning balance 
 
The overall thrust of Government policy as set out in the NPPF is to encourage the delivery of sustainable 
development and requires local authorities to boost significantly the supply of housing. The NPPF requires 
that where Local Plan policies are considered to be out of date (see above), planning permission should be 
granted unless adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits 
when assessed against the NPPF as a whole.  Your officers consider that the test as outlined at paragraph 
14 of the NPPF, is capable of having being met by this application proposal.  
 
The application is for a modest scheme of 9 houses and will assist the delivery of affordable housing off site 
both of which are considered to represent an economic and social benefit.   Other benefits for the locality 
include financial contributions towards enhancing the range of existing sports and community facilities on the 
Bewsley Hill community playing field site and towards the education facilities that would be required at the 
Village primary school and the secondary school in Crediton. 
 
Within the community there are concerns as to the impact that the occupiers of the new development will 
have upon existing services in the village in particular the primary school. The Parish Council do not 
consider that the application could be considered to be sustainable development.   
 
In terms of the assessment of the application at this outline stage it is not considered that the development 
would harm the overall character and visual amenities of the area and it is considered that a detailed 
scheme could be designed for the development area would sit comfortably and be respectful to it's 
neighbours and the site's context just beyond the existing village settlement boundary. A pedestrian link is 
proposed as part of the application scheme that will form a short direct link back to Bewsley Hill, and 
importantly provide an off road direct route to the primary school and the Village recreation ground.  
 
In summary the impacts of the development have been considered very carefully reflecting on the advice 
provided by the range of statutory consultees and no specific harmful impacts have been identified that are 
not capable of being satisfactorily resolved in terms of on-site or off-site mitigation. These benefits of the 
application have been summarised above and are all considered to carry some weight in the decision 
making process. 
 
Therefore in conclusion and notwithstanding that there is no policy support for the application scheme by 
COR17/COR18 it is considered by officers that on balance a case could be made to support this application 
proposal, and therefore a recommendation for approval subject to the completion of legal agreement under 
Section 106 of Act to cover the matters as set out above and conditions is proposed for consideration by 
Members. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. Before any part of the development hereby permitted is begun, detailed drawings to an appropriate 

scale of the layout, scale and appearance of the building(s), and the landscaping of the site 
(hereinafter called the Reserved Matters) shall be submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 
 2. Application(s) for approval for all the Reserved Matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority 

before the expiration of 3 calendar months from the date of this permission. 
 
 3. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of two years from the date of 

this permission or within 6 calendar months of the date of the approval of the last of the reserved 
matters, whichever is sooner. 

 
  

Page 58



AGENDA 23 

4. The details required to be submitted by condition 1 shall include the following additional information: 
all boundary treatments, existing and proposed site levels, finished floor levels, and sections through 
the site indicating the relationship of the proposed development with existing development. 

 
 5. No development shall begin until a Construction Management Plan has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority to include: 
   
 (a) the timetable of the works; 
 (b) daily hours of construction; 
 (c) any road closure; 
 (d) hours during which delivery and construction traffic arrive at and depart from the site; 
 (e) the compound/location where all building materials, finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, 

packing materials and waste will be stored during construction; 
 (f) areas on-site where delivery vehicles and construction traffic will load or unload building materials, 

finished or unfinished products, parts, crates, packing materials and waste 
 (g) details of wheel washing facilities and road sweeping obligations together with dust suppression 

proposals. 
 (h) hedgerow and tree protection measures: including an Arboricultural Method Statement and plans 

showing canopies and root protection areas for all trees on the site and on the site boundaries 
   
 Works shall take place only in accordance with the approved Construction Management Plan. 
 
 6. No occupation of the development shall take place on site until the off-site highway works for the 

provision of a footway to the south side of Sunnymead, and an extended area parking provision as set 
on Bellamy Transport Consultancy drawing P-02 have been designed, approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and have been constructed and made available for use. 

 
 7. The proposed estate road, cycleways, footways, footpaths, verges, junctions, street lighting, sewers, 

rains, retaining walls, service routes, surface water outfall, road maintenance/vehicle overhang 
margins, embankments, visibility splays, accesses, car parking and street furniture shall be 
constructed and laid out in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority in writing before their construction begins. For this purpose, plans and sections 
indicating, as appropriate, the design, layout, levels, gradients, materials and method of construction 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 8. The occupation of any dwelling shall not take place until the following works have been carried out in 

accordance with the approved details: 
   
 A) The cul-de-sac carriageway including the vehicle turning head shall have been laid out, kerbed, 

drained and constructed up to and including base course level, the ironwork set to base course level 
and the sewers, manholes and service crossings completed; 

 B) The spine road and cul-de-sac footways and footpaths which provide that dwelling with direct 
pedestrian routes to an existing highway maintainable at public expense have been constructed up to 
and including base course level; 

 C) The cul-de-sac visibility splays have been laid out to their final level; 
 D) The street lighting for the spine road and cul-de-sac and footpaths has been erected and is 

operational; 
 E) The car parking and any other vehicular access facility required for the dwelling by this permission 

has/have been completed; 
 F) The verge and service margin and vehicle crossing on the road frontage of the dwelling have been 

completed with the highway boundary properly defined; 
 G) The street nameplates for the spine road and cul-de-sac have been provided and erected. 
 
 9. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design of the 

proposed permanent surface water drainage management system has been submitted to, and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 
 

Page 59



AGENDA 24 

The design of this permanent surface water drainage management system will be in accordance with 
the principles of sustainable drainage systems, and those set out in Preliminary Drainage Layout 
(Drawing No. 0663-PDL-101-B, Rev. B, dated 26/07/2017).  

 
10. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the full details of the adoption 

and maintenance arrangements for the proposed permanent surface water drainage management 
system have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Such 
arrangements shall be in accordance with the approved details. 

 
11. No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until the detailed design of the 

proposed surface water drainage management system which will serve the development site for the 
full period of its construction has been submitted to, approved in writing by, the Local Planning 
Authority and installed in accordance with the approved details. This temporary surface water 
drainage management system must satisfactorily address both the rates and volumes, and quality, of 
the surface water runoff from the construction site. 

 
12. The development shall take place only in accordance with the recommendations in section 4 of the 

Ecological Appraisal Report dated May 2017 prepared by Richard Green Ecology. 
 
13. Prior to the commencement of any development a Phase 1 intrusive investigation shall be completed 

in accordance with a scheme, to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, 
whether or not it originates on the site submitted and approved in writing by to the Local Planning 
AuthorityThe investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a 
written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing 
of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include:  

    
 (i) A survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;  
 (ii) An assessment of the potential risks to:  
    
 - human health,  
  - property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service 

lines and pipes,  
  - adjoining land,  
 - groundwaters and surface waters,  
  - ecological systems,  
  - archeological sites and ancient monuments;  
    
 (iii) An appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).  
    
 This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures 

for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'.  
 
14. Following the completion of requirements of condition 13 if necessary a detailed remediation scheme 

to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human 
health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment shall be prepared, and 
is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include all works 
to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and 
site management procedures. The scheme shall ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated 
land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land 
after remediation. 

 
15. The approved remediation scheme shall be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 

commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation. The Local Planning 
Authority shall be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme 
works. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out shall be produced, submitted 
to and subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Page 60



AGENDA 25 

REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The application was submitted as an outline application in accordance with the provisions of Article 3 

and 4 of the Town and County Planning (General Development Procedure) Order, 1995, as amended 
by Circular 1/06. 

 
 2. In accordance with the provisions of Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, however the allowable 
timescale to comply with the terms of the condition have been shortened in order to seek to accelerate 
the delivery of the development. 

 
 3. In accordance with the provisions of Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, however the allowable 
timescale to comply with the terms of the condition have been shortened in order to seek to accelerate 
the delivery of the development. 

 
 4. To enable the Local Planning Authority to consider whether adequate provision is being made for the 

matters referred to in the condition. 
 
 5. To ensure adequate facilities are available on site during the construction period in the interests of 

highway safety and to protect the amenities of existing residents, in accordance with Policy DM2 of 
the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
 6. To minimise the impact of the development on the highway network in accordance with Paragraph 32 

of National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 7. To ensure that adequate information is available for the proper consideration of the detailed 

proposals. 
 
 8. To ensure that adequate on site facilities are available for all traffic attracted to the site during the 

construction period, in the interest of the safety of all users of the adjoining public highway and to 
protect the amenities of the adjoining residents in accordance with Policy DM2 of the Mid Devon Local 
Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
 9. To ensure that surface water runoff from the development is managed in accordance with the 

principles of sustainable drainage systems in order to minimise flood risk and provide sustainable 
drainage on site in accordance with Policies COR11 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 
1) and DM2 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
10. To ensure that the development's permanent surface water drainage management systems will 

remain fully operational throughout the lifetime of the development in accordance with Policies COR11 
of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and DM2 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies). 

 
11. To ensure that surface water runoff from the construction site is appropriately managed so as to not 

increase the flood risk, or pose water quality issues, to the surrounding area in accordance with 
Policies COR11 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and DM2 of the Mid Devon Local 
Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
12. To ensure protected species are not harmed by the in accordance with Policies COR2 of the Mid 

Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and DM2 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
13. To protect the occupiers of the houses from risk from contamination in accordance with Policy DM7 of 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
14. To protect the occupiers of the houses from risk from contamination in accordance with Policy DM7 of 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

Page 61



AGENDA 26 

 
15. To protect the occupiers of the houses from risk from contamination in accordance with Policy DM7 of 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The development is considered to be acceptable in that it represents a sustainable form of development in 
accordance with the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework, with the benefits of the scheme 
in terms of the provision of housing, contributions towards the delivery of affordable housing off site, and 
general off-site infrastructure provision carrying significant weight when set against the site specific changes 
that would arise. Subject to the scope of mitigation proposed and conditions, the development is not 
considered to have an unacceptable impact on highway safety, the environment including flood risk and 
protected species and/or the amenities of local residents within locality. Financial contributions are to be 
provided to assist with the delivery of improvements to public open space and community facilities and, 
education facilities off -site and the development attracts the payment of a New Homes Bonus.  
   
The development is considered to be in accordance with Policies COR1, COR2 and COR9 of the Mid Devon 
Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), AL/DE/3, AL/DE/4, AL/DE/5 and AL/IN/3 of the Allocations and 
Infrastructure Development Plan Document (Local Plan Part 2), DM1 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies) and the National Planning Policy Framework as a whole. The 
proposed development is considered to be contrary to Policies COR17 and COR18 of the Mid Devon Core 
Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and AL/DE/6 of the Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan Document 
(Local Plan Part 2) as it is outside any defined settlement boundary and is not for 100% affordable housing 
(or demonstrated to be cross-subsidised).  However, the development plan has been found to be 
inconsistent with the policies of the National Planning Policy Framework by reason of its failure to properly 
identify and plan for the full objectively assessed housing need for the District and the Council has been 
found to currently not have a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites. Limited weight is therefore placed 
on these development plan policies. The benefits of the scheme are considered to outweigh any harm and 
the development is considered to be in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework as a whole. 
 
 
 

Page 62



AGENDA 27 

 
 

Plans List No. 3 
 
Application No. 17/01108/OUT 
 
Grid Ref:  301780 : 115187  
 
Applicant: Mr M Rowe  
   
Location: Land and Buildings at NGR 301748 115242  

North-East of Twin Oaks  
Uplowman  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Outline for the erection of a dwelling and new vehicular access  
 
 
Date Valid:         7th July 2017 
 
 

 
 

Page 63



AGENDA 28 

Application No. 17/01108/OUT 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Refuse permission. 
 
CLLR RAY RADFORD HAS REQUESTED THAT THIS APPLICATION BE DETERMINED BY THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE FOR THE FOLLOWING REASON: 
 
In order to consider whether Uplowman is a sustainable settlement suitable for small scale development 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposal is an outline application for the erection of 1 dwelling on land on the eastern edge of the village 
of Uplowman, with a new vehicular access from the Class C road to the north-west of the site.  The 
proposed access would be central to the site with visibility splays.  Due to a pre-existing highway verge, only 
the point of access itself would require hedge removal. 
 
The existing agricultural access would remain to serve the agricultural land to the rear of the site.   
 
Only the principle of the erection of the dwelling and the access are to be determined under this outline 
application with layout, scale and appearance of the dwelling and landscaping of the site reserved for later 
consideration under a reserved matters application. 
 
The site comprises approximately 0.2 hectares of agricultural pasture land with a field gate access.  There is 
one dwelling to the north-west which is approximately 150 metres away from other residential development 
fronting the road leading into the village to the east, the land between, including the site, being agricultural. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Planning statement 
Access statement 
Phase 1 habitat survey report 
Reptile survey report 
Foul drainage assessment form 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
81/00320/OUT - Outline for the erection of a dwelling  - REFUSE date 28th April 1981 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR1 - Sustainable Communities 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR3 - Meeting Housing Needs 
COR9 - Access 
COR11 - Flooding 
COR12 - Development Focus 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan (Local Plan 2) 
 
AL/IN/3 - Public Open Space 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



AGENDA 29 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM8 - Parking 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Highway Authority - 20th July 2017 - Observations: 
The site has been subject to pre-application advice and the Highway Authority has no objection in principle. 
The Applicants agent during the process of pre-advice offered a link from the village hall through the site to 
link to the off road pedestrian access to the primary school. It is noted that this offer does not form part of the 
application, however concerns have been raised by the school and residents with regard to walking the 
children along the road and such a route from the Village Hall would be a welcome addition to pedestrian 
safety and reduce conflict. The Highway Authority would wish to see such land and link made available to 
mitigate the increased risk of conflict. 
 
The access visibility and traffic generations are not contested therefore should consent be granted the 
following conditions should be imposed. 
 
1. The site access road shall be hardened, surfaced, drained and maintained thereafter to the 

satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority for a distance of not less than 6.00 metres back from its 
junction with the public highway 

 
Reason: To prevent mud and other debris being carried onto the public highway 
 
2. Visibility splays shall be provided, laid out and maintained for that purpose at the site access in 

accordance with the drawing BTC17018P01/P3 with no objections to visibility greater than 0.60 
metres above the adjacent carriageway/drive level. 

 
Reason: To provide adequate visibility from and of emerging vehicles. 
 
3. In accordance with details that shall previously have been submitted to, and approved by, the Local 

Planning Authority, provision shall be made within the site for the disposal of surface water so that 
none drains on to any County Highway 

Reason: In the interest of public safety and to prevent damage to the highway 
 
4. On-Site Highway Works The on-site highway works for the provision of a footway link between the 

boundary of the Village Hall land and the pedestrian access to the Primary School has been 
designed , approved in writing and made available for use before any other part of the development 
is occupied. 

 
Reason: To ensure that adequate facilities are available in accordance with paragraph 32 of NPPF. 
 
Environment Agency standing advice - Operational development less than 1ha within flood zone 1 - no 
consultation required. 
 
Environmental Health - 20th July 2017 -  
Contaminated Land - No objection 
Air Quality - No objection 
Environmental Permitting - N/A 
Drainage - No objection 
Noise & other nuisances - No objection 
Housing Standards - No comment 
Licensing - No comments 
Food Hygiene - N/A 
Private Water Supplies - No comments 
Health and Safety - No objection enforced by HSE 

Page 65



AGENDA 30 

 
Devon Historic Environment Service - 7th August 2017 
The proposed development site lies in a landscape where prehistoric activity is recorded in vicinity, in the 
form of barrows and enclosures, as well as across the wider landscape. As such, groundworks for the 
construction of the proposed development have the potential to expose and destroy archaeological and 
artefactual deposits associated with the known nearby prehistoric activity. 
 
For this reason and in accordance with paragraph 141 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012) I 
would advise that any consent your Authority may be minded to issue should carry the standard condition: 
 
1. No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme 
of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted by 
the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.'  The development shall be carried out at all times in 
strict accordance with the approved scheme, or such other details as may be subsequently agreed in writing 
by the District Planning Authority. 
Reason: 'To ensure, in accordance with paragraph 141 of the National Planning Policy Framework and the 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3: Development Management Policy DM27 that an appropriate record is made of 
archaeological evidence that may be affected by the development. 
Uplowman Parish Council - 27th July 2017 - I write to inform you that the above application was discussed 
at our full council meeting on 20th July.  This application is for a new dwelling and therefore is contrary to 
Uplowman PC's development policy that no new dwellings should be permitted in the parish. 
 
Uplowman is not a sustainable location for growth because it has only one of the three essential services 
necessary for new housing development. It does not have either a shop or frequent public transport service 
(there is just one bus a week). Accessibility to a wide range of services is poor and there is a high 
dependency on the usage of the private car. 
 
Some discrepancies were noted in the application.  Firstly, the highway is stated as having a 30mph 
restriction; in fact there is no restriction and therefore the visibility splay should be greater than that required 
for an urban road.  Secondly, the application refers to doing tests for foul waste whereas there is a public 
sewer adjacent to the site.  Thirdly, a parishioner has suggested that ecological surveys made over longer 
time periods would identify a range of wildlife not recorded in the submitted survey. 
 
Whilst having some sympathy with the applicant, the councillors were unanimous in their opposition and this 
council therefore objects to the application. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
3 objections summarised as follows: 
 
1. The application for 8 dwellings behind the Beeches was rejected by planning committee on the 

grounds of its unsustainability, the local plan and the policy of the Parish not to allow development.  
If granted, the decision would go against these policies. 

2. In 2015 an application for a bungalow was refused as it was contrary to policy and sustainability 
objectives.  This was dismissed at appeal, the Inspector making reference to policies regarding 
sustainability and the non-village status of Uplowman. 

3. Any development in Uplowman would set a precedent for more development. 
 
7 letters of support summarised as follows: 
 
1. The land is suitable for a dwelling and would have a linear road frontage in keeping with surrounding 

properties. 
2. The development would be infill. 
3. The house is not overlooked and will not overlook other properties. 
4. Access is good with clear visibility. 
5. A single dwelling would not affect the limited infrastructure of the village. 
6. There is mains drainage in the village. 
 

Page 66



AGENDA 31 

 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main issues in determining this application are: 
 
1. Principle of development including 5 year housing land supply and sustainability 
2. Access  
3. Indicative layout, including parking and potential effects on neighbouring residents 
4. Landscape, visual amenity, ecology, archaeology 
5. Drainage 
6. Public open space contribution and other financial considerations 
7. Planning balance 
 
1. Principle of development including 5 year housing land supply and sustainability 
 
Policy COR1 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1)) seeks sustainable growth which enhances 
the self-sufficiency of communities and provides access to education, jobs and sustainable transport.  It 
seeks to provide accessible forms of development that reduce the need to travel by car and are integrated 
with public transport and other sustainable modes of travel and allow for ease of movement. 
 
Policy COR12 focuses development on the towns and states that other defined settlements should have 
only limited development to meet local needs and promote rural regeneration.    
 
Policy COR17 provides a definition of villages with defined settlement limits and sets out the type and scale 
of development that is acceptable within defined settlement limits and permitted on allocations outside 
settlement limits.  These villages are characterised by having some local facilities and employment and 
access to public transport.  Outside defined settlements, policy COR18 seeks to control development to 
appropriate rural uses including affordable housing to meet local needs (which can be cross-subsidised by 
market housing where necessary in accordance with policy DM9 of the Local Plan 3 (Development 
Management Policies).  
 
The development is proposed on agricultural land in the countryside.  The site is not allocated and is not 
being proposed for affordable housing.  The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to policies 
COR17 and COR18 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy. 
 
However, Members will be aware that Mid Devon has been found not to be able to demonstrate a 5 year 
housing land supply.   The NPPF advises that where a five year land supply of deliverable housing sites 
cannot be demonstrated, policies on housing supply should not be considered up to date.  This includes 
settlement limits identifying areas which are open countryside and those which are within defined 
settlements.   
 
Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states that where development plan policies are considered to be out of date, 
planning permission should be granted unless adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the NPPF as a whole or specific policies in the 
NPPF indicate development should be restricted.  Housing applications need therefore to be considered in 
the context of sustainable development, unless specific policies indicate development should be restricted.   
 
Policies COR17 and COR18 are directly relevant to the supply of housing in the District and are now 
considered to be out of date.  This does not mean that Mid Devon's policies must be cast aside, but the 
weight given to them is proportionate to their consistency with the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF). 
 
The NPPF contains a presumption in favour of sustainable development.  It requires local authorities to 
"boost significantly the supply of housing" and to consider housing applications in the context of the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development.  To promote development in rural areas, housing should 
be located where it will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities.  This is reflected in policy DM1 
of the Local Plan 3 Development Management Policies which takes a positive approach to sustainable 
development, allowing development to be approved wherever possible.   

Page 67



AGENDA 32 

 
The NPPF states that to achieve sustainable development, economic, social and environmental gains 
should be sought jointly and simultaneously through the planning system.  The planning system should play 
an active role in guiding development to sustainable solutions.  Planning should actively manage patterns of 
growth to make the fullest possible use of public transport, walking and cycling, and focus significant 
development in locations that are or can be made sustainable. 
 
At paragraph 55, the NPPF states that to promote sustainable development in rural areas, housing should 
be located where it will enhance or maintain the vitality of rural communities.  For example, where there are 
groups of smaller settlements, development in one village may support services in a village nearby.  Local 
planning authorities should avoid new isolated homes in the countryside unless there are special 
circumstances. 
 
At paragraph 54, the NPPF states that in rural areas, local planning authorities should be responsive to local 
circumstances and plan housing development to reflect local needs, particularly for affordable housing, 
including through rural exception sites where appropriate.   
Uplowman is not one of the defined villages listed in COR17 as it is not considered to have the facilities, 
employment and public transport required for day to day living.  Uplowman has a primary school, pub and 
village hall.  In addition it has a Post Office counter open Monday, Tuesday and Thursday mornings only and 
a bus once a week.  Whilst development at Uplowman could potentially help support facilities in 
neighbouring villages, it is more likely that if residents have to drive to facilities anyway, they would drive to 
Tiverton which has a much wider range of services and facilities (5 km) rather than Sampford Peverell (1.8 
km). 
 
The status of Uplowman was reviewed for the emerging Local Plan Review (now submitted for examination) 
and it was concluded that Uplowman did not have the facilities to include it in the defined villages list and 
make it suitable for limited housing growth.  Whilst Uplowman does have a primary school that would 
welcome new children, it does not have a shop or public transport service.  These are the 3 essential 
services that the emerging Local Plan Review considers appropriate for a limited level of development. 
The application does not propose affordable housing to meet local needs and does not evidence a need 
locally for additional housing, for example in the form of a housing needs survey.  Whilst new housing may 
provide some additional support to the remaining services within Uplowman, it is not considered that one 
additional dwelling would support the re-opening of a shop or the running of a more regular bus service.  
Uplowman Parish Council has stated that their long-standing policy is that there should be no new 
development in the village. The village has limited infrastructure, no significant public transport links and no 
local demand for housing has been identified. 
 
An appeal for a single dwelling on nearby land was dismissed on 11th February 2016 (15/00979/OUT). The 
appeal Inspector stated that policies COR1 to COR12 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy embodied the 
principles of sustainable development set out in paragraphs 17, 30 and 37 of the NPPF that seek to manage 
patterns of growth so as to minimise journey lengths and make the fullest possible use of public transport, 
walking and cycling.  The Inspector noted that the range of services within Uplowman is very limited, there 
being no shop and an infrequent bus service.  He stated that accessibility to a wide range of services was 
poor and there would be a high dependency on the usage of the private car.  The Inspector concluded that 
the proposal would not amount to sustainable development due to the extent it conflicts with other NPPF 
objectives.  Although at the time, Mid Devon had not then been challenged on its 5 year housing land 
supply, the Inspector's comments with regard to the sustainability of Uplowman and the development's 
conflict with the objectives of the NPPF are still relevant. 
 
In addition, planning committee recently refused an application for 8 dwellings within Uplowman under 
reference 17/00033/OUT on the grounds that Uplowman is not considered to be a sustainable settlement for 
additional residential development. 
 
Your officers do not consider that the proposed development would represent sustainable development, 
contrary to policies in the Mid Devon Core Strategy and in the NPPF. 
 
 
 

Page 68



AGENDA 33 

2.  Access 
 
Access to the site is to be determined under this outline application.  It is proposed to leave the existing field 
gate access in place to serve the agricultural land to the rear of the site. 
 
A new access is proposed in a location central to the plot and visibility splays would be provided.  The 
Highway Authority is satisfied that the access and visibility proposals are adequate.  A 3.5m length of hedge 
would be removed to provide the proposed access, the visibility splays being within the existing roadside 
grass verge. 
 
The Highway Authority has recommended a footway be provided between the village hall and the primary 
school to avoid conflict between pedestrians and vehicular traffic which was discussed during pre-
application discussions between the Highway Authority and the applicant.  Whilst the footway would be "nice 
to have" the Highway Authority does not necessary it necessary to mitigate the impact of the development 
on highway safety and therefore the lack of footway does not form a reason for refusal. 
 
The proposal is considered to be in accordance with policy DM2 of the Local Plan part 3 (Development 
Management Policies) in respect of a safe access being provided.  However, the proposal would be contrary 
to policy COR9 of the Mid Devon Core Strategy which seeks to co-ordinate development and transport 
planning to improve accessibility and reduce the need to travel by car. 
 
3. Indicative layout, including parking and potential effects on neighbouring residents 
 
No indicative layout plan has been submitted with the application.  However, the plot is large enough to 
accommodate one dwelling, adequate parking and turning facilities, amenity space and bin storage. 
 
Subject to design, a dwelling could be accommodated on the site without leading to any unacceptable loss 
of privacy or amenity for neighbouring residents. 
 
The development is capable of comply with policies DM2 of the Local Plan part 3 (Development 
Management Policies) with regard to high quality design, DM8 with regard to parking standards and DM14 
with regard to design of new housing, including adequate amenity space and bin storage. 
 
4. Landscape, visual amenity, ecology, archaeology 
 
Although landscaping is a reserved matter, the application refers to new hedges being provided to the side 
and rear boundaries.   
 
There is a species-rich hedgerow along the front boundary which the ecology report identifies as an 
"important hedgerow".  The hedge is considered to contribute to the rural character of the area.  The 
character of the road out of the village on the side of the road on which the site lies, is considered to be 
residential up to Twin Oaks to the south east, and then the character changes to rural as the lane is lined on 
both sides by hedgebanks with agricultural land beyond.  To the north east of the site, there is a single 
dwelling with a hedge frontage. 
 
The application documentation is silent on the extent of hedgerow removal required to accommodate the 
access and visibility splays across the frontage of the site.  The applicant has since clarified the situation.  
The visibility splays can be accommodated within the existing road-side glass verge, behind which the 
hedge will remain with the exception of the removal of 3.5m for the point of access. The retention of most of 
the front hedge will limit the extent of potential negative impact on the rural character and visual amenities of 
the area. 
 
The submitted ecological assessment confirms that the field is of low ecological value, the only feature of 
interest being the species rich hedgerow alongside the road and the possibility of reptiles living along the 
margins of the field.  A reptile survey was subsequently carried out but no reptiles were found.  The ecology 
report refers to a hedgerow survey dated 15th March 2017 which was not submitted with the application. 
 
 

Page 69



AGENDA 34 

The hedgerow is therefore considered to be of value both for its ecological value and also for its landscape 
value but impact upon it would be limited to a 3.5m length. 
 
Devon Historic Environment Service has recommended a condition be imposed on any planning permission 
to ensure that archaeological investigation is carried out before the development is constructed.  The 
development would be in accordance with policy DM27 of the Local Plan part 3 (Development Management 
Policies) in this respect. 
 
5. Drainage 
 
Policy DM2 of the Local Plan 3 (Development Management Policies) requires appropriate drainage including 
SUDS, and connection of foul drainage to a mains sewer where available. 
 
The application form refers to the surface water discharging into the mains sewer and foul drainage being 
"unknown".  However, a foul drainage assessment form has been submitted which states that drainage is 
unknown as this is an outline application only but that connection to the mains sewer is not suitable. 
 
It is understood that there is mains drainage in Uplowman for foul drainage but no explanation has been 
provided as to why it is not possible to connect into this system.  However, it would be possible to condition 
the submission and approval of a flood drainage scheme. 
 
The agent confirmed it is the intention to incorporate a SUDS system to deal with surface water drainage.  
Bo details have been included within the application, but this could be conditioned. 
 
6. Section 106 
 
No public open space is intended to be provided on site.  Policy AL/IN/3 of the AIDPD and Mid Devon's SPD 
on open space seeks financial contributions towards play areas and open space facilities where no on site 
provision is made.  Accordingly, the applicant has made a financial contribution of £1,205 towards the 
improvement of sporting facilities at Crossways Playing Field, Uplowman. 
 
Due to the scale of the development (1 dwelling), no affordable housing requirement is triggered. 
 
The proposed dwelling would be eligible for counting towards the New Homes Bonus. If the New Homes 
Bonus is distributed across Council Tax Bands in the same way as in 2015, the award for each house would 
be £1,028 per year.  Assuming completion in 2017/18 the award would be paid over a period 5 years, 
amounting to £5,140.  If completion takes place in 2018/19, the period would be reduced to 4 years, 
amounting to £4,112. 
 
7. Planning balance 
 
Mid Devon has been found not to be able to demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply and Mid Devon's 
policies on housing supply should therefore not be considered up to date.  Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states 
that where development plan policies are considered to be out of date, planning permission should be 
granted unless the adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 
when assessed against the NPPF as a whole or specific policies in the NPPF indicate development should 
be restricted.  The proposal would make a small contribution towards increasing housing supply in Mid 
Devon and weight must be given to this.  The proposal is acceptable in highway safety terms and the site 
has the potential to accommodate a dwelling with adequate parking, turning and amenity space, and without 
having an unacceptable impact on the privacy and amenity of neighbouring residents.  The financial 
contribution towards play area provision mitigates the increased use of facilities likely through the 
development. 
 
However, Uplowman is not considered to be a sustainable settlement in that it lacks the day to day facilities 
that make it suitable for even limited housing growth, having only one of the three essential services that the 
existing Development Plan and emerging Local Plan Review consider appropriate for a limited level of 
development.  Whilst Uplowman does have an education facility, it does not have a shop or public transport 
service (one bus a week).   

Page 70



AGENDA 35 

Accessibility to a wide range of services is poor and there would be a high dependency on the usage of the 
private car.  In your officers' opinion, the proposal would not amount to sustainable development and 
therefore conflicts with the sustainability objectives of the NPPF.  The lack of a suitable SUDS scheme and 
justification for non-mains drainage also weigh against the proposal. 
 
The harm caused by the conflict with the NPPF are considered to significantly and demonstrably outweigh 
the benefits. 
 
The proposal is considered to be contrary to policies: COR1, COR9, COR12 and COR18 of the Mid Devon 
Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), and the sustainability objectives of the National Planning Policy 
Framework.  Refusal is therefore recommended. 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 1. The Local Planning Authority does not consider Uplowman to be a sustainable settlement in that it 

lacks the day to day facilities that make it suitable for housing growth.  Uplowman has only one of the 
three essential services that the Local Planning Authority considers necessary for even a limited level 
of new housing development.  Whilst Uplowman does have an education facility, it does not have a 
shop or public transport service (one bus a week).  Accessibility to a wide range of services is poor 
and there would be a high dependency on the usage of the private car.  In the opinion of the Local 
Planning Authority, the proposal would not amount to sustainable development and therefore conflicts 
with the sustainability objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework.  The harm caused by this 
conflict is considered to significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the development in 
providing new housing in the District. 

  
 The proposal is considered to be contrary to policies: COR1, COR9, COR12 and COR18 of the Mid 

Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and the sustainability objectives of the National Planning 
Policy Framework.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



AGENDA 36 

 
 

Plans List No. 4 
 
Application No. 17/01142/FULL 
 
Grid Ref:  299621 : 112764  
 
Applicant: Mr Manley  
   
Location: Land at NGR 299621 112764 (Red Linhay)  

Crown Hill  
Halberton  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Variation of Condition 9 of planning permission 16/01180/FULL to change sections i) and ii) 

of the condition with reference to the location and source of feedstock and the subsequent 
ultimate destination of digestate from the anaerobic digester 

  
 
Date Valid:         15th August 2017 
 
 

 

Page 72



AGENDA 37 

Application No. 17/01142/FULL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The proposal is to undertake a variation to Condition 9 of Planning Permission 16/01180/Full to change 
section i) and ii) of the condition that refer to the location and source of feedstock and the subsequent 
ultimate destination of digestate from the anaerobic digester (AD). 
 
Condition 9 currently States 
i) The feedstock and approved quantities for the anaerobic digester shall be slurry, farmyard and 

chicken manure, grass and arable crops only, originally sourced from the sites named in Transport 
Statement of application 15/01034/MFUL only (Hartnoll Farm 62.13ha, Manley Lane 37.60ha, plots 
41.48ha, Maunders 7.71ha, and Wellington 23.55ha and shown on plan/aerial photos Drawing 
numbers 13425/T04 Revision A and 13425/T05 Revision A set out in the approved transport 
statement date stamped 21st August 2015) under application 15/01034/MFUL. 

ii) The ultimate destination for the digestate from the anaerobic digester shall be to the sites named in 
the Transport Statement of application 15/01034/MFUL Hartnoll Farm 62.13ha, Manley Lane 
37.60ha, plots 41.48ha, Maunders 7.71ha only and shown on plan/aerial photos Drawing numbers 
13425/T04 Revision A and 13425/T05 Revision A set out in the approved transport statement date 
stamped 21st August 2015) under application 15/01034/MFUL. 

iii) A log book shall be maintained and completed detailing where and when the feedstock(s) for the AD 
plant have come from and where, when and mode of transport of the digestate leaving the site. The 
Log book shall record name of farm, plot, supplier, number and gross and net weight of vehicles 
along with date and time of feedstock delivery / digestate distribution. 

iv) No other sites are to be utilised for either feedstock source or digestate destination. Such log book 
records shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority quarterly or within any other frequency as 
requested by the Local Planning Authority. 

v)  Records of feedstock input into the digester by weight from the hopper (triolet) shall be kept and 
submitted to the Local Planning authority in writing quarterly or within any other frequency as 
requested by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
The application seeks to add a further two blocks of land from which crops for the AD plant would be gained 
and to which digestate from the AD plant would be delivered as its ultimate destination. The additional land 
blocks are identified as A and B on the plan attached to this report. Block A 19.92ha located NE of Sampford 
Peverell to the north of the A361. Block B 96ha located approximately 2.5km north of Hartnoll Farm to the 
north of the A361, east of Chevithorne. 
 
There is to be no change to the tonnage of feedstock supplying the AD plant. There are no other changes 
proposed to the previously approved development that has been constructed and is operational.  
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Planning Statement 
Travel/Transport Plan 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
08/00282/PNAG - NOBJ date 7th March 2008 
Prior notification for the erection of an agricultural storage building 
   
12/00585/PNAG - NOBJ date 11th June 2012 
Prior notification for the erection of a agricultural storage building 
PRIOR APPROVAL REQUIRED - LETTER SENT 17TH MAY 2012   
 
 

Page 73



AGENDA 38 

12/00630/FULL - PERMIT date 19th June 2012 
Erection of a agricultural livestock building  
  
13/01605/MFUL - PERMIT date 10th July 2014 
Erection of a 500kW anaerobic digester and associated works with 4 silage clamps - NON MATERIAL 
AMENDMENT GRANTED 24TH MARCH 2015   
 
14/02086/SCR - CLOSED date 5th January 2015 
Request for Scoping Opinion relating to proposed mixed use development 
   
13/01605/MFUL/NMA - PERMIT date 24th March 2015 
Erection of a 500kW anaerobic digester and associated works with 4 silage clamps - Non Material 
Amendment to amend the route of a buried high voltage cable 
  
15/01034/MFUL - PERCON date 12th July 2016 
Erection of a 500kW anaerobic digester and associated works with 2 silage clamps.  Revised Scheme to 
include the change of orientation of the layout and installation of 2 driers  
  
16/01180/FULL - PERCON date 9th January 2017 
Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 15/01034/MFUL to allow substitute plans   
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR1 - Sustainable Communities 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR5 - Climate Change 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM5 - Renewable and low carbon energy 
DM6 - Transport and air quality 
DM7 - Pollution 
DM8 - Parking 
DM22 - Agricultural development 
DM27 - Development affecting heritage assets 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH - 31st August 2017 No Objection 
 
HISTORIC ENVIRONMENT SERVICE - 22nd August 2017 
I refer to the above application and your recent consultation.  Assessment of the Historic Environment 
Record (HER) and the details submitted by the applicant do not suggest that the scale and situation of this 
application to vary Condition 9 will have any impact upon any known heritage assets. 
 
The Historic Environment Team has no comments to make on this planning application. 
 
LEAD LOCAL FLOOD AUTHORITY - 6th September 2017 
We have no in-principle objections to the above planning application, from a surface water drainage 
perspective, at this stage. 
Observations: 
This variation to the application will not adversely affect any flood risks to the site or surrounding area. 
 

Page 74



AGENDA 39 

WILLAND PARISH COUNCIL - Willand Parish Council do not support this application as it is yet another 
example of expansionism of the activities on this site. The Parish Council have difficulty in accepting the 
estimated traffic movement figures in the evidence provided. They believe that there will be a greater 
increase in traffic movements that will put further strain on narrow roads in the area and potentially have a 
greater adverse effect on Halberton High Street. 
 
HALBERTON PARISH COUNCIL - 13th September 2017 - Halberton Parish Council considered this 
application at their meeting on 12th September. The Council objects to this proposal on the grounds that it 
will result in increased traffic. The orginal planning application stated that the orginal land supply was 
sufficient to run the digester and the Council can see no reason why this should change.  
The Council also wishes for this decision to be called-in due to the problems with traffic to and from the 
digester. 
 
TIVERTON TOWN COUNCIL - No objections 
 
DEVON, CORNWALL & DORSET POLICE - 25th August 2017 - No further comments 
 
Highway Authority - 12th September 2017 - Observations: 
The applicant has demonstrated through the transport assessment that the change in the locations for the 
feed stock while good agricultural practice in crop rotation will not impact on the public highway in terms of 
increase in movements, and may give rise to a reduction over those already consented to the plant. The 
Highway Authority also gives consideration to works to the public highway through the Tiverton Eastern 
Urban Extension (EUE) which will aid those movements from Uplowman and Craze Lowman direction. 
Therefore the Highway Authority will raise no further observations on this application. 
Recommendation: 
THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON BEHALF OF DEVON 
COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, HAS NO OBJECTION TO THE PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
There have been 8 number representations received raising objections, summarised as follows: 
There will be an increase in traffic using Halberton High Street. 
Where will the slurry be taken if not to the new Blocks A and B 
How will the farm make up the loss of fertiliser 
The site is getting bigger 
More land required for crop rotation, this is to use the additional CHP unit  
Negative impact on the safety of the roads and Halberton High street. 
Increasing the industrial nature of the site. 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The primary material considerations in assessing this application are:- 
 
1. Policy and procedure 
2. Access transport and quantities of product and digestate 
3. Other issues 
 
1. Policy 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (LP1) 
 
Policy COR1 seeks to ensure that growth is managed so that development meets sustainability objectives, 
brings positive benefits, supports the diverse needs of communities and provides vibrant, safe, healthy and 
inclusive places where existing and future residents want to live and work. 
 
 
 

Page 75



AGENDA 40 

Policy COR2 seeks to sustain the distinctive quality, character and diversity of Mid Devon's environmental 
assets, preserve Mid Devon's landscape character, and promote the efficient use and conservation of 
natural resources of land, water and energy. 
 
Policy COR5 seeks to contribute towards targets for the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and support 
the development of renewable energy capacity in locations with an acceptable local impact including, visual, 
on nearby residents and wildlife. 
 
Policy COR18 seeks to control development in the open countryside and specifically permits renewable 
energy developments. 
 
Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
Policy DM1 states that the Council will take a positive approach to sustainable development and approve 
wherever possible proposals that improve the economic, social and environmental conditions in the area. 
 
Policy DM2 requires development to demonstrate a clear understanding of the site and surrounding area 
and to take into account impacts on local character and landscapes, biodiversity and heritage assets, 
impacts on neighbouring uses and appropriate drainage solutions. 
 
Policy DM5 is designed to maximise renewable and low carbon energy development while ensuring that 
adverse impacts are addressed satisfactorily.  It states that proposals for renewable or low carbon energy 
will be permitted where they do not have significant adverse impacts on the character, amenity and visual 
quality of the area, including cumulative impacts of similar developments, within the parish or adjoining 
parishes.   
 
Policy DM6 requires development proposals that would give rise to significant levels of vehicular movement 
to be accompanied by a transport assessment to include mitigation measures. 
 
Policy DM7 permits development where the direct, indirect and cumulative effects of pollution will not have 
an unacceptable negative impact on health, the natural environment and general amenity. 
 
Policy DM22 permits agricultural development where it is reasonably necessary to support farming activity 
on the farm or in the immediate agricultural community, where it is located to minimise adverse effects on 
the living conditions of local residents and to respect the character and appearance of the area, and where it 
will not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the environment or the local road network. 
 
Policy DM27 Seeks to protect heritage assets and their settings, including Conservation Areas recognising 
that they are an irreplaceable resource. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
The NPPF has a presumption in favour of sustainable development which requires development which 
accords with the development plan to be approved without delay.  It specifically requires planning to 
encourage the use of renewable resources, for example, by the development of renewable energy and 
requires significant weight to be placed on the need to support economic growth through the planning 
system. 
 
The NPPF sets out core planning principles which include: seeking to secure high quality design and a good 
standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings, and; supporting the transition 
to a low carbon future in a changing climate, encouraging the reuse of existing resource and encouraging 
the use of renewable resources (for example by the development of renewable energy). 
   
The NPPF suggests that developments should be located and designed where practical to accommodate 
the efficient delivery of goods and supplies. 
 
 
 

Page 76



AGENDA 41 

The NPPF states that local planning authorities should not refuse planning permission for buildings or 
infrastructure which promote high levels of sustainability because of concerns about incompatibility with an 
existing townscape, if those concerns have been mitigated by good design (unless the concern relates to a 
designated heritage asset and the impact would cause material harm to the asset or its setting which is not 
outweighed by the proposal's economic, social and environmental benefits). 
 
The NPPF states that local planning authorities should help increase the use and supply of renewable 
energies and design their policies to maximise renewable developments whilst ensuring that adverse 
impacts are addressed satisfactorily, including cumulative impacts.  It states that applicants should not need 
to demonstrate the overall need for renewable energy and requires local planning authorities to approve 
applications where the impacts are (or can be made) acceptable.   
 
The NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should aim to mitigate and reduce to a minimum other 
adverse impacts on health and quality of life arising from noise from new development, including through the 
use of conditions; recognise that development will often create some noise and existing businesses wanting 
to develop in continuance of their business should not have unreasonable restrictions put on them because 
of changes in nearby land uses since they were established; and protect areas of tranquillity which have 
remained relatively undisturbed by noise and are prized for their recreational and amenity value for this 
reason. 
 
Procedure 
 
The application is for a variation of a specific condition relating to planning approval 16/01180/FULL; the 
granting of such a variation of condition constitutes a new planning permission to the site which then 
necessitates the requirement to re-impose from the previous planning approval any relevant or outstanding 
planning conditions. Any conditions which required discharging and have been undertaken will be amended 
to reflect the approved details. In addition any approved plans and documents associated with the previous 
application 16/01180/FULL will also be conditioned by this application if granted. 
 
2. Access and transport and quantities of product and digestate 
 
The AD plant is located approximately 1.5km west of Halberton and 5km east of Tiverton.  The site is 
positioned south of Crown Hill.  The applicant stated in the previous approval 16/01180/FULL that the site 
has been chosen for its proximity to the land which will provide the necessary feedstocks and the land over 
which the digestate can be spread. 
 
The Transport Statement (TS) (set out in 15/01034/MFUL) states that vehicles related to the proposed AD 
plant would travel to and from the application site via Post Hill only.  This is the same route taken by traffic 
generated by existing agricultural activities at Hartnoll Farm for the delivery of grain to the two storage barns 
and products for conditioning/fertilising land. This Transport Statement is still relevant to this variation and 
will be part of the conditioned documents relating to this proposal as it is not proposed that the amount of 
feedstock would be altered by the current proposal. However there is proposed to be an amendment to the 
condition in relation to proposed additional sources of the feedstock but not the amount of feedstock overall. 
 
The applicant has stated that condition 9 needs to be varied in order to allow more flexibility in the farming 
practice, to ensure if there is a crop failure on one area of land that there is an alternative supply. There will 
be greater flexibility for crop rotation, a reduction in the reliance on costly artificial fertilisers and an improved 
economic and environmental sustainability of the farming business at Hartnoll Farm. 
 
Although according to the applicants figures there may be a slight increase in traffic movements of 
approximately 1-3% in a worst case scenario, the proposal is nonetheless to utilise land which is in the land 
owners control to provide further crops and digestate destinations. There is still a finite quantity/tonnage of 
material to be taken to and from the AD site which will not be altered. 
 
The two land Blocks A and B are relatively close to the site and so transport movements are kept to a 
minimum, both in distance and number. Appendix 1 attached to this report shows the sites in relation to the 
AD Plant. 
 

Page 77



AGENDA 42 

Devon County Council Highways has been consulted on the proposed alteration to the cropping and 
digestate regime in terms of its potential impact on the associated road network. Their comments are set out 
above and have no concerns about the change to the condition. 
 
Presently the proposal approved under 16/01080/Full is set out below in terms of movements 
 
Source Farms Area (Ha) Total Crop Trips on road 

network(Per Annum) 
Total Digestate Trips on 
road network(Per Annum) 

Hartnoll Farm 64.53 0* 0** 
Manley Lane 37.6 36.23* 28.86** 
Plots 1-13 41.48 164.81 97.78 
Maunders 7.71 30.36 18.18 
Wellington 23.55 107.86 N/A 
Total 174.87 339.26 144.82 
 
*Only includes the number of vehicle trips on the road - remaining crops internally through fields 
**Only includes the number of vehicle trips on the road - remaining digestate pumped 
 
The proposed variation of condition 9 seeks to retain the ability to source feedstock from these sites and 
hence retain the above movements. The application seeks the ability to introduce more flexibility by also 
allowing feedstock from 2 other land blocks and for them to accept digestate. Their use would primarily 
substitute traffic movements from the sites above as no addition to total feedstock tonnage is sought. 
 
Rix's Farm is currently the source of slurry that is spread at Block A and B. By allowing digestate to be 
delivered to these blocks there will be a change of emphasis away from the use of Rix's Farm for slurry. This 
will reduce the number of overall traffic movements to and from Plots A and B partly due to an increase in 
size of trailers and the use of the digestate rather than slurry on the two plots. 
 
The only change will be where the crops can be sourced and where the digestate can be distributed.  The 
safeguard for this proposal is that there is an agreed quantity of loads in terms of tonnage which can be 
supplied to the AD Plant within a calendar year, which are monitored; this amount will not alter and so traffic 
movements and ultimately the amount of crops and other products approved for use in the AD will not 
exceed the figures shown below: 
 
Cow Slurry -             2,000 tonnes 
Farmyard Manure -  1,000 tonnes 
Chicken Manure -    2,000 tonnes 
Maize -                    4,444 tonnes 
Grass Silage  -         2,981 tonnes 
Beet -                       1,500 tonnes  
 
Total                        13,925 tonnes 
 
Presently the AD plant is able to import the above quantities of material from the 5 sites approved, the 
proposal is to allow 2 further sites to be able to provide the same quantity and type of material as set out 
above, and in reality this will be Maize, Grass Silage and or Beet from these two additional sites.  The 
overall quantity of feed stock from any of the areas will not increase over the quantity approved under 
application 16/01180/FULL. Neither will the amount of digestate exported from the unit. Power output is 
proposed to be conditioned as previously. 
 
Presently sites A and B take crops to Hartnoll Farm and slurry and fertiliser from Rix farm and Hartnoll Farm. 
The intention is to no-longer take material from Rix's farm or Hartnoll Farm for spreading onto the plots A 
and B but to use the digestate produced from the AD plant, however the waste from Rix's Farm although not 
being utilised for the AD Plant.   
 
 

Page 78



AGENDA 43 

Information supplied with the application indicates that vehicles travelling to/from Block A and the AD Plant 
will pass through Halberton and Sampford Peverell. However 61 fertiliser loads from Rix Farm to this land 
block would be replaced by 44 digestate loads from the AD Plant (annually) 
 
Set out below is the proposed new condition 9. 
 
9. i) The feedstock and approved quantities for the anaerobic digester shall be slurry (2,000 tonnes), 

farmyard and chicken manure (3,000 tonnes), grass and arable crops (8,925 tonnes) only, originally 
sourced from the sites named in Transport Statement(s) of this application (Hartnoll Farm 62.13ha, 
Manley Lane 37.60ha, plots 1-13 41.48ha, Maunders 7.71ha, Wellington 23.55ha and Blocks A 
19.92ha and B 96ha and shown on the appropriate plans/aerial photos, Drawing numbers 
13425/T04 Revision A 13425/T05 Revision A set out in the approved transport statement date 
stamped 21st August 2015 under application 15/01034/MFUL and Drawing 3 set out in the approved 
transport statement date stamped 15th August 2017).  

  
ii) The ultimate destination for the digestate from the anaerobic digester shall be to the sites named 
in the Transport Statement of this application Hartnoll Farm 62.13ha, Manley Lane 37.60ha, plots 1-
13 41.48ha, Maunders 7.71ha Blocks A  19.92ha and B 96ha only and shown on plan/aerial photos 
Drawing numbers 13425/T04 Revision A and 13425/T05 Revision A set out in the approved 
transport statement date stamped 21st August 2015 under application 15/01034/MFUL and set out 
in the approved transport statement date stamped 15th August 2017. 

  
iii) A log book shall be maintained and completed detailing where and when the feedstock(s) for the 
AD plant have come from and where, when and mode of transport of the digestate leaving the site. 
The Log book shall record name of farm, plot, supplier, number and gross and net weight of vehicles 
along with date and time of feedstock delivery / digestate distribution.  

  
iv) No other sites are to be utilised for either feedstock source or digestate destination. Such log 
book records shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority quarterly or within any other 
frequency as requested by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
v) Records of feedstock input into the digester by weight from the hopper (triolet) shall be kept and 
submitted to the Local Planning authority in writing quarterly or within any other frequency as 
requested by the Local Planning Authority 

 
3. Other Issues 
 
There have been a number of objections to this application the main points being that there will be an 
increase in traffic movements to and from the AD plant. The transport assessment states that there will be 
no demonstrable increase in traffic movements to the site, and this has been assessed by DCC Highways 
who concur with the transport statement. 
 
Comments have been made with regard to the new agricultural building being associated with the AD Plant, 
and the site growing larger. This agricultural building is not associated with the AD plant but for the farm at 
Hartnoll. The AD plant site is no larger than that approved under 16/01180/Full. 
 
Concern has been raised that this is the start of many changes in order to be able to increase the output of 
the site. This application deals with the variation of Condition 9 only. The Authority is not able to speculate 
as to what may or may not be considered in the future.  each application is considered on its merits. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The date of commencement of this development shall be taken as the 15th August 2017 when the 

application was registered by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 

Page 79



AGENDA 44 

 3. The colour and finish of the building materials (including the digester dome) shall be retained in 
accordance with the details as submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority on 
27th October 2016 pursuant to 15/01034/MFUL. 

 
 4. All works and operations shall take place in accordance with the Operational Traffic Management Plan 

in the agreed parameters as set out under condition 4 of 16/01180/FULL. The date the plant first 
became operational ("Operational" shall mean the first production of electricity to be exported to the 
grid which has been confirmed as 1st June 2017). 

 
 5. The completed passing bay on Crown Hill is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans 

"The Passing Bay scale 1:250 and dated 10.02.2015; and The Passing Bay Position scale 1:250 
dated 10.03.2015" as set out in 13/01605/MFUL. 

 
 6. There shall be no storage of chicken and farmyard manures or slurry within the application site except 

within the liquids buffer tank and feeder hopper (triolet) serving the AD digester approved as part of 
this planning application. 

 
 7. All hedgerows within or on the boundary of the site located to the north west of the site and east 

adjacent to the highway shall be retained and maintained to a minimum height of 2 metres. Any trees 
or plants die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next 
planting season with others of similar size and species. 

 
 8. The external lighting shall be retained in accordance with details agreed under condition 4 of 

16/01180/FULL. 
 
 9. i) The feedstock and approved quantities for the anaerobic digester shall be slurry (2,000 tonnes), 

farmyard and chicken manure (3,000 tonnes), grass and arable crops (8,925 tonnes) only, originally 
sourced from the sites named in Transport Statement(s) of this application (Hartnoll Farm 62.13ha, 
Manley Lane 37.60ha, plots 1-13 41.48ha, Maunders 7.71ha, Wellington 23.55ha and Blocks A 
19.92ha and B 96ha and shown on plans/aerial photos, Drawing numbers 13425/T04 Revision A 
13425/T05 Revision A set out in the approved transport statement date stamped 21st August 2015 
under application 15/01034/MFUL and Drawing 3 set out in the approved transport statement date 
stamped 15th August 2017 and  

   
 ii) The ultimate destination for the digestate from the anaerobic digester shall be to the sites named in 

the Transport Statement of this application Hartnoll Farm 62.13ha, Manley Lane 37.60ha, plots 1-13 
41.48ha, Maunders 7.71ha Blocks A 19.92ha and B 96ha only and shown on plan/aerial photos 
Drawing numbers 13425/T04 Revision A and 13425/T05 Revision A set out in the approved transport 
statement date stamped 21st August 2015 under application 15/01034/MFUL and set out in the 
approved transport statement date stamped 15th August 2017. 

   
 iii) A log book shall be maintained and completed detailing where and when the feedstock(s) for the 

AD plant have come from and where, when and mode of transport of the digestate leaving the site. 
The Log book shall record name of farm, plot, supplier, number and gross and net weight of vehicles 
along with date and time of feedstock delivery / digestate distribution.  

   
 iv) No other sites are to be utilised for either feedstock source or digestate destination. Such log book 

records shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority quarterly or within any other frequency as 
requested by the Local Planning Authority. 

   
 v) Records of feedstock input into the digester by weight from the hopper (triolet) shall be kept and 

submitted to the Local Planning authority in writing quarterly or within any other frequency as 
requested by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 80



AGENDA 45 

10. The storage of digestate or other hazardous substances must be within the properly constructed 
bunded areas of sufficient capacity and containment, as approved in plan number 
WIN01_Redlinhay3_PP_002 under application 16/01180/FULL. Such approved scheme shall be so 
retained. 

 
11. The planting scheme and Bund shall be retained and fully implemented in accordance with details 

agreed within condition 12 under application 16/01180/FULL. Any trees or plants which within a period 
of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless 
the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

 
12. Noise emissions from the Red Linhay Anaerobic Digester site at the nearest noise-sensitive locations 

are not to exceed the decibel levels stipulated below, day or night.  
   
 Daytime Noise Level 07.00am - 23.00pm shall not at the boundary of any noise sensitive premises 

exceed the decibel level 41 dB (LAeq1hr)  
   
 Night-time Noise Level 23.00pm - 07.00am shall not when measured at 3.5m from the façade of any 

noise sensitive premises exceed the decibel level 33 dB (LA90 15min).  
   
 Daytime (Evening) & Night-time Noise Level 19.00pm - 23.00pm the Maximum Instantaneous Noise 

Level shall not when measured at 3.5m from the façade of any noise sensitive premises exceed 55 
dB(LAFmax) evening (19.00-23.00hrs) and night-time (23.00-07.00hrs). 

   
 *(From the noise data supplied) 
 The average daytime background noise level is 36 dB (LA90 1hr) plus 5 dB exceedance  
 The average night-time background noise level is 28 (LA90 15min) plus 5 dB exceedance 
 
13. The operator is to provide a further noise assessment demonstrating that the screening and acoustic 

panelling/boxes are adequate and provides enough protection to ensure that the typical minimum 
background sound level 22dB (LA90 15min) is not breached from the operation of the plant.  This 
assessment must be submitted to the planning authority within 5 months from the Operational 
commencement of the AD unit ("Operational" shall mean the first production of electricity to be 
exported to the grid confirmed as the 1st June 2017).  

   
 A copy of the findings from the assessment and all recorded data and audio files obtained as part of 

the assessment shall be provided to the Local Planning Authority (in electronic form) within 28 days of 
completion of the analysis.  

   
 Where the assessment information confirms that the noise levels from the operation of the plant are 

above the typical minimum background sound level 22dB (LA90 15min) within any amenity areas 
3.5m from the façade of any noise sensitive properties, the operator shall carry out works to mitigate 
such effects to comply with the noise condition, details of which shall have first been submitted in 
writing and approved in writing by the local Authority.  

   
 The assessment and any such noise mitigation works shall be completed within 6 months from the 

date of notification and be so retained. The date of notification is the date the operator is informed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority detailing the inadequate screening. 

 
14. The emergency flare stack shall not be operated for maintenance or for testing purpose except 

between 0700 and 1700 hours on any day (not including Bank Holidays). 
 
15. Heavy and light Goods vehicles along with plant under the control of the operators which deliver 

waste, remove digestate or biofertiliser or operate at the site (the site is the area set out on the 
approved location plan outlined in red) shall only use non-intrusive broadband (white noise) vehicle 
noise alarms and/or reversing cameras. On such vehicles, there shall be no use of single or multi-pitch 
reversing bleepers. 

 

Page 81



AGENDA 46 

16. Written notification confirming the cessation of operations is to be given to the Local Planning 
Authority 3 month prior to the cessation of the use of the Anaerobic Digester plant hereby approved. 

 
17. On the cessation of the use of the Anaerobic Digester plant hereby approved, the site shall be cleared 

of all buildings and structures, hardstandings bunds and any wastes within a period of six months from 
the date of cessation. After removal of the above, the surface of the site shall be regraded and be 
covered with topsoil to a depth of 500mm within a period of three months. The site shall then be 
planted in accordance with details to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
18. The visibility splay at the site entrance shall be retained in accordance with plan 13425/T03 approved 

under planning permission 13/001605/MFUL with no obstructions within the visibility area over 1m 
above the adjacent carriageway level. It shall thereafter be so maintained for that purpose. 

 
19. The approved system Foscam F19900P or equivalent to monitor the barrier and access to the site is 

to be retained and maintained operational Such results of the monitoring system shall be submitted to 
the Local Planning Authority quarterly or within any other frequency as requested by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved system is to be so retained. 

 
20. The permission hereby granted is for a 500kw anaerobic digester only. Power generation from the 

development shall not exceed 500kw averaged over a quarterly period (such quarterly period to 
commence from the first Feed In tariff submissions and continue thereafter). Such records of power 
generation shall be kept and submitted quarterly in writing to the Local Planning Authority. 

 
21. The Local Planning Authority shall be afforded access at reasonable times to all on site monitoring 

systems associated with the operation of the AD plant hereby granted. 
  
 
22. The PF5000 Heavy Duty Manual Raise Barrier shall be retained in accordance with plan Drawing A 

Camera and Barrier dated 19th January 2017 agreed under 16/01180/FULL. 
 
23. The approved drainage system and maintenance programme shall be retained in accordance with 

details agreed under condition 6 of 16/01180/FULL. 
 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In order to establish a legal commencement date for the development to enable the development to 

be monitored by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. To ensure the use of materials appropriate to the development in order to safeguard the visual 

amenities of the area and the character and appearance of the conservation area in accordance with 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) COR2 Mid Devon Local Plan DM2 and DM27. 

 
 4. To safeguard the amenities of the area and occupiers of nearby buildings in accordance with DM2 of 

Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
 5. In the interest of highway safety and to ensure that adequate passing facilities are available for 

vehicles attracted to the site in accordance with DM2 and DM22 of the Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies). 

 
 6. To reduce odour levels within the site and to prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance 

with policy DM7 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
 7. In the interest of the visual amenity of the area and to protect the setting of the Grand Western Canal 

in accordance with policies DM2, DM22 and DM27 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

Page 82



AGENDA 47 

 
 8. To protect the rural character of the area in accordance with policies COR2 of the Mid Devon Core 

Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and DM5, DM22 and DM27 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
 9. The application has been considered as a site accepting these feedstock types only and not as a 

general waste facility and consideration of the impacts on the environment, neighbouring residents 
and the road network has been made on this basis and in order to accord with policies DM5 and 
DM22 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
10. To prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with policy DM7 of Local Plan Part 3 

(Development Management Policies). 
 
11. To protect the rural character of the area in accordance with policies COR2 of the Mid Devon Core 

Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and DM5, DM22 and DM27 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
12. To minimise the potential for pollution and disturbance to local amenity, in accordance with policy DM7 

of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
13. To minimise the potential for pollution and disturbance to local amenity, in accordance with policy DM7 

of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
14. To minimise the potential for pollution and disturbance to local amenity, in accordance with policy DM7 

of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
15. To minimise the potential for pollution and disturbance to local amenity, in accordance with policy DM7 

of the Local Plan Part 3. 
 
16. To ensure the Local Authority are made aware of the impending cessation of the use to enable proper 

consideration of the removal of the items on the site. 
 
17. To achieve a satisfactory landscape/restoration. 
  
 In the interest of the visual amenity of the area in accordance with policies DM2, DM22 of the Local 

Plan Part 3. 
 
18. To provide adequate visibility from and of emerging vehicles. 
  
 In the interest of highway safety and consideration of the impacts on the environment, neighbouring 

residents due to the number of movements to and from the site and in order to accord with policies 
DM5 and DM22 of the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
19. To ensure the AD plant is in accordance with that as set out in the application and supporting 

information and in order to ensure that the impacts of the development are acceptable. 
 
20. To ensure the AD plant operates in accordance with the parameters and limitations as approved and 

as set out within the application and its supporting information. 
 
21. To ensure the AD plant operates in accordance with the parameters and limitations as approved and 

as set out within the application and its supporting information. 
 
22. To ensure all vehicles entering and leaving the site pass over the weighbridge to ensure the AD plant 

operates in accordance with the parameters and limitations as approved and as set out within the 
application and its supporting information. 

 
23. To ensure the AD plant is in accordance with that as set out in the application and supporting 

information and in order to ensure that the impacts of the development are acceptable. 

Page 83



AGENDA 48 

 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
 
The proposal is to vary parts of condition 9 of planning permission 16/01180/Full relating to where crops can 
be harvested to provide fuel for the AD plant at Redlinhay along with additional areas for the distribution of 
the subsequently produced digestate. There is no intension of providing additional feed stock to the site but 
to provide a more flexible and sustainable cropping rotation in order to facilitate better farming practices. 
  
It is considered that there will be no adverse impacts on the highway network or noticeable increases in 
traffic generation due to the proposed changes. 
  
The new variation of the condition will need to ensure that there is not only compliance with the previous 
transport statement but also the new transport statement subject to this application. All previous conditions 
will be re-imposed where they are required. 
  
Since the granting of the earlier consents a number of the conditions have been discharged and the 
conditions listed below reflect that situation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



P
age 85



AGENDA 49 

 
 

Plans List No. 5 
 
Application No. 17/01197/CAT 
 
Grid Ref:  301044 : 112936  
 
Applicant: Mr Ray Radford  
   
Location: Land at NGR 301044 112936  

Between 46-48 High Street  
Halberton  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Notification of intention to coppice 1 Sycamore tree (T2); coppice Hornbeam trees (G3) and 

Sycamore trees (G1) to form hedge; crown raise Sycamore trees (G2) to 4m and raise 
crown of 1 Oak tree (T3) by 3m within the Conservation Area  

 
 
Date Valid:         28th July 2017 
 
 

 
 

Page 86



AGENDA 50 

Application No. 17/01197/CAT 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
No objection subject to the following: 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Notification of intention to coppice 1 Sycamore tree (T2); coppice Hornbeam trees (G3) and Sycamore trees 
(G1) to form hedge; crown raise Sycamore trees (G2) to 4m and raise crown of 1 Oak tree (T3) by 3m within 
the Conservation Area. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
None. 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
None. 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Halberton Parish Council: 8th August 2017 - No Objections. 
 
Mid Devon District Council Tree Officer: 1st September 2017 - I have no objection to the proposals laid out 
in the section 211 notification ref: 17/01197/CAT. The proposed works were discussed and determined on 
site with the applicant. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
None received at the time of writing the report. 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
This notification is of the intention to coppice trees (Sycamores and Hornbeams) to form hedge, crown raise 
trees (Sycamores) to a height of 4 metres and raise the crown of one tree (Oak) by 3 metres. Applicants are 
required to notify the LPA of their intention of carry out works to trees in the Conservation Area prior to 
commencing work. The Local Planning Authority then have 6 weeks to consider the notification.  There are 
two options open to the Local Planning Authority: (1) state they have no objection to the works, or (2) 
impose a Tree Preservation Order if the trees are deemed to be of sufficient public amenity to warrant it. 
Under this process, the LPA do not have any powers to refuse permission or grant permission subject to 
conditions. 
 
The trees run along the side of the footpath, along the top of the field and along part of the eastern 
boundary. The trees are large tall mature trees with fairly large crown spread creating excessive shading to 
both the field it bounds and the footpath. The applicant intends to coppice the majority of the trees to form a 
hedge along the boundary with the public footpath. The Oak tree is to be crown raised to allow 3 metres 
headroom. The Sycamore trees along the top of the field and along part of the eastern boundary are also 
proposed to be crown raised to clear 4 metres over the field. The trees are visible from the main road 
running through Halberton and the footpath running alongside the trees. Despite the trees being in a fairly 
prominent part of the Conservation Area which is publically accessible, the trees as a whole are not 
considered to have high amenity value. The need for long term protection through the imposition of a Tree 
Preservation Order is therefore not merited in this case.  
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The trees are not considered to be of sufficient public amenity to warrant long term protection through the 
imposition of a Tree Preservation Order and there are therefore no objections to the proposed works. 
 

Page 87



AGENDA 51 

 
 

Plans List No. 6 
 
Application No. 17/01224/FULL 
 
Grid Ref:  301924 : 107472  
 
Applicant: The Governing Body, Ventrus Multi Academy Trust  
   
Location: Land at NGR 301924 107472  

(Adj. To St Andrews Primary School)  
St Andrews Estate  
Cullompton  

   
Proposal:  Construction of new footpath and access steps to school entrance  
 
 
Date Valid:         27th July 2017 
 
 

 
 

Page 88



AGENDA 52 

Application No. 17/01224/FULL 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
The application seeks planning permission for the construction of a new footpath and access steps to the 
school entrance on land adjacent to St Andrews Primary School, Cullompton.  
 
The land subject to this planning application is owned by Mid Devon District Council and forms part of 
MDDC's housing asset.  
 
Permission was recently granted (ref: 16/01986/FULL) for the erection of extension and internal alterations 
to form new school entrance, offices and teaching areas; conversion of existing children's centre to 2 
classrooms and ancillary accommodation; construction of covered link; conversion of administration block to 
drama studio; construction of boundary walls and fencing and other associated works. This current 
application site adjoins the school site. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Site location plan, block plan, existing and proposed plans, tree protection plan, wildlife survey, planning 
statement, arboricultural report.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
78/01861/FULL - DEEMED CONSENT date 17th November 1978 
DEEMED CONSENT for the erection of a temporary classroom 
 
87/00797/FULL - DEEMED CONSENT date 25th September 1987 
DEEMED CONSENT for the renewal of planning permission for one mobile classroom 
 
96/00535/FULL - NO OBJECTION date 30th May 1996 
Extensions and alterations - consultation under Regulation 3 of the Town & Country Planning General 
Regulations 1992 
 
03/01817/FULL - NOBJ date 26th August 2003 
County Matter application consultation for erection of single storey extension to form additional classrooms, 
stores, resource area and toilet accommodation, with works to front of school to provide car parking, new 
footpath and improved delivery/refuse collection areas 
 
06/00147/FULL - REC date 7th March 2006 
Regulation 3 application for new pedestrian access and fencing on top of boundary wall 
 
07/01131/DCC - DCC GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION date 31st August 2007 
Regulation 3 application for the erection of single storey building 
DCC GRANT CONDITIONAL PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
09/00702/DCC - DCC GRANT OF PLANNING PERMISSION date 3rd July 2009 
Regulation 3 application for the erection of a canopy to create a covered play area - DEVON COUNTY 
COUNCIL GRANTED CONDITIONAL PLANNING PERMISSION 
 
16/01986/FULL - PERMIT date 10th March 2017 
Erection of extension and internal alterations to form new school entrance, offices and teaching areas; 
conversion of existing children's centre to 2 classrooms and ancillary accommodation; construction of 
covered link; conversion of administration block to drama studio; construction of boundary walls and fencing 
and other associated work 
 

Page 89



AGENDA 53 

17/00936/NMA - PERMIT date 14th June 2017 
Non Material Amendment for 16/01986/FULL to change external windows and doors and colour of brick 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR14 - Cullompton 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM2 - High quality design 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Highway Authority: 24th August 2017 
Observations: 
 
The Highway Authority has no objection in principle; however there are some additional highway safety 
works requested as a result of the access relocation. 
 
The Highway Authority would wish to see the provision of a tactile crossing across St Andrews adjacent to 
the steps, and the provision of school keep clear markings in order to maintain visibility of pedestrians 
accessing the steps along the desire lines. The applicant is invited to contact the Highway Authority to 
discuss these provisions and the Local Planning Authority is advised that an amended plan may be required. 
Recommendation: 
THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON BEHALF OF DEVON 
COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY, RECOMMENDS THAT THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS SHALL BE INCORPORATED IN ANY GRANT OF PERMISSION 
1. Off-Site Highway Works No development shall take place on site until the off-site highway works for the 
provision of tactile pedestrian crossing on St Andrews and the provision of school keep clear markings have 
been designed and approved in writing by the Local planning Authority and have been constructed and 
made available for use. 
REASON: To minimise the impact of the development on the highway network in accordance with 
Paragraph 32 of NPPF.  
 
Environment Agency: Cullompton Critical Drainage Area - Minor development - standing advice applies. 
 
Cullompton Town Council: No comments received.  
 
Natural England: 21st August 2017 - No comments.  
 
Devon County Council Education: No comments received.   
 
Environmental Health: 18th August 2017  
Contaminated land - No objection 
Air quality - No objection 
Environmental permitting - N/A 
Drainage - No objection 
Noise and other nuisances - No objection 
Housing standards - No objection 
Licensing - No comments 
Food hygiene - N/A 
Private water supplies - N/A 
Health and safety - No objections - enforced by HSE.  
 
Mid Devon District Council Tree Officer: No comments received.  
 

Page 90



AGENDA 54 

Lead Local Flood Authority: No comments received.  
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No letters of representation have been received at the time of writing the report. 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
This application seeks planning permission for the construction of new footpath and access steps to school 
entrance at St Andrews Primary School, Cullompton. 
 
As part of the current improvement works at St Andrews School the main entrance will be relocated to the 
north eastern corner of the site where parents currently drop off and collect pupils at the existing boundary 
gate. To assist with pedestrian movements to and from the main entrance it is proposed to construct new 
access steps and path across an existing landscaped area. The area of the lower footpath immediately 
adjacent to the new entrance will also be enhanced by the provision of new surfacing and tactile paving. 
 
The existing landscaped area where the proposed access steps and path are to be located is roughly 
triangular in shape and is positioned opposite the new main entrance of the school. The land slopes steeply 
from the St Andrews estate road down to the new school entrance. Four mature trees are located on the site 
with an underlying ground surface of bare soil and worn grass. Due to the configuration of the existing paths 
the area is frequently trafficked by pedestrians as a shortcut to the former school boundary gate and the 
position of the new main entrance currently under construction. The site area including the lower tarmac 
footpath, are in the ownership of Mid Devon District Council and the applicant is in current negotiations with 
MDDC to conclude the agreement.  
 
This application proposes the construction of two flights of steps with intermediate section of path leading 
down to the existing path level. The section of the existing low level path immediately in front of the new 
entrance will be repaved to highlight the new entrance. The path has been centred on the narrow gap in tree 
canopy and the area of least impact to tree root zones. 
 
The agent states that if a new footpath is not formalised, it is quite clear visitors to the school will continue to 
follow the shortcut across the landscaped area. 
 
The high level public footpath on the St Andrews Estate road is located 2 metres higher than the low level 
path adjacent to the new entrance. The levels of the steps and intermediate path closely follow the existing 
ground levels to avoid adjusting ground levels over the root zones of the trees. The access steps and path 
are generally 2 metres wide increased to 6.6 metres wide at the junction with the low level path. 
 
The proposed steps will be formed with grey textured paving units and risers to match the paving materials 
provided at the stepped and ramped access to the school. Paths will be provided in a contrasting block 
pavior or resin bonded aggregate finish. Steel handrails will be provided to the steps in the configuration 
shown on the layout drawings, details of which will be required by condition.  
 
The proposed works are of a relatively minor scale in comparison to the built form on the school site, and 
have been designed to complement the immediate surroundings in terms of form, scale and materials. It is 
considered that the design of the proposal respects the character and appearance of the surrounding area. 
The proposed works will improve general pedestrian movements and circulation of parents, pupils and 
visitors around the new entrance of the school.  
 
In support of the application a Habitat Survey and Ecological Appraisal Report  by Sunflower International 
Ecological Consultancy dated August 2016 (updated 20th December 2016) has been submitted indicating 
that the areas around the school site are of limited ecological value, and do not provide potential for use as a 
breeding or roosting/sheltering site for European protected species.  
 
 
 
 

Page 91



AGENDA 55 

An arboricultural survey has been submitted in support of the application due to the removal of some trees 
and the impact of the works on an existing ash tree. Whilst the trees that will be felled have some public 
amenity value their loss is considered acceptable. MDDC tree officer has been consulted on the proposal 
and no comments were received. The application proposes to retain the ash tree for its landscape and 
amenity value in the school setting, this tree will be monitored during construction works. The report 
recommends tree protection barriers to protect trees during the construction phase. Although the steps and 
path are positioned within an area of trees, the proposals seek to minimise the impact on the trees and root 
zones. The levels of the steps and intermediate path closely follow the existing ground levels to avoid 
adjusting ground levels over the root zones of the trees. Making good to ground levels will only be 
undertaken immediately adjacent to the steps and path edgings. As the works are largely within existing root 
zones areas no further planting is proposed. The trees are not located within the Cullompton Conservation 
Area and the Local Planning Authority are not required to be notified of such works. Some additional crown 
lifting of two trees is proposed which is considered to be acceptable.  
 
The site is located within the Cullompton Critical Drainage Area. The surfacing of the proposed access paths 
are of a permeable type and will collect all run off from the steps and discharge rain water to the ground. A 
drainage report and Flood Risk Assessment have been submitted in support of this application; along with a 
surface water drainage report setting out a preliminary drainage design, which includes results of previous 
infiltration testing to inform the design. The design incorporates the following: permeable paving, infiltration 
trenches and cellular storage soakaways.  
 
There are existing lamp posts located at the head and base of the proposed steps. No additional lighting is 
proposed. 
 
Overall the proposed design is considered to be in accordance with policy DM2 of the Mid Devon Local Plan 
part 3 (Development Management Policies). There are no other material planning considerations to mitigate 
against the grant of planning permission and therefore conditional approval is recommended. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date 

of this permission. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 3. No development shall take place on site until the off-site highway works for the provision of a tactile 

pedestrian crossing on St Andrews and the provision of school keep clear markings have been 
designed, submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and have been 
constructed and made available for use. 

 
 4. Prior to their installation on site, details (including materials, dimensions and finish) of the steel 

handrails to be installed alongside the proposed footpath and access steps shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. To minimise the impact of the development on the highway network in accordance with Paragraph 32 

of the National Planning Policy Framework and to safeguard pedestrians. 
 
 4. To ensure materials appropriate to the area in accordance with policy DM2 of the Mid Devon Local 

Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
 

Page 92



AGENDA 56 

REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposed construction of new footpath and access steps to school entrance is considered to be policy 
supported. The design of the scheme is of a high quality, incorporating sustainable design features and will 
preserve the character and special qualities of the adjacent Conservation Area. The Local Planning 
Authority are satisfied that the surface water drainage can be adequately and sustainably dealt with within 
the site. The proposal is not considered to have an adverse impact on occupants of neighbouring residential 
properties. As such, the proposal is considered to be in accordance within the following policies: COR14 of 
the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan part 1), DM2, DM25 and DM27 of the Mid Devon Development 
Management Policies (Local Plan part 3) and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



AGENDA 57 

 
 

Plans List No. 7 
 
Application No. 17/01240/OUT 
 
Grid Ref:  306965 : 114496  
 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs B Evans  
   
Location: Land at NGR 306965 114496 (2 Appledore Court)  

Burlescombe  
Devon  
  

   
Proposal: Outline for the erection of a dwelling  
 
 
Date Valid:         27th July 2017 
 
 

 
 

Page 94



AGENDA 58 

Application No. 17/01240/OUT 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Refuse permission. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
This application seeks outline consent for the erection of a dwelling at Land at NGR 306965 114496 (2 
Appledore Court) Burlescombe. The application is made in outline with approval for access also being 
sought. The access plan submitted shows the existing site access will be utilised. All other matters are 
reserved for subsequent approval.  
 
The site is located to the east of the main part of the hamlet of Appledore.  The site is accessed off a C 
Class Road from the A38 on the road from Lambs Inn to Higher Cross. Appledore is not defined in the Mid 
Devon Core Strategy as one of the districts defined rural settlements. The site is therefore located in the 
open countryside 
 
An identical application (17/00854/OUT) was brought before the planning committee on 12th July 2017 and 
was refused for the following reason: 
 
The site is located in the countryside where national and local planning policy and in particular paragraph 55 
of the National Planning Policy Framework seek to avoid new homes in the countryside unless there are 
special circumstances such as the essential need for a rural workers dwelling. No information has been 
submitted to demonstrate there are any such special circumstances. The LPA have considered the shortfall 
in housing land supply and have attached appropriate weight to the benefits of the application scheme. 
However the shortfall in supply does not override all other considerations. In this instance, the harm that has 
been identified in providing residential development in an unsustainable location significantly and 
demonstrably outweighs the benefits that would be derived from the scheme. The proposal would not satisfy 
the environmental dimension to sustainable development, as defined within the Framework, and in failing to 
meet overall sustainability objectives it would also conflict with CS policy COR1 and DMP policy DM1.  
 
This is an identical application with amended justification provided. The applicant argues that this application 
site sits in a location equidistance from the village of Uffculme and its services to that of the site that MDDC 
lost its 5 year land supply to at appeal (Land adjacent Harvesters ref: 15/00108/MOUT). The applicant 
argues in some cases that services lie closer than that of the appeal site, while others lie some 200 metres 
further away in distance. The applicant therefore argues that the sustainability of the site in terms of its 
location is in fact sustainable and it not isolated which was the reason for refusal in the previous application.  
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Site location plan, block plan, indicative layout plan, covering letter, planning statement, photographs, bus 
timetable, foul drainage assessment, wildlife and geology table.  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
80/01022/OUT - REFUSE date 24th September 1980 
Outline for the erection of two dwellings and septic tank   
 
81/00567/OUT - REFUSE date 28th April 1981 
Outline for the erection of 2 dwellings and garages 
 
17/00854/OUT - REFUSE date 17th July 2017 
Outline for the erection of a dwelling 
 
 

Page 95



AGENDA 59 

 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR1 - Sustainable Communities 
COR2 - Local Distinctiveness 
COR3 - Meeting Housing Needs 
COR9 - Access 
COR18 - Countryside 
 
Mid Devon Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan (Local Plan 2) 
 
AL/IN/3 - Public Open Space 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM8 - Parking 
 
Devon Minerals Plan  
M2 Mineral Safeguarding Areas 
 
Devon Waste Plan 
W10 Protection of Waste Management Capacity 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Highway Authority: 17th August 2017 - standing advice applies http://www.devon.gov.uk/highways-
standingadvice.pdf.  
 
Environment Agency: Operational development less than 1ha within Flood Zone 1 - No consultation required 
- see surface water management good practice advice - see standard comment. 
 
Environmental Health: 10th August 2017 
Contaminated Land - no objection to this proposal 
Air Quality - N/A 
Environmental Permitting - no objection to this proposal 
Drainage - no objection to this proposal 
Noise & other nuisances - no objection to this proposal 
Housing Standards - No comment 
Licensing - No comments 
Food Hygiene - Not applicable 
Private Water Supplies - Not applicable 
Health and Safety - no objection to this proposal enforced by HSE. 
 
Uffculme Parish Council: 14th August 2017 - No objection. We reiterate the comments from the previous 
submission. 
 
No comments were received on the previous application, however the following comments were found in the 
Parish Council minutes from their meeting held on 8th June:  The Parish Council has no objection to the 
application as it appears to be an infill between other houses in the area. Detailed plans are needed for full 
consideration. This application is made by Councillor Evans. 
 
 

Page 96



AGENDA 60 

Devon County Council - Minerals & Waste: 1st August 2017 
With reference to the above planning application, there is no difference in minerals policy terms to the 
previous application (17/00854/OUT), and the County Council's comments in its letter of 15th June 2017 
(copy attached) therefore apply to the new application. 
 
DCC comments provided on the previous application: 
Minerals Policy: The application site lies within a Mineral Safeguarding Area [MSA].  It is considered that the 
proposed dwelling will not result in any additional constraint on future mineral working and that the proposal 
is therefore not contrary to Policy M2 of the Devon Minerals Plan. However, it would be prudent to seek 
advice from your Council's Environmental Health Officer on the need for acoustic glazing to be incorporated 
in the new dwelling in view of the likely proximity to future mineral working. 
Waste Policy: The application site lies within a Waste Consultation Zone, given the distance between the 
application site and the active tipping area, together with the limited remaining life of the landfill facility; it is 
considered that the proposed dwelling will not materially constrain the operation of the facility, and that the 
proposal is therefore consistent with Policy W10. 
In conclusion, Devon County Council does not raise objections to the proposed development on minerals or 
waste policy grounds. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No letters of representation have been received at the time of writing the report. 
 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
The main issues in the determination of this application are: 
 
1. The principle of development on the site, including 5 year land supply 
2. Location 
3. Design and amenity 
4. Access and highway safety 
5. Public open space contribution 
6.        Minerals and Waste 
7.        Planning balance/overall conclusion 
 
1. The principle of development on the site, including 5 year land supply 
 
COR1 of the Mid Devon Local Plan Part 1 (Core Strategy) seeks to manage growth in a sustainable way to 
support the diverse needs of communities, including the provision of affordable housing and making the 
most efficient use of land. Policy COR3 seeks to meet the diverse housing needs of the community, 
including a target provision of 100 affordable dwellings per year across the district.  
 
The application site is outside the current settlement limit boundaries of any village set out in the Mid Devon 
Local Plan Part 1 (Core Strategy) and is therefore considered to be located in the open countryside. Policy 
COR18 of the adopted Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) seeks to strictly control development 
outside settlement limits and a development in this location of the scale as proposed would not be permitted 
under criteria a - f of this adopted policy. Neither is the site proposed to be allocated for housing within the 
Councils Local Plan Review 2013 -2033. The applicant asserts that the Local Planning Authority cannot 
demonstrate that it has an adequate five year supply of housing land as required by the National Planning 
Policy Framework, and therefore Policy COR18 should be afforded limited weight and that the application 
should be determined against the provisions of Paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  
 
The Local Planning Authority accepts that it is unable to demonstrate five years worth of housing against its 
housing requirement as set out within the National Planning Policy Framework and as such paragraph 14 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) therefore applies. Under paragraph 14 it is 
therefore necessary to consider whether there are any adverse impacts of the proposed development which 
would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies of the 
Framework and this is discussed further below.  

Page 97



AGENDA 61 

 
2. Location 
 
Consideration must be given to whether this is an appropriate location for residential development 
particularly, having regard to the proximity of services. The development would be located some distance 
from the nearest goods and services and it is highly likely that future occupants would be reliant on the 
private car. Whilst it is appreciated that there is a bus stop relatively close to the site which provides a 
service between Tiverton and Taunton, the service appears to provide a fairly limited services (4-5 buses a 
day Monday-Saturday depending on the direction of travel). Any future occupier would be expected to travel 
for basic services such as shops, a doctor's surgery or schools. The bus timetable supplied in support of this 
application clearly shows that there is a bus service (22) which operates between Tiverton/Cullompton and 
Taunton via Uffculme, Wellington and other limited stops. It is acknowledged that the 22 bus does stop at 
the bus stop referred to by the applicant (Lamb Inn, Appledore) it is noted while the earliest bus would pick 
up from that stop at 07.52am and would be able to reach Taunton for a normal working day, the earliest bus 
which would pick up from the stop near the application site at 09.31am and would not reach Tiverton until 
past 10am which would not allow travellers to commute in this direction using this service for a normal 
working day.  
 
Para 6 of the NPPF states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of 
sustainable development and Paragraph 14 of the NPPF states that 'At the heart of the National Planning 
Policy Framework is a presumption in favour of sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden 
thread running through both plan-making and decision-taking' and para 49 of the NPPF advises that, 
'Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.' In the opinion of your officers, this location without any access on foot to services and 
facilities, and only a limited bus service will result in occupiers relying upon a private car. To this end the 
location is not considered sustainable and therefore at odds with the NPPF. 
 
The applicant argues that the appeal decision reasoning by an inspector the agreed sustainability of 
application ref: 15/0018/MOUT, an application for 60 dwellings that sits equal distance from the village of 
Uffculme, albeit the other side of the village, from the current application it is argued that the application is 
measured against the same, shops, schools, doctors, bus route and other facilities and services that the 
inspector concluded to be a sustainable site. It is however noted that this application is for a single 
dwellinghouse and so it is considered that the economic benefits of allowing one dwelling in the open 
countryside would not (a) significantly add to the housing stock of Mid Devon, (b) be an affordable dwelling, 
or (c) have economic benefits wider ranging than that of the applicant themselves.  
 
The applicant further argues that the wording of the reason for refusal of the previous application misquoted 
paragraph 55 of the NPPF. The applicant argues that MDDC did not state that the dwelling would be an 
isolated dwelling in the open countryside. While it is agreed that this wording was not used in the reason for 
refusal for the previous application, officer still believe that dwelling to be an isolated dwelling in the open 
countryside due to its proximity and accessibility to facilities and services in Uffculme. The applicant argues 
that the dwelling would not be isolated due to its relationship with other dwellings within a 400 metre radius 
and small businesses at Appledore. 
 
It is argued by the applicant that Uffculme is within 25 minutes walking distance from the application site. 
The LPA would argue that while this is true and perhaps suitable for a healthy able bodied person, the walk 
is not a pleasant one for someone who is perhaps less abled. The walk is not via good pedestrian footpaths 
but rather along unlit, narrow lanes with limited passing places. In comparison, the Uffculme appeal site 
adjacent Harvesters has pedestrian footways for much of the route and is relatively level in terms of 
reaching the centre of the village and its facilities.  
 
The Uffculme appeal adjacent Harvesters refers to their being a number of employment opportunities in the 
village and that Langlands and Hitchcock's business parks are close by. None of these things can be said 
for Appledore Court. 
 
 
 
 

Page 98



AGENDA 62 

The applicant further argues that the site is within the Devon County Council 2 mile guide from the nearest 
school. As above, while the site might be within the 2 mile guide, the 2 mile walk is not considered suitable 
for children along unlit back roads which would not be safe, particularly on a dark, wet, rainy winter’s 
morning.  
 
The pedestrian route is also used by large lorries for the minerals and extraction and tipping in the area 
within Devon County Council. The route is used by lorries going to Straitgate. 
 
The Uffculme appeal site to the west of Harvesters was directly adjacent to the settlement of Uffculme 
whereas the application site we are currently considering about is not directly adjacent to Uffculme nor is it 
well related.  
 
3. Design and amenity 
 
Policy DM2 requires that new development must be of high quality. Whilst this is an outline application and 
no designs have been put forward, it is appropriate to consider whether the development of this site would 
be appropriate in terms of the impact on the character of the area and in landscape terms. The landscape 
character of the site is defined as being lower rolling farmed and settled valley slopes. The land is Grade 3 
agricultural land. The site itself is elevated in relation to the road running along the frontage of the site. The 
land is fairly level once on the site. The site is screened to some extent by the bank and vegetation along the 
frontage; however glimpses of the site are afforded from the road. The rear of the site is well screened by 
mature trees. The site comprises part of the garden of 2 Appledore Court, Burlescombe. To the West of the 
site are 4 existing dwellings (1-4 Appledore Court). To the East of the site is the property of Homecroft. The 
existing site is currently used as a vegetable garden in association with 2 Appledore Court. The site has a 
polytunnel on it, fruit/vegetable cage and a shed. An indicative layout plan shows a possible location for a 
new dwelling within the site; however this location is not fixed at this stage. The Local Planning Authority 
would require a detailed submission of reserved matters before being able to conclude whether a scheme 
would be acceptable.  
 
4. Access and highway safety 
 
The site is accessed off a C Class Road from the A38 on the road from Lambs Inn to Higher Cross. The 
national speed limit applies in this location; however realistically due to the vegetation on either side of the 
road a vehicle would be more likely to be travelling no more than 30 mph. The applicant has ownership of 
the hedges either side of the access, provided they are suitably maintained the visibility at the junction is 
considered to be sufficient so as to accommodate the additional traffic arising from the proposed 
development. As such the application is considered to be in accordance with policy DM8 of the Local Plan 
Part 3 (Development Management Policies). Moreover, the local road network is suitable to support any 
additional traffic movements occurring as a result of the proposed use, it is considered that the number of 
additional movements created and any resultant impacts are negligible.  
 
In addition, policy DM8 stipulates that development must provide an appropriate level of parking, guiding 
that 1.7 spaces should be provided per dwelling. The proposed scheme shows parking and turning space for 
the proposed new dwelling on the indicative layout plan. Two car parking spaces would be required to be 
shown in a reserved matters application.  
 
5. Public open space contribution 
 
Development resulting in the creation of new dwellings leads to a cumulative demand for public open space 
and therefore policy AL/IN/3 of the Allocations and Infrastructure DPD requires such development to 
contribute toward the provision of POS. A financial contribution of £1205.00 towards the provision and 
funding of POS in the form of Phase Two improvements to Station Road open space, Burlescombe has 
been made in accordance with this policy and the scale of charges set out in the relevant SPD. A further 
monitoring fee of £110.80 has also been paid.  
 
 
 
 

Page 99



AGENDA 63 

6. Minerals and waste 
 
The site lies within a minerals safeguarding area where its potential to sterilise or constrain any future 
minerals working is a material consideration under policy M2 of the Devon Minerals Plan 2017. However, 
Devon County Council has confirmed in their consultation response that the proposed is not considered to 
additionally constrain the nearby minerals resource and is not contrary to this policy. If granted, Devon 
County Council advise consideration should be given to whether acoustic glazing is required due to likely 
proximity to future mineral working.  
 
The application site also lies within with a waste consultation zone, but due to distance from active tipping 
(limited remaining life of the landfill facility) it is not considered to materially constrain the operation of that 
facility and is consistent with policy W10 of the Devon Waste Plan.  
 
7. Planning Balance / Overall Conclusion 
 
Officers have considered the shortfall in housing land supply and have attached appropriate weight to the 
benefits of the application scheme. However the shortfall in supply does not override all other 
considerations. In this instance, the harm that has been identified in providing residential development in an 
unsustainable location significantly and demonstrably outweighs the benefits that would be derived from the 
scheme. The proposal would not satisfy the environmental dimension to sustainable development, as 
defined within the Framework, and in failing to meet overall sustainability objectives it would also conflict 
with Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) policy COR1 and Mid Devon Local Plan part 3 
(Development Management Policies) policy DM1.  
 
Therefore the Local Planning Authority remains of the view that the adverse impacts of allowing the 
development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits and that accordingly permission 
should be refused. 
 
The appeal inspector for the Uffculme site refers to 60 dwellings bringing social benefits in terms of 
delivering much needed housing and at para 67 refers to 21 affordable dwellings. The provision of one 
dwelling at Appledore Court would secure neither of these. In addition, the economic benefits mentioned are 
limited to the applicant only and short term on local housebuilders. No wider economic benefits have been 
identified.  
 
Should members so wish, members have the ability under Section 70B of the Town and Country Planning 
Act (as amended) to decline to determine this application by virtue of it being similar to an application that 
has been refused and the time within which an appeal could be made has not expired (application 
17/00854/OUT refused 17th July 2017). 
 
REASONS FOR REFUSAL 
 
 
 1. The site is located in the countryside where national and local planning policy and in particular 

paragraph 55 of the National Planning Policy Framework seek to avoid new isolated homes in the 
countryside unless there are special circumstances such as the essential need for a rural workers 
dwelling. No information has been submitted to demonstrate there are any such special 
circumstances. The Local Planning Authority have considered the shortfall in housing land supply and 
have attached appropriate weight to the benefits of the application scheme. However the shortfall in 
supply does not override all other considerations. In this instance, the harm that has been identified in 
providing residential development in an isolated and unsustainable location in the countryside 
significantly and demonstrably outweighs the benefits that would be derived from the scheme. The 
proposal would not satisfy the environmental dimension to sustainable development, as defined within 
the Framework, and in failing to meet overall sustainability objectives it would also conflict with Mid 
Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan part 1) policy COR1 and Mid Devon Local Plan part 3 (Development 
management Policies) policy DM1. 

 
 
 

Page 100



AGENDA 64 

 
 

Plans List No. 8 
 
Application No. 17/01265/HOUSE 
 
Grid Ref:  283316 : 100109  
 
Applicant: Mrs H Zorlu  
   
Location: Hilary  

Barnfield  
Crediton  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Retention of 1.8m high fence on block wall on west boundary and erection of 1.8m fence on 

existing block wall on north boundary  
 
 
Date Valid:         21st August 2017 
 
 

 
 

Page 101



AGENDA 65 

Application No. 17/01265/HOUSE 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Retention of 1.8m high fence on block wall on west boundary and erection of 1.8m fence on existing block 
wall on north boundary at Hilary, Barnfield, Crediton. This is a semi- detached two storey dwelling located 
within a residential area of Crediton. The dwelling is constructed with a painted render appearance, slate 
roof and white uPVC windows. To the front there is a parking area and to the rear the garden extends out to 
meet the end of the cul-de-sac of Brays Close. There is an existing detached garage located at the northern 
end of the garden although it does not appear that there is vehicular access to it. A public footpath runs 
along the western boundary of the site from Barnfield through Brays Close and further north towards the 
High Street.  
 
The application seeks part retrospective consent for the erection of a 1.8m high fence which has been 
erected on top of an existing block wall. The fence has been partially completed to the western boundary 
and will be continued up to and along the side of the dwelling. It is also proposed to erect the fence to the 
northern boundary on top of the existing brick walling. By virtue of the sloping nature of the site the brick 
walling on which the fence sits is stepped such that the overall height of the fence is also stepped along 
some of its length. The fence is a timber close board style.  
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Site plan, block plan, photographs, sketch elevational drawings 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
81/00381/OUT - REFUSE date 8th April 1981 
Outline for the erection of two dwellings and garages   
00/00306/OUT - WD date 23rd March 2001 
Outline for the erection of two detached dwellings and relocation of existing detached garage serving the 
existing dwelling ('Hilary')   
00/01379/FULL - PERMIT date 8th November 2000 
Erection of one detached two storey dwelling with detached garage; relocation of existing garage serving the 
existing dwelling (Hilary)   
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan 1) 
 
COR15 - Crediton 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM1 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM13 - Residential extensions and ancillary development 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY- 11th September 2017- No specific comments.  
 
At the time of writing the report the period for statutory consultees to respond has not yet expired. Any 
additional responses will be reported to committee as an update.  
 
 

Page 102



AGENDA 66 

REPRESENTATIONS 
 
No letters of representation have been received at the time of writing the report. The application has been 
advertised by way of site notice, local press and letters to neighbouring properties. The consultation period 
expires on 3rd October and any representations will be reported to committee as an update. 
 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
This application for fencing on the site boundary has been submitted, in part retrospectively, following 
discussions between the applicant and the Local Planning Authority's enforcement officer.  The main issues 
in determination of this application are: 
 
1. Policy 
2. Impact on the character and appearance of the street scene 
3. Impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and users of the public footpath  
 
Policy DM13 of the Local Plan part 3 (Development Management Policies) deals with residential extensions 
and other ancillary development, more specifically it supports this development subject to the following 
criteria; 
 
a) Respects the character, scale, setting and design of existing dwelling 
b) Will not result in over-development of the dwelling curtilage; and 
c) Will not have a significantly adverse impact on the living conditions of occupants of neighbouring 
properties.  
 
A summary assessment of the application scheme against these criteria is set out below; 
 
A) The fence is sited around the edge of the rear garden of the property and is therefore not largely 
visible from the road at the front of the property through Barnfield. However the cul-de-sac of Brays Close 
wraps around to the rear and the fence is clearly visible within the street scene at the rear of the property. 
The fence projects beyond the hedge boundary of number 1 Brays Close and by virtue of its height is 
relatively prominent within the street scene. There are a variety of boundary treatments that are visible from 
Brays Close, including hedging, brick walling and wire fencing. The change in levels between the garden 
areas of the Brays Close properties and the level of the road result in many of the boundary enclosures 
being of a similar height to the fence hereby proposed which lends to a sense of enclosure particularly at the 
end of the cul de sac closest to the site. Whilst the fence is relatively prominent considering the surrounding 
street scene and location towards the end of the cul de sac, it is not considered that it causes unacceptable 
harm to the character, visual amenities or appearance of the street scene.  
 
B) The proposal is not considered to result in over development of the dwelling curtilage.  
 
C) The fence sits adjacent to the public footpath that runs between the western boundary of the 
dwelling and number 1 Brays Close. The fence sits immediately adjacent to the public footpath however it is 
not considered that it will be unduly overbearing to users of the public footpath. The works have formalised 
the route such that it now appears well maintained to passers-by. The neighbouring properties to the north 
and west are sited sufficient distance away such that it is not considered that the fence results in harm to 
their amenity. The adjoining property, Claremont, to the east is screened by the existing hedge boundary 
and it is also not considered that their amenity is adversely affected.  
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted is considered to have been lawfully commenced on 21st August 

2017. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 

Page 103



AGENDA 67 

 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. To set a legal commencement date for the works. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The application for retention of 1.8m high fence on dwarf block wall sections on the west boundary and 
erection of 1.8m fence on an existing dwarf block wall on the north boundary of this residential property is 
considered to be supportable in policy terms. Whilst the fence is clearly visible within the street scene at the 
rear of the property, given the layout and variety of surrounding boundary treatments it is not considered that 
the presence of the fence results in an unacceptable impact on the character and appearance of the street 
scene. It is not considered that the fence results in an unacceptable impact on users of the public footpath. 
There are no concerns regarding over development of the dwelling curtilage or impact on neighbouring 
properties. Overall the proposal is considered to comply with the following policies DM1, DM2 and DM13 of 
the Local Plan part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 104



AGENDA 68 

 
 

Plans List No. 9 
 
Application No. 17/01332/HOUSE 
 
Grid Ref:  302740 : 115684  
 
Applicant: Miss C Marlow  
   
Location: Shapcott Cottage  

Whitnage  
Tiverton  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Erection of two storey extension following demolition of single storey extension and porch; 

internal and external repairs and alterations; alterations to northern boundary/access; 
erection of den and relocation of greenhouse and polytunnel  

 
 
Date Valid:         14th August 2017 
 
 

 
 

Page 105



AGENDA 69 

Application No. 17/01332/HOUSE 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant permission subject to conditions. 
 
MEMBERS ARE ASKED TO NOTE THAT THIS IS A HOUSEHOLDER APPLICATION 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Planning permission for erection of two storey extension following demolition of single storey extension and 
porch; internal and external repairs and alterations; alterations to northern boundary /access; erection of den 
and relocation of greenhouse and polytunnel. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Design and Access Statement  
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
88/01723/LBC - Consent to partially demolish and rebuild kitchen lean to - PERMIT - 07.09.88 
09/01445/LBC  - Consent to replace roof thatch - PERMIT - 23.11.09 
10/01863/LBC  - Consent to replace roof thatch - PERMIT - 26.01.11 
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM2 - High quality design 
DM13 - Residential extensions and ancillary development 
DM27 - Development affecting heritage assets 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Uplowman Parish Council - 4 September 2017-no objection 
Highway Authority - 24 August 2017- standing advice applies 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
None received 
 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
Shapcott Cottage is one of a pair of semidetached Grade II listed cottages formed from a single dwelling and 
attached ancillary buildings in the mid 20th century.  The rendered cob, stone and block building has a 
thatched roof.  In 1988 a lean to kitchen extension was permitted incorporating a small part of a previous, 
probably stone, structure.  The proposal is to replace the existing single storey extension with a two storey 
extension constructed of rendered block and have a natural slate covered gabled roof. The extension would 
have timber and steel windows, French doors and a solid timber back door. The aim is to reflect the 
appearance of some of the older windows and doors on the property.  Revised and additional details are to 
be provided and where required can be subject of a condition requiring full working details. The proposed 
extension would have a ridge at a lower level than the ridge of the existing house. It would continue on the 
same axis as the house.  
 
An existing poor quality rear extension is also proposed to be removed. A single storey lean to is to be 
constructed against the back wall of the proposed two storey extension and continued across part of the rear 
elevation of the cottage; this lean to is to have a corrugated iron roof.   
 

Page 106



AGENDA 70 

The proposed demolitions relate to the 1988 fabric; the older stone part of the existing kitchen lean to 
structure is to be retained and re used as an open fronted store attached to the front elevation of the 
proposed new two storey extension.   
 
The existing vehicular access point is to be relocated a little further to the west partly to improve visibility for 
emerging vehicles and partly to enable the construction of the proposed extension; this will require removal 
of existing timber gates and fence panel together with a small section of block wall. A new set of timber 
gates is to be installed at the access point. 
 
In addition the proposal is for construction of a small timber den (3m x 2.5m and approximately 2.1m high) to 
the east side of the garden and the relocation of the existing polytunnel and greenhouse, to be located close 
to the western boundary. These ancillary outbuildings are located well away from the cottage. 
 
The proposed removal of existing single storey extensions and replacement with an extension as described 
would be a visual improvement to the end of the cottage.  
 
Retention of part of the front single storey projection in the form of a small open fronted store with a lean to 
corrugated iron roof  would provide some protection to the front corner of the house and reinstate what 
appears as boundary wall seen on 1880 OS map.  It seems likely that other than the remains of an old 
boundary wall the single storey extension is largely 20th century construction possibly providing a kitchen at 
the time the original house was split.   
 
The proposed development  complies with Policy DM2 of the Mid Devon Local Plan part 3 (Development 
Management Policies) with high quality design of both the new extension and the small den outbuilding. The 
design is based on clear analysis of the context of the listed building located in a small hamlet, reflecting 
elements of the local vernacular; moving the access allows for efficient use of the land; the extension will 
make a positive contribution to the setting of the heritage asset.  The extended property will integrate with 
the development pattern and appearance of the hamlet of Whitnage.  Neither the extension nor the new and 
relocated ancillary outbuildings will have any adverse impact on the privacy or amenities of the adjoining 
cottage. The use of slate to the roof of the two storey extension and the use of a lower ridge line than the 
main house will result in a mannerly and subservient addition to the property in line with National Planning 
Policy Framework paragraph 58 and Mid Devon Local Plan Policy DM13.  This requires inter alia that 
extensions to existing dwellings should respect the character, scale…. and design of the existing building; 
not have a significantly adverse impact on living conditions of occupants of neighbouring properties. Both 
the extension and the outbuildings have no adverse impact on the living conditions of the adjoining cottage 
Whitnage Chart as the extension is at the gable end furthest away from the boundary and the outbuildings 
are screened by the boundary hedge, and  the adjacent farm's barns lie between the application property 
and the farmhouse  It will have no adverse impact on either the setting of the attached Grade II listed 
dwelling Whitnage Chart nor the adjacent farmstead group at Whitnage Farm. It therefore complies with 
NPPF paragraph 131 and Policy DM27 of the Mid Devon Local Plan. 
 
The accompanying application for Listed Building consent is being recommended for approval and will 
condition the details of new windows and doors together with the submission and approval of roof material 
samples. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this 

consent. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

Page 107



AGENDA 71 

 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposed works to demolish the existing 20th century extensions and replace them with a well-designed 
two storey extension with lean-to's provides an overall visual improvement to the property particularly on the 
prominent gable end elevation.    The new timber den and the relocated greenhouse and polytunnel are set 
well away from the house within the large rear garden and have minimal impact on either the setting of 
Shapcott Cottage or the attached neighbouring Grade II property of Whitnage Chart.  The extension and 
alterations will not have an adverse impact on the privacy or amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring 
properties. The proposed development is therefore considered to be acceptable.  Therefore, the proposal is 
in accordance with Mid Devon Local Plan part 3 (Development Management Policies) policies DM2, DM13 
and DM27 as well as Paragraph 58 and 131 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 108



AGENDA 72 

 
 

Plans List No. 10 
 
Application No. 17/01333/LBC 
 
Grid Ref:  302740 : 115684  
 
Applicant: Miss C Marlow  
   
Location: Shapcott Cottage  

Whitnage  
Tiverton  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Listed Building Consent for the erection of two storey extension following demolition of 

single storey extension and porch; internal and external repairs and alterations; alterations 
to northern boundary/access; erection of den and relocation of greenhouse and polytunnel
  

 
 
Date Valid:         14th August 2017 
 

 
 

Page 109



AGENDA 73 

Application No. 17/01333/LBC 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Grant Listed Building Consent subject to conditions. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Listed Building Consent for erection of two storey extension following demolition of single storey extension 
and porch; internal and external repairs and alterations; alterations to northern boundary /access. 
 
APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Design and Access Statement  
Heritage Appraisal 
Schedule of works 
 
PLANNING HISTORY 
 
88/01723/LBC Consent to partially demolish and rebuild kitchen lean to - PERMIT - 7.9.88  
09/01445/LBC Consent to replace roof thatch - PERMIT - 23.11.2009  
10/01863/LBC Consent to replace roof thatch - PERMIT - 26.01.2011  
 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 
 
Mid Devon Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) 
 
DM27 - Development affecting heritage assets 
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Uplowman Parish Council - 4 September 2017- no objection. 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 
MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
Shapcott Cottage is one of a pair of semi detached Grade II listed cottages formed from a single dwelling 
and attached ancillary buildings in the mid 20th century.  The rendered cob, stone and block building has a 
thatched roof. In 1988 a lean to kitchen extension was permitted incorporating a small part of a previous, 
probably stone structure. The proposal is to replace the existing single storey extension with a two storey 
extension constructed of rendered block and have a natural slate covered gabled roof.  The proposed 
extension would have timber and steel windows, French doors and a solid timber back door.  The aim is to 
reflect the appearance of some of the older windows and doors on the property. Revised and additional 
details are to be provided and where required can be subject of a condition requiring full working details. The 
proposed extension would have a ridge at a lower level than the ridge of the existing house and have a slate 
roof. It would continue on the same axis as the house. An existing poor quality rear extension is also to be 
removed.  In addition a single storey lean to is to be constructed against the back wall of the proposed two 
storey extension and continued across part of the rear elevation of the cottage; this lean-to is to have a 
corrugated iron roof. The proposed demolitions relate to the 1988 fabric; the older stone part of the existing 
kitchen lean-to is to be retained, reroofed in corrugated iron and reused as an open fronted store attached to 
the front elevation of the new two storey extension. 
 
The proposals include removal of  several 20th century internal partitions on the ground floor, removal of the 
existing ground floor bathroom and also removal of the existing 20th century staircase.  The joists and 
floorboards will be inserted to allow creation of a corridor at first floor level to link the existing first floor to the 
extension.  

Page 110



AGENDA 74 

The proposal is then for the extension to accommodate a new staircase as well as a new kitchen -diner at 
ground floor with a bedroom and replacement bathroom above.  Associated with the removal of the 
staircase, a 20th century window will be infilled. Another window that appears to have a 20th century 
replacement mullioned frame is proposed to be removed and a replacement made to incorporate an old 
metal framed central light with an ornate catch once it has been restored.  Details of the works to recreate 
an appropriately designed window and opening will need to be submitted once a more detailed assessment 
of both the window and opening has been completed; this can be achieved through a condition.  Several 
other windows are to be repaired and have slender double glazing inserted. 
 
The existing front door (likely to be mid 20th century) is in very poor condition with rot from the base to 
around the mid point so the proposal is for a hardwood replica; the frame which appears to be older is to be 
repaired if possible by scarfing in new timber although if its condition proves to be worse than initially 
thought it too will be replicated in hardwood.  The existing back door opening has a 1980s pair of slim glazed 
doors of poor design and poor quality timber and will be replaced by a solid timber ledge and brace door to 
replicate the design of the front door. 
 
The proposal is acceptable as it will restore in part the historic layout of the ground floor by reinstating a 
single large room.  It seems likely that there is evidence of a cross passage (currently occupied in part by a 
bathroom) and a partition to create a hallway to the front door will be installed to reflect this feature. 
 
Retention of part of the front single storey projection in the form of an open fronted store would provide 
some protection to the front corner of the house and retain what appears as boundary wall seen on 1880 OS 
map.  It seems likely that other than the old boundary wall the single storey extension is largely 20th century 
construction possibly providing a kitchen at the time the original house was split.   
 
The proposed removal of existing single storey extensions and replacement with an extension as described 
would be a visual improvement to the end of the cottage whilst allowing for removal of several 
unsympathetic 20th century internal features.  This would also result in an old window opening being better 
revealed as it is currently obscured to a considerable degree by the modern staircase (which was probably 
inserted when the original single house was divided into Shapcott and Whitnage Chart).  The metal window 
as previously noted will require some renovation but is capable of reuse in a remade mullioned window 
frame.  The rest of the windows in the property including frames and sills are in various degrees of 
dilapidation with serious rot in one of the first floor bedrooms.  The proposals for repair and upgrading will 
allow retention of some historic joinery whilst also resulting in better energy efficiency and helping to protect 
the rest of the historic fabric of the building. 
 
The use of slate to the roof of the two storey extension, the use of a lower ridge line than the main house 
together with the two associated corrugated iron roofed lean tos will result in a mannerly and subservient 
addition to the property with visual benefits compared with the current poorly designed piecemeal additions.   
 
Removal of the existing gates, fence panel and a small section of block wall will not give rise to any harm as 
all the materials are modern and of no quality or significance.  Replacement with a traditional barred timber 
gate set will represent an improvement to the setting of the listed building. 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 1. The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this 

consent. 
 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed in 

the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 3. Prior to their  installation working details of all new windows and doors including sections, mouldings 

and profiles, finishes and glazing shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority .  The doors and windows so approved shall be installed strictly in accordance with the 
approved details and be so retained. 

 
  

Page 111



AGENDA 75 

4. Details of all window repairs and remaking of windows and frames shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of each window repairs and/ or 
remaking.  All repairs and remaking shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved 
details and be so retained. 

 
 5. Samples of the proposed slates and corrugated iron shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority prior to installation on the building. 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. To ensure the use of materials and detailing appropriate to the character and appearance of the listed 

building in accordance with Policy DM27 of the Local Plan Part 3 (DM Policies). 
 
 4. To ensure the use of appropriate materials finishes and methods for the age and character of the 

building in accordance with Policy DM27 of the Local Plan Part 3 (DM Policies). 
 
 5. To ensure the use of materials appropriate to the character and appearance of the listed building in 

accordance with Policy DM27 of the Local Plan Part 3 (DM Policies). 
 
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The proposed demolitions are justified removals of poor quality mid 20th century extensions whilst the 
proposed new extension is of traditional design with appearance and materials appropriate to this age of 
vernacular building.  The removal of various mid 20th century internal partitions will result in some of the 
significance of the building becoming more legible.  The repairs to joinery represent good conservation 
practice, whilst justified replacement will help to maintain the rest of the remaining historic fabric.   It is 
therefore an acceptable proposal resulting in improvement of the setting of the building, conservation of 
historic fabric and improved legibility of the significance of the building.  Therefore, the proposal is in 
accordance with Policy DM27 of the Mid Devon Local Plan part 3 (Development Management Policies) and 
paragraphs 132 and 134 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mrs Jenny Clifford 
Head of Planning and Regeneration 

Page 112



Major Applications with no Decision
Members are asked to note that some major applications will be dealt with under the delegation scheme.  Members are also requested to direct any questions about 
these applications to the relevant case officer. It was resolved at the meeting of Planning Committee on 20th February 2013 that any ground mounted solar PV 
schemes recommended for approval will be brought to Planning Committee for determination. 

Weeks REFVAL PROPOSAL LOCATION NAMETARGET DATE Delegated Committee
Item 
No.

Expected Decision Level

0 17/01225/MFUL Construction of a slurry lagoon (2738sqm) and 
creation of new vehicular access

Mr Daniel Rance15/12/2017 Land and Buildings at NGR 
302603 103592 Weavers 
Meadow Langford Devon  

1 DEL

0 17/01511/MOUT Outline application for the erection of up to 120 
dwellings, public open space, vehicular access and 
associated infrastructure

Miss Helen Govier19/12/2017 Land at NGR 282065 
100892 (Chapel Downs 
Farm) North of Queen 
Elizabeth Drive Barnstaple 
Cross Devon  

2 DEL

1 17/01509/MFUL Erection of 39 dwellings following demolition of 
existing garages and adjacent substructure, together 
with bike storage, underground car parking, 
landscaping and associated works

Miss Lucy Hodgson12/12/2017 Land and Buildings at NGR 
295350 112455 (Rear of 
Town Hall) Angel Hill 
Tiverton Devon  

3 COMM

2 17/01359/MOUT Outline for the erection of 84 dwellings and 
construction of new vehicular access onto Turnpike 
Road

Mr Daniel Rance04/12/2017 Land and Buildings at NGR 
302469 114078 Higher 
Town Sampford Peverell 
Devon  

4 DEL

2 17/01370/MARM Reserved matters for the erection of 60 dwellings Miss Hannah Cameron04/12/2017 Land at NGR 305658 
112080 (Harvesters) 
Uffculme Devon  

5 COMM

4 17/01323/MOUT Outline for the relocation and expansion of Tiverton 
High School and the integrated development of 
Tiverton Community Arts Theatre

Ms Tina Maryan17/11/2017 Tiverton High School & 
Land East of Bolham Road 
Bolham Road Tiverton 
Devon EX16 6SQ 

6 DEL

5 17/01346/MOUT Outline hybrid planning application for the erection of 
200 dwellings together with associated infrastructure 
and public open space and Full permission for 
portion of Link Road (land comprising southern 
portion of Phase 1 of North West Cullompton Urban 
Extension)

Ms Tina Maryan05/12/2017 Land at NGR 301536 
107900 North of Tiverton 
Road Cullompton Devon  

7 COMM COMM

21 September 2017 Page 1 of 3

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 8



Weeks REFVAL PROPOSAL LOCATION NAMETARGET DATE Delegated Committee
Item 
No.

Expected Decision Level

6 17/01298/MFUL Erection of 2 commercial buildings and formation of 
commercial parking yard areas with associated 
access works including formation of right turn lane 
on the B3181

Mr Daniel Rance03/11/2017 Land and Buildings at NGR 
305188 112386 (Hitchcocks 
Business Park) Carlu 
Close  Uffculme Devon  

8 DEL

7 17/01178/MFUL Erection of 200 dwellings, formation of new access, 
provision of phase of link road, primary school site, 
open space, landscaping and associated works

Ms Tina Maryan01/11/2017 Land at NGR 302103 
108277 (West Of Willand 
Road) Cullompton Devon  

9 COMM COMM

7 17/01179/MFUL Erection of 29 affordable dwellings, together with 
associated landscaping, highways and drainage 
infrastructure

Miss Hannah Cameron27/10/2017 Land at NGR 303340 
110341(Land off Silver 
Street) Willand Devon 

10 COMM COMM

9 17/01170/MOUT Outline application for the erection of up to 200 
dwellings, together with associated infrastructure 
and other works, including vehicular access, on land 
comprising northern portion of Phase 1 of the North 
West Cullompton Urban Extension

Ms Tina Maryan13/10/2017 Land at NGR 302186 
108607  North of Rull Lane 
and to The West of Willand 
Road Cullompton Devon  

11 COMM COMM

11 17/01090/MOUT Outline for the erection of up to 60 dwellings with 
associated access, parking, open space, 
landscaping and infrastructure (including retaining 
works)

Miss Helen Govier04/10/2017 Land and Buildings at NGR 
281938 100425 (Adjacent 
Brookdale, Threshers) 
Hollacombe Devon  

12 COMM COMM

11 17/01045/MFUL Erection of 2 glasshouses and a packaging building, 
formation of car parking, SuDs pond, access road, 
and associated infrastructure

Miss Hannah Cameron03/10/2017 Land and Buildings at NGR 
304975 112145 
(Hitchcock's Business Park) 
Uffculme Devon  

13 DEL

12 17/00982/MFUL Erection of 54 dwellings, including associated public 
open space, landscaping and all other associated 
external works

Mr Simon Trafford27/09/2017 Land at NGR 284671 
100838 Cromwells Meadow 
Crediton Devon  

14 COMM COMM

13 17/00826/MFUL Erection of 3 poultry houses and ancillary buildings 
following demolition of 2 existing poultry units

Miss Lucy Hodgson19/09/2017 Land at NGR 291466 
112201 Jurishayes 
Withleigh Devon  

15 COMM COMM

13 17/00942/MOUT Outline for the erection of upto 50 dwellings with 
associated access

Miss Lucy Hodgson15/09/2017 Land at NGR 296202 
112164 Exeter Hill Tiverton 
Devon  

16 COMM COMM

14 17/00924/MFUL Change of use of agricultural buildings to Class 
B1/B8 (Commercial Use) with associated yard and 
parking areas, landscaping and alterations to access

Mr Daniel Rance13/09/2017 Land and Buildings at NGR 
304296 107112 Newlands 
Farm Cullompton Devon  

17 COMM COMM

16 17/00878/MOUT Outline for the erection of up to 16 dwellings with 
associated access, landscaping and other ancillary 
development

Miss Lucy Hodgson29/08/2017 Land at NGR 292294 
101802 (South of 
Broadlands) Thorverton 
Devon  

18 COMM COMM

21 September 2017 Page 2 of 3

P
age 114



Weeks REFVAL PROPOSAL LOCATION NAMETARGET DATE Delegated Committee
Item 
No.

Expected Decision Level

17 17/00855/MFUL   Erection of extension to garden centre to form 
additional retail space, pallet store, covered 
entrance and covered outdoor areas and erection of 
a separate warehouse following removal of 
polytunnels (1,567sqm total)

Mr Simon Trafford24/08/2017 Bow Garden Centre Bow 
Crediton Devon EX17 6LA 

19 COMM COMM

21 17/00652/MOUT Outline for a mixed development of 30 dwellings, 
commercial buildings, access, public open space, 
landscaping, and associated works

Mr Daniel Rance24/07/2017 Land at NGR 303116 
110179 (NE of Rydon 
House) Willand Devon  

20 COMM COMM

28 17/00348/MOUT Residential development of up to 326 dwellings; 8.6 
hectares of land made available to facilitate the 
relocation of Crediton Rugby Club; up to 1.1 
hectares of land safeguarded for the delivery of a 
primary school; access arrangements from A3072 
(Exhibition Way); pedestrian and cycle access on to 
Pounds Hill/Stonewall Cross junction, Old Tiverton 
Road and Pedlerspool Lane; landscaping and area 
of public open space; and other associated 
infrastructure and engineering operations

Mr Simon Trafford05/06/2017 Land at NGR 284185 
101165 (Creedy Bridge) 
Crediton Devon  

21 COMM COMM

30 17/00173/MOUT Outline for the erection of up to 28 dwellings and up 
to 90 sq m of A1 retail floorspace, including 
incidental open space and car parking

Mr Simon Trafford24/05/2017 Land at NGR 287483 
106365 (White Cross) 
Cheriton Fitzpaine Devon  

22 COMM COMM

34 17/00106/MOUT Erection of 16 dwellings with formation of access 
and associated works

Ms Tina Maryan24/04/2017 Land at NGR 306965 
113252 (North of Belle Vue) 
Ashley Road Uffculme 
Devon  

23 COMM COMM

44 16/01772/MOUT Outline for the erection of upto 40 dwellings 
(including affordable housing), public open space 

 and associated infrastructure

Ms Tina Maryan15/02/2017 Land at NGR 313382 
113489 Culmstock Road 
Hemyock Devon  

24 COMM COMM

46 16/01707/MOUT Outline for the erection of 41 dwellings and 
formation of vehicular access

Ms Tina Maryan01/02/2017 Land at NGR 295527 
113644 (South Of Lea 
Road) Tiverton Devon  

25 COMM COMM

52 16/01424/MOUT Outline for the development of up to 330 dwellings 
together with public open space, associated 
infrastructure and other works including vehicular 
access, internal roads, pedestrian/cycle links and 
highway improvements (Revised scheme)

Mrs Christie McCombe20/12/2016 Land at NGR 298671 
113603 Uplowman Road 
Tiverton Devon

26 COMM COMM

21 September 2017 Page 3 of 3

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank



AGITEM 

 
 

Application No. 16/01830/FULL Planning Committee 
6th September 2017 
 

 
 
Application No. 16/01830/FULL 
 
Grid Ref:  296570 : 101388  
 
Applicant: Ms A Perrot  
   
Location: Oak Meadow  

Silverton  
Exeter  
Devon  

   
Proposal: Siting of 1 mobile home, 2 motor homes and a compost w.c.  
 
 
Date Valid:         1st February 2017 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 117

Agenda Item 9



AGITEM 

AGENDA ITEM  
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
6th September 2017 

 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 
 

16/01830/FULL - Provision of 2 additional pitches to provide 1 x 
additional travelling showperson’s pitch and 1 x dependent 
relatives pitch, erection of a wooden decked entrance to caravan 
and erection of a compost toilet - Oak Meadow, Silverton, Devon, 
EX5 4HE  
  
PLANNING WORKING GROUP – 21 September 2017 

Application 16/01830/FULL - Siting of 1 Mobile Home, 2 Motor Homes and a compost 
WC at Oak Meadow, Silverton 
 

There were 6 Members of Planning Working Group present.  

Also present – the applicant, an objector and the Ward Member 

The Chairman indicated that the Planning Working Group had been requested to visit the 
site to consider: 

 The access 

 The present layout of the site to what was being proposed 

 The location of the bore hole in relation to the siting of the composting toilets 

 The provision of the bore hole and the expected flow 

 Landscaping possibilities. 
 

The Area Team Leader outlined the history of the site and the previous approved application 
of 2013 for 1 permanent pitch.   She outlined the land owned by the applicant and the 
proposal for the siting of 1 mobile home, 2 motor homes and a compost WC.  She 
highlighted within the plan the routes of drainage and the proximity of the bore hole to the 
compost WC which was 90 metres (Environmental Health guidance stated that a 50 metre 
distance was satisfactory). A number of trees had been planted on the site and the site was 
itself surrounded by trees. 

The group then toured the site, identifying the hen house, the current composting WC, the 
implement shed, the position for one of the proposed motorhomes (which was already in 
situ), the location of the proposed bore hole, the existing pitch, poly tunnel and shed which 
already benefitted from planning permission and the site for the proposed for the siting of the 
mobile home and the new composting WC.  The Group then returned to the access to the 
site. 

The objector raised concerns regarding the 2 additional touring caravans on the site, he was 
informed that one was indeed a touring caravan and the other was used as a store.  The 
borehole had been part of the 2013 application but had not been progressed. He felt that  
part of the application being dealt with at the present time was partially retrospective, as 
some of the proposals were already in place.  He also raised the issue of elderly people 
living at the end of a remote lane. 

Page 118



AGITEM 

The applicant stated that landscaping on the site had taken place, they had planted over 200 
trees, footpaths were in place and her parents mobile home would be near to the access.  
Although her sister owned the site, she did not have responsibility for the access track. 

The Ward Member raised concerns with regard to what was actually proposed as vehicles 
were on site that had no planning permission.  She requested that a plan be provided which 
highlighted what had permission under the 2013 approval, what was on site without planning 
permission at the present time and what was proposed; there were many sheds on the site 
and she would like to know what they were used for.  The Area Team Leader agreed to 
provide such a plan. 

Consideration was given to: 

 What did and did not have planning permission 

 The positioning of the bore hole 

 The 2 composting WC’s both in use 

 The additional touring vans on the site 

The Group then drove to Killerton where they tried to view the site form the other side of the 
valley; Hayne House and Lower Hayne House were clearly visible as where a white horse 
box and some stables.  However the site in question was completely hidden by trees. 

Members considered the reasons for the site visit and agreed that they had looked at all the 
issues, although the site was hidden by trees at the present time, they  requested that the 
case officer consider a  condition to maintain the trees on site 

The Group agreed that they would voice their views regarding the application at the next 
meeting of the Planning Committee. 

 
 
Reason for Report 
 
Councillor Roach has called this application into Planning Committee for the committee to 
consider the suitability of the site to accommodate additional pitches, impact on the highway 
and to assess the travelling showperson status of the proposed occupants.   
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
Planning Permission granted subject to conditions as set out in this report. 
 
Relationship to Corporate Plan 
 
Managing the environment 
 
Financial Implications 
 
Should the application be refused and appeal submitted to the Planning Inspectorate there is 
a risk of an award of costs against the Local Planning Authority if it were found to have 
behaved unreasonably. 
 
 
 
 

Page 119



AGITEM 

Legal Implications 
 
The refusal of the application, or failing to comply with the planning conditions imposed on 
any grant of planning permission would result in Enforcement action being undertaken. 
 
Risk Assessment 
 
None identified. 
 
 Consultations carried out with 
 
1. Highway Authority 
 
2. Silverton Parish Council 
 
3. Environment Agency 
 
4. Environmental Health 
 
Representations received 
 
13 letters of representation received.  The comments received are summarised below. 
- Area is prone to flooding; 
- Infrastructure in the surrounding area is inadequate to accommodate further traffic; 
- The expansion of the site will have a detrimental impact on nearby residential 

properties; 
- Increased chance of collisions due to state of highways in the local area; 
- Hayne Lane is too narrow to accommodate additional traffic; 
- There is an 8ft width restriction on the lane which will make access into the site with 

the proposed caravan difficult; 
- Additional noise and air pollution associated with generators; 
- Site is unsuitable for development; 
- The application does not meet policy requirements; 
- Impact on the open countryside; 
- Lack of mains facilities makes the site unsuitable to care for others; 
- Concerns regarding composting toilets for the occupants; 
- Increase in refuse and recycling; 
- Difficult to access by emergency services; 
- Proposed mobile home should not be on a concrete base; 
- Proposed occupants already live on site; 
- Concern that surface water run off from the site will contaminate nearby 
 watercourses; 
- Wildlife on the site should not be disturbed; 
- There are limited passing places on Hayne Lane for pedestrians and vehicles to 

pass; 
- Concern about impact on views from permissive bridleway on the Killerton Estate; 
- Impact on Killerton estate has not been assessed 
 
 
1.0 Proposed Development 
 
1.1 The application seeks planning permission for the provision of two additional pitches 
on the site.  One additional pitch for a travelling show person (and family) and one pitch for 
dependent relatives of the permitted occupants of the site. 
 

Page 120



AGITEM 

1.2 The site currently has planning permission for one pitch for a travelling show person 
which was granted in 2013.  The approved pitch is occupied.  The proposed development, if 
approved would result in a total of three pitches on the site, two for travelling show people 
and 1 for the dependent relatives of the existing permitted occupants of the site. 
 
1.3 The new travelling show persons pitch is proposed to consist of two motor homes 
and the pitch for the dependent relatives would consist of a mobile home.  The 
accommodation proposed to be sited on each of the additional pitches is stated to be in 
accordance with the definition of a caravan. 
 
1.3 The application also proposes the erection of a composting toilet and the erection of 
a timber access deck which would be physically attached to the outside of the proposed 
mobile home. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.0 APPLICANT'S SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Planning Statement 
Plans and elevations 
Soft landscaping plan 
Percolation test results 
Mobile home specifications 
Foul drainage assessment 
Grey water tank  
Wildlife checklist 
Traffic generation Assessment 
Confidential information relating to personal circumstances 
 
3.0 PLANNING HISTORY 
 
Change of use of land from agriculture to 1 pitch to accommodate a Traveller family and 1 
pitch for mobile horticultural business 
Ref. No: 09/00340/FULL | Status: Application Withdrawn 
Erection of 1 polytunnel and shed 
Ref. No: 09/01501/FULL | Status: Application Permitted 
Erection of 1 polytunnel, shed, compost toilet and construction of a track 
Ref. No: 09/01503/FULL | Status: Application Permitted 
Change of use of agricultural land to allow the construction of 2 yurts for use by one gypsy 
and traveller family (Revised Scheme) APPEAL DISMISSED 28.06.11 
Ref. No: 10/00334/FULL | Status: Application Refused 
Change of use of land to one pitch for a travelling show/circus family and the laying of an 
access track 
Ref. No: 13/01115/FULL | Status: Application Permitted 
Siting of 1 mobile home, 2 motor homes and a compost w.c. 
Ref. No: 16/01830/FULL | Status: Pending Consideration 
 
4.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
HIGHWAY AUTHORITY -8th May 2017 -  
Observations: 
Further to the Highway Authority's original comments and in response to the queries into the 

Page 121



AGITEM 

validity of the traffic figures, The Highway Authority has been in discussion with the Applicant 
and the planning officer and the applicant has submitted a number of assessments 
culminating in a submission dated 27th April which the Highway Authority considers would 
reflect a more realistic the usage by the applicants.. 
This indicates that over the existing consented development the proposed development 
would generate an additional average 2.1 movements per day by vehicles. While this figure 
is an increase in traffic the quantum of the increase would not be considered as severe over 
that of the consented development and would still be considered as a reasonable traffic 
generation for an agricultural field. 
Therefore subject to the Planning Authority being able to condition any consent to the 
personal use of the named applicants and there status of travelling show persons being 
accepted by the Local Planning Authority, the Highway Authority would withdraw its 
objection. 
Recommendation: 
THE HEAD OF PLANNING, TRANSPORTATION AND ENVIRONMENT, ON BEHALF OF 
DEVON COUNTY COUNCIL, AS LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY 
 
1. This permission shall ensure for the benefit of the applicants only 
REASON: In granting this permission the Local Planning Authority has had regard to the 
applicant's special circumstances 
 
In their comments as submitted on 10th April 2017 the Highway Authority had recommended 
refusal for the following reason: 
 
1. The road giving access to the site is by reason of its inadequate width, poor horizontal 
alignment, junctions, are considered unsuitable to accommodate the increase in traffic likely 
to be contrary to paragraph 32 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
SILVERTON PARISH COUNCIL - 15th March 2017  
The Parish Council recommends refusal of the above application on the basis that the site 
already accommodates a number of vehicles and the lane is not suitable for additional traffic. 
The Parish Council also feels the site is not suitable for additional living accommodation. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH -  
9th February 2017 
Contaminated Land - no objections to this proposal 
Air Quality - no objections to this proposal 
Environmental Permitting - N/A 
Drainage - Due to the numbers of persons moving onto the site I am not happy with the use 
a composting toilets and I would recommend that a more sufficient drainage 
system/treatment plant is installed.  
 
Further information is required on the location of the borehole in relation to the siting of the 
composting toilets and the storage/use of the old compost. This information is required 
before I can make a recommendation.  
 
Noise & other nuisances - no objection to this proposal. 
Housing Standards - Any accommodation that is to be lived in as a main residence needs to 
comply with the principals of the Housing Health and Safety Rating System, as defined by 
the Housing Act 2004. Please contact the Private Sector Housing Team for more 
information. 
 
Licensing This site will need to comply with the requirements of the Caravan Sites and 
Control of Development Act 1960. NOTE: First Schedule - Cases where a Caravan Site 
Licence is not required - S10. http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/Eliz2/8-

Page 122



AGITEM 

9/62/schedule/FIRST. Food Hygiene Not applicable 
 
Private Water Supplies  
Informative note 
No record is held for the proposal address. However, if a private supply is to be used by 
more than one property it would be classed as a Regulation 10 small supply, unless a 
commercial element is involved when it would be classed as a Regulation 9 supply under 
The Private Water Supply (England) Regulations 2016. In either circumstance a risk 
assessment and sampling regime will be necessary. The supply must not be used until the 
Local Authority (Mid Devon District Council) is satisfied that the supply does not constitute a 
potential danger to human health, including single domestic use. 
 
Please contact Public Health at Mid Devon District Council on completion of proposal.  
 
Health and Safety - no objection to this proposal. 
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY - 
Operational development less than 1ha within Flood Zone 1. No consultation required. 
 
5.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS 
 
 The main material considerations in the assessment of this application are: 
- Policy 
- Sustainability of the site and its location including highway implications 
- Need and availability of gypsy and traveller and travelling show person pitches 

in Mid Devon 
- Personal circumstances 
- Additional structures proposed 
- Other matters including drainage, visual impact 
 
5.1 Policy 
 
The Development Plan in force consists of the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), 
Mid Devon Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan Document adopted in October 
2010, and the Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management policies) adopted October 
2013. The Development Plan sets out the following policies in respect of Gypsy/Traveller 
sites and development in the countryside: 
 
The Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), in its Policy COR1, sets the distribution of 
new development to meet sustainability objectives; with Policy COR12 concentrating 
development principally on the 3 main towns within the District and Policy COR9 seeking to 
ensure that new development reduces the need to travel by car.  
 
5.1.1 Development outside recognised settlements is further strictly controlled by Policies 
COR13 to COR 17: Policy COR18 ('Countryside') provides a list of appropriate rural 
developments which are subject to detailed criteria- based development control policies, and 
which are set out more fully in policy AL/DE/7. 
 
5.1.2 Policy AL/DE/7 of the Mid Devon Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan 
Document sets out the situations in which applications for private gypsy and traveller pitches 
will be permitted. It states that pitches will be permitted provided that the need cannot 
reasonably be met on another site within Mid Devon which has consent or is allocated for 
gypsy and traveller pitches, that the site is within 30 minutes travel by means of public 
transport, walking and/or cycling of a hospital and secondary school and that occupation is 
limited to those meeting the definition of Gypsies and Travellers in the relevant national 

Page 123



AGITEM 

policy - currently Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS).  
 
5.1.3 Policy DM2 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies) refers to 
development proposals involving the construction of new buildings seeking to achieve 
energy and water efficiency and overall sustainable design. 
 
5.1.4 Relevant Government Guidance in this instance is the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) and Planning Policy for Traveller Sites (PPTS). The NPPF states that it 
should be read in conjunction with the PPTS and the PPTS states that its aim is to 'ensure 
the fair and equal treatment for travellers, in a way that facilitates the traditional and nomadic 
way of life of travellers while respecting the interest of the settled community'. There is a 
further government document 'Designing Gypsy and Traveller sites; good practice guidance' 
which has been considered in relation to this site.  
 
5.1.5 The PPTS states that planning law requires that applications for planning permission 
must be determined in accordance with the development plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. It goes on to say that applications should be assessed 
and determined in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
and the application of specific policies in the National Planning Policy Framework and this 
planning policy for traveller sites.  
 
5.1.6 It requires that Local planning authorities should consider the following issues 
amongst other relevant matters when considering planning applications for traveller sites:  
 
 . the existing level of local provision and need for sites  
 . the availability (or lack) of alternative accommodation for the applicants  
 . other personal circumstances of the applicant  
 . that the locally specific criteria used to guide the allocation of sites in plans or which 

form the policy where there is no identified need for pitches/plots should be used to 
assess applications that may come forward on unallocated sites  

 . that they should determine applications for sites from any travellers and not just 
those with local connections  

 
5.1.7 It also requires that when considering applications, local planning authorities should 
attach weight to the following matters:  
 
a) effective use of previously developed (brownfield), untidy or derelict land  
b) sites being well planned or soft landscaped in such a way as to positively enhance 

the environment and increase its openness  
c) promoting opportunities for healthy lifestyles, such as ensuring adequate landscaping 

and play areas for children  
d) not enclosing a site with so much hard landscaping, high walls or fences, that the 

impression may be given that the site and its occupants are deliberately isolated from 
the rest of the community  

 
These matters are therefore considered below. 
 
5.2 Sustainability of the site and its location including highway implications 
 
5.2.1 In terms of the location of the site, policy COR18 specifically states that sites for 
occupation by persons falling within the definition of a 'gypsy or traveller' are acceptable in 
principle in the open countryside. 
 
5.2.2 Since that time, the Authority has adopted its Allocations and Infrastructure 
Development Plan Document (DPD), including policy AL/DE/7 as described in the policy 

Page 124



AGITEM 

section of this report.  The Inspector's report into the soundness of this document found that 
the policy acts appropriately with the other allocations in the DPD to manage the location 
and impact of the required pitches and that the requirement that sites must be within 30 
minutes non-car travel time from a hospital and secondary school is reasonable in the 
context of the District and consistent with sustainability principles. 
 
5.2.3 The nearest hospital (with an accident and emergency department) is in Exeter and 
the nearest secondary school is understood to be in Broadclyst.  As buses to Exeter leave 
Silverton fairly frequently and school transport is provided to secondary school it is 
considered that the application can meet the requirements of policy AL/DE/7.  There is a 
Primary School in Silverton which is a couple of miles from the site.  An Inspector has 
previously concluded that occupiers of the site could access the Primary School without the 
use of a  private vehicle. 
 
The sustainability of the site must also be considered alongside the other material 
considerations to be taken into account assessing the current application. 
 
The Highways Authority were consulted on the application and originally recommended 
refusal of the application following concerns about the additional traffic on Lower Hayne 
Lane that is considered to have a substandard nature due to width and alignment and 
potential conflict between vehicles and pedestrians as well as visibility concerns at the 
junction of Lower Hayne Lane and the C417.  However, following the receipt of a revised 
report relating to the calculation of proposed trip generation from the site they have 
recommended that the application be approved.  The Highway Authority have concluded that 
the additional 2.1 trips per day that would be generated from the additional pitches on the 
site is acceptable and would not have a severe impact on highway safety.  The second 
planning Inspector who reviewed the site likened the traffic generation from the site to that of 
a continued agricultural use of the site.  The Highway Authority have stated that the 
additional 2.1 movements per day from the site would not result in traffic generation that 
would be significantly different to a continued agricultural use of the site.  In order to limit the 
number of traffic movements from the site a condition is suggested that would limit the 
number of road-going vehicles that are operated from the site, following an approach that 
was taken on a travellers site elsewhere in the country. 
 
Although the substandard nature of Lower Hayne Lane and the junction with the C417 is 
acknowledged by the Highway Authority and the Local Planning Authority, taking into 
account the limited additional movements from the site, the Highway Authority have not 
objected to the proposed development.  The Highway Authority have concluded that the 
proposed development would have an acceptable impact on the highway and is therefore in 
accordance with policy DM2 Local Plan Part 3 (Development management Policies).     
  
5.3 Need and availability of gypsy and traveller and travelling show person pitches 

in Mid Devon 
 
5.3.1 Although the site has been considered to be acceptable in terms of sustainability, the 
LPA have considered the need for and current levels of supply of pitches in the district.  The 
latest Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) was carried out in 2014 and 
demonstrates the need across the district until 2034.  This assessment forms the evidence 
base for the Local Plan Review which was submitted to the Government in March 2017 and 
which is currently awaiting public examination.  The 2014 GTAA indicates that in Mid Devon 
there is an additional need of 35 pitches between 2014 and 2034, please refer to the table 
below: 
 

Page 125



AGITEM 

Twenty year Gypsy and traveller pitch needs summary 2014 - 2034 

 Base 
numbers 
2014 

Additional 
need 
2014-2019 

Additional 
need 
2019-2024 

Additional 
need 
2024-2029 

Additional 
need 2029 
- 2034 

Additional 
need 
2014-2034 

Numbers 
as at 2034 

Mid Devon 53 15 6 7 7 35 88 

 
 

Twenty year travelling show person  pitch needs summary 2014 - 2034 

Mid Devon  5  6  11  

 
 
5.3.2 The LPA have made provision for previously identified need for gypsy, traveller and 
travelling showperson pitches within allocated sites in the AIDPD, however the latest GTAA 
indicates that further provision is required as identified in the table above. The AIDPD aimed 
to meet the strategic requirement for Gypsy and Traveller pitches through allocation of 
specific sites, including through the Tiverton Eastern Urban Extension and the north west 
extension of Cullompton.  Parts of the Tiverton EUE have progressed to outline application 
stage, however progress has been slower than expected or desired and there is currently no 
certainty regarding the timeframe for the provision of the gypsy and traveller pitches that are 
required as part of this development.  Likewise, recently two outline planning permissions 
have been received with regards to the north west Cullompton development area.  These 
applications are at a very early stage in the planning process and there is no indication of the 
timeframe within which the policy allocated gypsy and traveller pitches may be provided.   
 
5.3.3 Policy AL/DE/7 states Gypsy and Traveller sites in the open countryside should only be 
permitted where allocated sites will not be available to the prospective occupiers in a 
reasonable timescale.  These same allocated sites were referred to during the earlier 
planning and enforcement appeals relating to the site.  The need within the district was not 
specifically referred to when the 2013 application for a pitch for a travelling show person was 
considered as the site is considered to be sustainable.  However, since that time the latest 
GTAA has been produced which has indicated that there is now a greater need for gypsy, 
traveller and travelling show person sites in Mid Devon.  Although this application would only 
provide one additional travelling show person site, it would assist in a small way to the 
provision of additional pitches in Mid Devon.   
 
5.3.4 Although the site is considered to be sustainable and capable of accommodating the 2 
additional pitches proposed it should be noted that since the 2013 permission was granted 
for a travelling show person pitch on the site none of the allocated sites within the AIDPD 
have been developed and therefore no additional pitches have been provided.  Neither has 
Mid Devon District Council met the policy aspiration of providing a public site for Gypsy and 
Traveller pitches (AL/DE/8).  The LPA are unaware of any alternative sites within the district 
that may be available to the applicant's now or in the near future.  The ongoing uncertainty 
regarding the timescale of the provision of the currently allocated sites is compounded by the 
2014 GTAA which identifies additional need within the district. 
 
5.4 Personal circumstances 
 
5.4.1 The Appeal Inspector for appeal 11/00107/NUCU accepted that the site is acceptable 
as a traveller site, however, they concluded that the applicant had not demonstrated that she 

Page 126



AGITEM 

was a traveller.  In 2013 the applicant applied for a pitch on the land as a travelling show 
person and permission was granted.  Since this time the definition of gypsies, travellers and 
travelling show people has been amended.  The definition of a travelling show person for the 
purposes of planning policy means: 
 
Members of a group organised for the purposes of holding fairs, circuses or shows (whether 
or not travelling together as such). This includes such persons who on the grounds of their 
own or their family's or dependants' more localised pattern of trading, educational or health 
needs or old age have ceased to travel temporarily, but excludes Gypsies and Travellers as 
defined above. 
 
5.4.2 The applicant has not indicated that her way of life has changed significantly since the 
grant of planning permission in 2013.  The applicant still claims to be a travelling show 
person.  
 
The permission granted in 2013 under reference 13/01115/Full permitted the applicant to live 
on the site with her dependents. 
 
5.4.3 One of the pitches proposed in the current application is proposed to provide 
accommodation for the elderly and dependent parents of the applicant who for health 
reasons are no longer able to live completely independently and are going to require 
additional care (Sue Perrot and Peter Perrot).  Mr and Mrs Perrot do not fit within the 
definition of gypsies, travellers or travelling show people.  They are considered to be 
dependents of the applicant.  If there were sufficient accommodation on the site to provide 
for Mr and Mrs Perrot, as dependent relatives, it is considered that they could live on the site 
in accordance with the previous grant of planning permission.  The applicant wishes to 
provide the care required by her parents and as her existing accommodation on the site is 
not adequate to provide suitable living space for her dependents an additional pitch, to 
contain a mobile home, has been proposed.  The mobile home is stated to fall within the 
definition of a caravan.  The mobile home would be accessed via timber steps that would be 
attached to the outside of the caravan.  It is proposed to construct a new compost toilet on 
the site to serve this additional pitch.  
 
5.4.4 Personal information pertaining to the health and care requirements of the applicant's 
parents has been provided in support of the application.  Mr and Mrs Perrot are unable to 
continue with their lifestyle as continual cruisers on a canal boat.  These dependent relatives 
were not living on the site when the case officer last visited the premises.  
 
5.4.5 The second pitch proposed on the site is for a second travelling show person family 
consisting of the applicant's sister and partner and their son (Nina Perrot and Nick Van der 
Kolt).  This family group are already living on the site.  The proposed pitch would consist of 
two motor homes that would be sited on pad stones.  Parking is to the north and close to the 
entrance of the site.  The occupants of this pitch would have use of the existing compost 
toilet. 
 
5.4.6 Information has been submitted with the application to explain the employment history 
of Nina Perrot and Nick Van der Kolt. This confidential information includes letters from a 
number of people and companies who have employed the couple over the years.  Their work 
has been varied and has included a significant number of employments within the festival 
and show circuits.  There is a greater level of information regarding the working history and 
pattern of Nick Van der Kolt due to family circumstances with regards to caring for their son.  
It is understood that the couple's son is enrolled at a local Secondary school and is able to 
attend regularly. 
 
5.4.7 As well as requiring a site upon which to live when not travelling for work, Nina Perrot 

Page 127



AGITEM 

and Nick Van der Kolt wish to remain living on the site in order to share the care 
responsibilities of Mr and Mrs Perrot with the applicant. 
 
 5.4.8  The LPA consider that Nick Van der Kolt complies with the definition of a travelling 
show person within the DCLG 'Planning Policy for Traveller Sites', as amended in 2015.  The 
Local Planning Authority consider that Nina Perrot has been a dependent of her partner in 
recent years due to the requirement to provide childcare but acknowledge that she has 
continued to travel for work with her partner.  
 
5.4.9 Planning policy for travellers sites (para 11) states that Traveller sites should be 
'sustainable economically, socially and environmentally' and therefore ensure that Local 
Planning Authority policies 'promote peaceful and integrated co-existence between the site 
and settled community...ensure that children can attend school on a regular basis...provide a 
settled base that reduces the need for long-distance travelling and possible environmental 
damage caused by unauthorised encampment...reflect the way in which traditional lifestyles 
can contribute to sustainability.' 
 
5.4.10 It is understood that the children that currently live on the site regularly attend either 
primary or secondary school in the local area and in this regard the families established an 
integrated co-existence with the settled community.  There has been a number of objections 
to the current proposals to expand the number of pitches on this site to a total of 3.  The 
majority of these objections refer to concerns regarding the impact on local highway from 
additional traffic movements as well as impact on visual amenity of the area.  The PPTS 
states that 'Local planning authorities should ensure that sites in rural areas respect the 
scale of, and do not dominate the nearest settled community, and avoid placing an undue 
pressure on the local infrastructure.'  Although two additional pitches are being sought, it is 
considered that the provision of a total of 3 family pitches would not have a dominating 
impact upon the settled community in the area or place undue pressure on local 
infrastructure. The objections do not suggest that the development on the proposed site to 
accommodate 3 family pitches would be out of scale with the surrounding settled community 
and due to the distance from nearby properties is not considered that the 3 pitches would 
have an adverse impact on the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.  
 
5.4.11 Personal mitigating information has been submitted relating to the need for two 
additional family pitches on this site and this has been taken into account when considering 
the proposed development.  It has been concluded that the personal circumstances 
information relating to family members does add weight to the planning merits of the 
application.   
 
5.4.12 Should the development be refused and Nina Perrot and Nick Van der Kolt are 
required to vacate the current site and re establish a base for the family elsewhere, there 
would be an adverse impact on their  child's education as they have become settled within 
the community, there is also currently no other sites within Mid Devon to accommodate the 
family.  As there are broader family circumstances to be taken into account when assessing 
this application it is considered reasonable and justified for the Local Planning Authority to 
impose a personal condition restricting the occupation of the additional pitches on the site to 
the proposed occupants as stated in the supporting planning statement.   
 
5.4.13 The personal permission would restrict the occupation of the two additional pitches to: 
- Mrs Sue Perrot and Mr Peter Perrot; 
- Miss Nina Perrot, Mr Nick Van der Kolt and their dependents. 
 
5.5 Additional structures proposed 
 
5.5.1 The application includes the erection of a composting toilet on the site to serve one of 

Page 128



AGITEM 

the two additional pitches.  There is already one composting toilet on the site.  The 
composting toilet proposed is a small structure that would have a limited impact on the 
overall appearance of the site.  It would be 2.7m high, 1.9m long and 1.7m wide.  The 
general appearance of the compost toilet is similar to that of the existing, the toilet is 
accommodated within the modest sized timber structure.  It is not considered that the 
structure will be highly visible or intrusive in the landscape. 
 
5.5.2   In order to access the mobile home that would be occupied by Mr and Mrs Perrot, it is 
proposed to provide external timber steps on three of the elevations of the mobile home.  
The specification details submitted as supporting information with the application suggests 
that a small timber walkway would be provided at one end of the mobile home.  The Local 
Planning Authority consider that this aspect of the mobile home would not fall within the 
definition of caravan and as such has been considered as a separate structure that would be 
fixed to the outside of the mobile home.  The timber steps and walkway are considered to be 
acceptable as they would not be highly visible as an addition to the mobile home. 
 
5.5.3 These additional structures are considered to be acceptable for the reasons described 
above and in accordance with policy DM2 Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management 
Policies).  
 
 
5.6 Other matters including drainage, visual impact 
 
5.6.1 Foul and grey water drainage - The application states that foul and grey water will be 
managed on site.  Foul sewage will be managed by the 2 compost toilets. The grey water 
will be dealt with separately from the two additional pitches.  The grey water from the motor 
homes is proposed to be fed through a peat filter and into a tank.  The water in the tank is 
then able to be used on site to water plants etc.  the system has been designed to 
accommodate the grey water produced by the family each day.  Percolation tests have been 
carried out on the site and indicated that the soil has adequate drainage capacity.  The grey 
water from the mobile home is proposed to be connected to a reed bed system, through 
which wetland plants take up phosphorous and nitogen and transfers oxygen to roots that 
breaks down pollutants and organic matter. The plants are set in a gravel mulch layer that 
filtrates food particles and fine sediments. The clean water is channelled either into a pond 
or into soakaways.   
 
5.6.2  Surface water drainage - due to a lack of hard or impermeable surfaces the surface 
water from the site is from roofs of the caravans and ancillary structures only.  Surface water 
from the motorhomes will be directed onto the permeable surface on which the caravans are 
to be sited and surface water from the mobile home will be collected in water butts and any 
overflow will be directed to soakaway into the permeable surface on which the mobile home 
will be sited. 
 
5.6.3 Environmental Health have raised concerns about the provision of two composting 
toilets on the site and proximity to the bore hole.  Further information has been sought from 
the Agent regarding this matter and updated information will be provided to the Committee. 
 
5.6.4 The Environment Agency have provided standing advice on this application which 
states that in flood zone 1 a change of use to a highly vulnerable use (this includes caravans 
for habitable use) does not require any consultation with the EA. Consequently it is 
considered that subject to conditions requiring that suitable surface water and foul drainage 
is in place prior to occupation, there are no grounds to refuse the application with regards to 
drainage. 
 
5.7 Visual impact - Concern has been raised that the provision of two additional pitches on 

Page 129



AGITEM 

this site would have an adverse impact on the visual amenity of the surrounding rural area 
and on the setting of the Grade II* listed park and garden of the Killerton estate.  The site sits 
fairly low in the landscape and the boundaries of the site are a mixture of trees and hedging.  
Since permission was granted in 2013 for the existing travelling showpersons pitch a number 
of additional trees have been planted on the site. There are no views into the site from 
Hayne Lane.  A limited view into the site is possible through the entrance if continuing down 
Hayne Lane to connect to the public footpath that passes close to the site and continues in 
an easterly direction toward the river and Killerton beyond.  There are no clear views into the 
site from this public footpath, in fact there is an intervening land use between the public 
footpath and the application site that is clearly visible and which mostly prevents any view 
into the application site beyond. 
 
There is a permissive bridlepath and footpath on the western edge of the Killerton estate 
from which it is possible to look toward properties Lower Hayne, Hayne House and the 
equestrian/agricultural use adjacent to the application site, as well as toward the application 
site itself.  However, although this popular footpath/bridleway is slightly elevated above the 
application site, due to the density of vegetation on the boundaries of the application site the 
residential and horticultural activity on the site is not visible from this vantage point during 
spring or summer.  Although the proposed development would increase the residential 
activity on the site and this represents an incremental change to the character of the site, 
plus it is unlikely that the soft landscaped screening would provide such a complete visual 
screen of the site in the winter months, it is not considered that the proposed development 
on the site would have a significant detrimental impact on the visual amenity of the area or 
on the setting of the listed Killerton Estate.  With regards to visual impact, the development is 
considered to be in accordance with policies DM2 and DM27 Local Plan Part 3 
(Development Management Policies). 
 
6. Planning balance and Summary 
 
6.1 Local Planning Authorities, as public bodies, are subject to duties imposed by the Human 
Rights Act 1998 and are therefore required to act compatibly with the rights conveyed by the 
European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR), which was enacted by the Human Rights 
Act 1998.   
 
In particular, Article 8 of the Convention provides that: 
 
1. Everyone has the right to respect for his private and family life, his home and his 

correspondence.  
2. There shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right 

except such as is in accordance with the law and is necessary in a democratic 
society in the interests of national security, public safety or the economic well-being 
of the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health or 
morals, or for the protection of the rights and freedoms of others. 

 
6.2 These rights would be engaged should the application be refused.  Article 8 relates to 
the right to respect for private and family life and as conferred in legal judgements, implies a 
balancing exercise at Article 8(2) to be weighed against the wider public interest.  
 
 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years 

from the date of this permission. 

Page 130



AGITEM 

 
 2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved plans listed in the schedule on the decision notice. 
 
 3. The site shall not be occupied by persons other than: 
  Miss Adele Perrot and her dependents 
  Mr Peter Perrot and Mrs Sue Perrot 
  Miss Nina Perrot, Mr Nick Van der Kolt and their dependents. 
  
 4. This permission shall only authorise the use of the application site for the stationing 

thereon of 3 x motor home, 1 x towable caravan (touring type), 1 x mobile home which 
comply with the definition of "caravan" in Section 29(1) of the Caravan Sites and 
Control of Development Act 1960 and the Caravan Sites ACt 1968 (and as amended 
by the Caravan Sites and Social Landlords Act 1968 (Permissible Additional Purposes) 
(England) Order 2006 (Definition of Caravan) (Amendment) (England) Order 2006 shall 
be stationed on the site at any time. 

 
 5. If the site is no longer required for the permitted use by Miss Adele Perrot or her 

dependents, Mr Peter Perrot, Mrs Sue Perrot, Miss Nina Perrot or her dependents or 
Mr Nick Van der Kolt, then any caravans or vehicles associated with the pitches shall 
be removed from the site within 6 months along with ancillary buildings or structure, 
and the site restored to a condition in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
 6. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General 

Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order 
with or without modification) no development of the types referred to in Class A of Part 
2 of Schedule 2, relating to fences, walls, gates and other means of enclosure, shall be 
undertaken within the application site without the Local Planning Authority first granting 
planning permission. 

 
 
REASONS FOR CONDITIONS 
 
 1. In accordance with the provisions of Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004. 
 
 2. For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 
 3. The Local Planning Authority is not satisfied that the application site could adequately 

accommodate travelling show people and their chosen type of business on an 
unrestricted basis in terms of the potential impact on the local highway network or 
potential impact on the landscape character or visual amenity of the area.  However as 
the existing and proposed residents occupation of the site is considered to be 
acceptable, the imposition of a personal consent is considered to be appropriate and to 
comply with national planning policy for travellers sites, Policy AL/DE/7 of the 
Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan Document and Policy DM2 Local Plan 
Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 

 
 4. For the avoidance of doubt and to concur with the nature of the proposal having regard 

to the submitted details and to enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control 
over any possible future development of the site in accordance with Policy COR18 of 
the Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1) and Policy AL/DE/7 of the Allocations 
and Infrastructure Development Plan Document (Local Plan Part 2). 

 

Page 131



AGITEM 

 5. To ensure the site is restored to its pre-development state, given its location in the 
countryside in accordance with Policy DM2 Local Plan Part 3 (Development 
Management Policies). 

 
 6. To safeguard the visual amenities of the area in accordance with Policy DM2 of the 

Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
  
 
REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT 
 
The applicant and her family currently lawfully occupy the site.  The applicant's sister and 
family are also currently living on the site.  The applicant's parents do not currently live on 
the site.   The applicant's parents if living on the site would become the dependents of the 
application, the care of which would be shared between the applicant and her sister.  The 
applicant's sister and partner have been found to meet the definition of travelling show 
people as set out in the 2015 amended PPTS.  The site is considered to be an acceptable 
location for a travelling show persons site and there is permanent permission for a single 
travelling showpersons pitch on the site (restricted to occupancy by the applicant and her 
dependents).  It is considered that the proposed development would have a limited impact 
on the visual amenity of the area or on the setting of the listed park and garden of the 
Killerton estate.  The applicant and her family have become integrated with the local 
community and all the children present on the site regularly attend school.  Additionally the 
Council has not sufficiently progressed with the provision of a public gypsy and traveller site 
nor with the provision of gypsy and traveller sites through the delivery of development of 
allocated sites.   As a result the Council has no alternative site within the district upon which 
the applicant's sister could be accommodated now or within a reasonable timescale.  On 
balance it is considered that the needs for the provision of two additional pitches on this site 
outweigh any harm associated with the impact on the highway and any limited harm to the 
visual amenity of the area.  Therefore it is recommended that planning permission is 
approved.  As the needs of the application refer to the requirement to provide 
accommodation for dependent relatives of the applicant and the second travelling 
showperson pitch is also related to the provision of accommodation to provide care and 
assistance to these dependent relatives, it is considered appropriate to impose a personal 
permission on the site that ensures that the two additional pitches are occupied by the family 
members stated within the application supporting documents.  Taking into account all 
material considerations the application meets with the requirements of Policies COR1, 
COR9, COR12 and COR18 of Mid Devon Core Strategy (Local Plan Part 1), Policy AL/DE/7 
of the Allocations and Infrastructure Development Plan Document and Policies DM2 and 
DM27 of Local Plan Part 3 (Development Management Policies). 
 
 
Author and Contact for any more 
information 
 

Miss Lucy Hodgson Tel 01884 234905                     
 

Background Papers 10/00334/FULL 
11/00107/NUCU 
APP/Y/1138/C/11/2167967 
13/01115/FULL 
 

File Reference 16/01830/FULL 
 

Circulation of the Report 
 

Cllrs Richard Chesterton  
Members of the Planning Committee  
 

 

Page 132



AGITEM 

 
 
 

Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank



AGEREP 

   
 
Application No. 17/00016/TPO  
 
 
Grid Ref: 
 

NGR 
306770/113041 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
Location: Land at NGR 

306770/113041 
Clay Lane 
Uffculme 
  

  
   

 
  
  
 
 
 
 

Page 135

Agenda Item 10



AGEREP 

  
 
PLANNING COMMITTEE – 4 October 2017 
 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING, ECONOMY AND REGENERATION 
 
Update to original report. 
 
Consideration of this report was deferred from the meeting of Planning Committee on 6th 
September to allow the Tree officer to further inspect the tree with regard to its current status 
and that further photographs identifying the proximity of the tree to adjacent buildings be 
made available.  
 
Following inspection of the tree again the Tree Officer has made the following comments: 
it is clear that is has declined further in health. This is possibly due to the excavations at the 
base of the tree where the access way was widened/created, but there may be other 
reasons for the crown dieback. MDDC Tree Officer does not see that the tree is showing any 
signs of being unstable.  
 
Tony Lane, Arboricultural Consultant was commissioned to inspect the tree and write a 
report in 2004. The report did not specify that there were any major concerns with the health 
or stability of the tree but made some recommendations to a light prune to selected limbs to 
reduce the weight where there may be some weakness in the crown of the tree. It is at the 
owners discretion as to whether this work is carried out.  
 
A Tree Preservation Order would not prevent the good management of trees by pruning. 
 
The tree is a mature Oak standing on a traditional Devon hedgebank. It has been pollarded 
in the past, for reasons unknown. It is in close proximity to property but this is not unusual 
and could easily be managed by pruning. 
 
Whilst it would be unfortunate to have this tree removed it may be that due to its declining 
health it may not be appropriate to confirm the Tree Preservation Order. The dieback 
throughout the crown ideally would be monitored however its reducing vigour mean the tree 
has reducing amenity value. 
 
 
Reason for Report: 
 
To consider whether a Tree Preservation Order should be confirmed in light of the objections 
that have been received. 
 
UPDATED RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Tree Preservation Order not be confirmed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 136



AGEREP 

ORIGINAL REPORT 
 
Relationship to Corporate Plan: 
 
The proposal impacts upon the Corporate aim of ‘Protecting the natural environment’  
 
Financial Implications: 
 
None 
 
Legal Implications: 
 
Tree Preservation Orders are made under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as 
amended by the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation) (England) Regulations 
2012. Local Planning Authorities can make a Tree Preservation Order if it appears to them to 
be expedient in the interests of amenity to make provision for the preservation of trees or 
woodland in their area. 
 
Risk Assessment: 
 
None 
 
Consultation carried out with: 
 
The landowners have been notified of the imposition of the Tree Preservation Order and 
provided with the opportunity to object to its confirmation.  
 
 
1.0 DESCRIPTION/SITE HISTORY 

 
This Tree Preservation Order was made in response to Conservation Notification 
(Section 211) to fell the tree in question. 

 

2.0 AMENITY EVALUATION  
 

2.1  The tree has good amenity value at the edge of the Uffculme Conservation Area.  It is 
a mature tree located towards the end of the residential area of Clay Lane. 

 

3.0 REPRESENTATION 

3.1 Two  objections to the TPO have been made on the following grounds: 

  The tree threatens property 

 The tree roots have been damaged 

 The tree is dangerous 

 The tree drops debris onto land (including branches) 

 The tree is messy and unhealthy 

Page 137



AGEREP 

3.2  A letter of support for the TPO has been received from Uffculme Allotment 

Association.  

4.0 MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND RESPONSE TO THE OBJECTIONS 
 
4.1  The mature Oak tree has suffered root damage in the recent past due to the widening 

of the access way. This widening work has not taken into consideration the presence 
of the tree and has cause some damage to this part of the trees root system. The 
tree should have significant roots in other directions to maintain its health and adjust 
to the damage. 

 
 It is noted that the tree has minor dieback in the crown at the time the TPO was 

made. The tree has not been visited by MDDC Tree Officer since this time and any 
further decline should be monitored. 

 
 There was no obvious sign that the tree was unstable and any deadwood in the 

crown can be removed without the need for an application. A brief visual tree 
inspection was carried out by MDDC Tree Officer when determining whether the tree 
was worthy of protection by TPO or not. Further investigation may be necessary. No 
arboricultural reasons were identified to justify the removal of the tree. 

 
4.2 The Tree Preservation Order does not serve to stop good management. There is 

nothing stopping the landowner from applying for future works to the tree should it be 
required. 
 

4.3 The tree is located in close proximity to the property Wellands Barn but this has been 
a historical relationship between the property and the tree. If it is deemed necessary 
to carry out pruning works to maintain adequate clearance an application must be 
submitted if the Tree Preservation Order is confirmed. 
   

5.0  CONCLUSION 
 

The Oak tree does merit a Tree Preservation Order. Using the amenity evaluation 
rating scoring system the tree received a score of 16, with 15 being the benchmark 
score to merit consideration when making Tree Preservation Orders. 
 
There are some signs of minor dieback in the crown of the tree; this may be related 
to the root damage which has occurred during the widening of the access.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact for any more information Cathy Lynch, Tree Officer 

01884 234304 
 

Background Papers  
File Reference 17/00016/TPO 

 
Circulation of the Report 
 

Members of the Planning Committee 

 
  

Page 138



MDDC Report [title] 
v 

 

   
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE  
     
DATE: 4TH OCTOBER 2017 
 
REPORT OF MRS JENNY CLIFFORD, THE HEAD OF PLANNING, ECONOMY AND 
REGENERATION 
 
PLANNING PERFORMANCE AGAINST TARGETS QUARTER 1 APRIL – JUNE 17/18  
 
RECOMMENDATION: For information and discussion. 
 
REASON FOR REPORT: 
To provide the Committee with information on the performance of aspects of the planning 
function of the Council for quarter 1 17/18 
 
MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION: 
Performance against targets, the Government’s performance assessment and resources 
within the Planning Service. 
  
RELATIONSHIP TO CORPORATE PLAN:  
The effective operation of the planning function of the Planning, Economy and Regeneration 
Service including the processing of applications is central to achieving priorities in the 
Corporate Plan. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Planning performance has the potential for significant financial 
implications in the event that applications are not determined within 26 weeks or an 
extension of time negotiated. In that instance the planning fee is returned. Through the issue 
of planning permissions for new dwellings the service enables the award of New Homes 
Bonus money to the Council. 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: The Government monitors planning performance in terms of speed 
and quality of decision making. In the event minimum standards are not met, an authority 
may be designated as underperforming with special measures applied that allow applicants 
for major development to apply for permission direct from the Planning Inspectorate and 
bypassing local decision making.  
 
The speed measure is twofold: firstly the percentage of major applications determined within 
13 weeks as measured over a 2 year period and secondly the percentage of non- major 
applications determined within 8 weeks as measured over a 2 year period. The targets of 
more than 60% and 70% respectively were met for the two year period ending March 2017. 
The Government’s two year assessment period ended in September 2017. Accordingly it is 
important to continue to meet these targets. 
 
The quality measure is also twofold: firstly the percentage of all major applications 
determined over a two year period that have been overturned at appeal and secondly, the 
percentage of all non-major applications determined over a two year period that have been 
overturned at appeal. The target for both measures of not less than 10% were met over the 
Government’s assessment period. 
 
RISK ASSESSMENT: Financial risk as a result of fee return and the designation of planning 
authorities in special measures for underperformance is referred to above. These aspects 
are actively monitored, to allow priorities to be adjusted as required to reduce the risk. 
However this risk is increasing with enhanced thresholds for intervention that also introduce 
measures for speed and quality of service to cover non-major applications. The speed and 

Page 139

Agenda Item 11



MDDC Report [title] 
v 

 

quality of the determination of major applications has been the subject of Government 
performance indicators for some time.  
 
The current absence of a 5 year housing land supply is resulting in speculative applications 
for major scale development on non-planned sites. Achieving the quality measure threshold 
for major application performance at appeal becomes more challenging within this context.  
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT: No equality issues identified for this report.  
 
1.0 PLANNING PERFORMANCE 
 
1.1 Set out below are the Planning Service performance figures for 2016/17 and showing 

a comparison against those achieved for 2015/16.  Performance data is published 
quarterly on the Council’s website at 
https://new.middevon.gov.uk/planning/performance-standards/  

 
1.2 Performance is set out below and expressed as a percentage unless marked 

otherwise and reports against a mix of Government and local performance targets.  
 

Planning Service 
Performance   

Target 
 

15/16 16/17 by quarter 16/17 17/18 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4  Q1 
Major applications 
determined within 13 
weeks 

60% *47% 75% 100
% 
 

100
% 

100
% 

90% 75% 

Minor applications 
determined within 8 
weeks 

65% 68% 72% 72% 79% 82% 80% 82% 

Other applications 
determined within 8 
weeks 

80% 86% 76% 77% 73% 90% 89% 91% 

Householder applications 
determined in 8 weeks 

85% 93% 86% 93% 93% 98% 98% 94% 

Listed Building Consents 80% 71% 78% 81% 89% 81% 84% 81% 

Enforcement site visits 
undertaken within 15 days 
of complaint receipt 

87% 89% 92% 100
% 

89% 96% 96% 88% 

Delegated decisions 90% 94% 95% 94% 92% 95% 94% 95% 

No of applications over 13 
weeks old without a 
decision 

Less than 
45 
applications 

40 37 39 33 29 29 41 

Major applications 
determined within 13 
weeks (over preceding  2 
years) 

More than 
60% 
(previously 
50%) 

53% 51% 80% 82% 82% 82% 83% 

Major applications 
overturned at appeal as % 
of all major decisions over 
preceding 2 years 

Less than 
10% 
(previously 
20%) 

10% 14% 6% 5% 7% 7% 4% 

Non-major applications 
determined within 8 
weeks (over preceding 2 
years) 

More than 
70% 
 

N/A - - - 77% 77% 79% 

Non-major applications 
overturned at appeal as % 
of all non-major decisions 
over preceding 2 years 

Less than 
10% 

N/A - - - <1% <1% <1% 

Determine all applications 
within 26 weeks or with an 
extension of time (per 
annum –Government 

100% 99% 93% 100
% 

100
% 

100
% 

100% 99% 

Page 140

https://new.middevon.gov.uk/planning/performance-standards/


MDDC Report [title] 
v 

 

planning guarantee) 

Building Regulations 
Applications examined 
within 3 weeks 

95% 72% 96% 72% 83% 100
% 

88% 96% 

Building Regulation Full 
Plan applications 
determined in 2 months 

95% 97% 96
% 

84% 88% 98% 91% 84% 

 
*Important note on application statistic reporting: The statistics for applications 
determined within 8/13 weeks reported above within 15/16 includes all applications 
and does not take into account any extensions of time agreed with the applicant or 
planning performance agreements (PPAs) that have been entered into. Government 
instructions to Councils over these performance targets remove reporting 
applications with extensions of time or PPAs from the targets as they are reported 
separately. Once these have been removed the percentage of major applications 
determined within 13 weeks compared with the target 60% for 15/16 shows that this 
performance target was met. For 16/17 and 17/18, the applications determined within 
8/13 weeks figure now include those where there has been an extension of time and 
indicate performance targets have been met.  

 
 
2.0 APPLICATION PROCESSING- DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT. 

 
2.1 As reported on previous occasions, the Government sets a range of additional 

performance targets for planning authorities in order to drive performance. Those for 
planning application decision making are used by the Government as indicators of 
performance in terms of both speed and quality of decision making. They are as 
follows: 

 
Speed:  

 Majors: More than 60% of major applications determined within 13 weeks 
(over 2 year period). Mid Devon performance on this for the 2 year period to 
the end of June 2017 was 83%. 

 Non majors: More than 70% of non-major applications determined within 8 
weeks (over 2 year period). Mid Devon performance on this for the 2 year 
period to the end of June 2017 was 79%. 

 
Quality: 

 Majors: Previous assessment round -Applications determined over a 2 year 
period, no more than 20% of decisions to be overturned at appeal. Current 
assessment period for the 2 years prior to the end of June 2017: no more 
than 10% of decisions to be overturned at appeal. The Mid Devon figure over 
this period was 4%. 

 Non majors: This new indicator of quality of decision making is measures over 
a 2 year assessment period to the end of June 2017: no more than 10% of 
decisions to be overturned at appeal. The Mid Devon figure over this period 
was less than 1%.  

 
Authorities not meeting these targets risk being designated as underperforming, 
resulting in the application of special measures.  

 
2.2 Application determination performance results for Qu 1 17/18 indicate that the 

national planning performance indicators continue to be met and exceeded by the 
service. However this does rely in part upon the agreement of extensions of time with 
the applicant. There is provision for such agreements in accordance with 
Government methodology on calculating performance.  

 

Page 141



MDDC Report [title] 
v 

 

2.3 The ‘planning guarantee’ of 100% of applications determined within 26 weeks was 
recorded at 99%. Extensions of time are secured which reduces the financial risk to 
the Council of fee return. Such extensions of time are normally sought in order to 
secure completion of S106 agreements.  
 

2.4 A restructure of the service has recently been undertaken in order to merge 
economic development, regeneration and planning related functions. The planning 
part of the service had been carrying vacancies within development management 
pending the restructure. Recruitment is near completion with appointments having 
been made to fill the vacant posts. New staff have either started or will do so shortly. 
By the end of October the development management part of the service should be 
fully staffed for the first time in over a year. Application performance has in the main 
met or exceeded targets during the period of staff vacancies due to the extensive 
efforts of existing staff. However discretionary services such as the duty planning 
officer and pre-application advice service have been reduced during this period to 
allow staff to prioritise statutory elements of the service. A return to full staffing will 
allow caseloads per officer to reduce back to more manageable levels and for a 
greater level of service development to take place.  

 
3.0 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT. 

 
3.1 Activity within the enforcement part of the planning service by quarter is as follows: 
 

 2015/16 2016/17   

Enforcement  Qu 1  Qu 
2 

Qu 
3 

Qu 
4 

Qu 
1 

Qu 
2 

Qu 
3 

Qu
4 

Qu
1 

New 
enforcement 
cases 
registered 

14 71 54 83 69 75 35 73 53 

Enforcement 
cases closed 

47 53 39 62 63 58 56 22 23 

Committee 
authorisations 
sought  

3 2 1 2 4 10 6 3 0 

Planning 
contravention 
notices served 

Availa
ble 
from  
Qu 2 

9 5 10 5 3 2 1 3 

Breach of 
condition 
notices served 

0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 

Enforcement 
notices served 

2 1 0 3 3 2 1 1 6 

 
 
The total number of open enforcement cases reported as at early June 2017 stood at 
226. At the time of writing this report (25th September 2017) this figure is now 160. 
This represents the number of alleged breaches of planning control being 
investigated at any one time. During 16/17 252 new enforcement cases were 
registered, whilst 199 were closed.  

 
3.2 When fully staffed, the planning enforcement team is 2.5 FTE. 16/17 saw significant 

challenges in sustaining staffing within the enforcement team with staffing dropping 
back to 1 FTE as a result of staff leaving the Council. Recruitment of replacement 

Page 142



MDDC Report [title] 
v 

 

Enforcement Officers was completed during this quarter and the team is now 
operating at 2.5 FTE.  

 
4.0 BUILDING CONTROL. 

 
4.1 Building Control performance in plan checking exceeded the local performance 

target, whilst that relating to the assessment of full plans applications was missed for 
this quarter. This drop in performance continues to reflect the process of setting up 
the Building Control Partnership project with North Devon Council.  
 

4.2 NMD Building Control, the partnership service with North Devon Council went live at 
the beginning of April 2017. Concerted efforts are being made to get on top of 
application validation and processing in order to meet performance expectations of 
the combined service. The service is now being operated out of Tiverton and South 
Molton.  

 
5.0 PLANNING POLICY – FORWARD PLANNING. 
 
5.1 The Forward Planning team continues to prepare for the Local Plan Review 

examination and associated tasks following the submission of the plan at the end of 
March 2017. An independent review of the Sustainability Assessment is currently 
being commissioned. No date has yet been set for the examination.  

 
5.2 Work also continues on the Greater Exeter Strategic Plan and a first stage of public 

consultation on the vision and scope of the plan was held between 27th February and 
10th April 2017. A call for sites was also undertaken in connection with this plan.  
Over the next few months, the strategic plan work will consider strategy options and 
growth areas with site assessments contributing to formulating proposed strategic 
allocations. A draft plan is due to be considered at committee meetings of Mid 
Devon, Exeter City, East Devon and Teignbridge Councils in the New Year before 
public consultation. 

 
 
Contact for Information:  Jenny Clifford, Head of Planning, Economy and 

Regeneration 
jclifford@middevon.gov.uk 01884 234346 
 

List of Background Papers:  PS1 and PS2 returns 
DCLG Planning performance and the planning 
guarantee –Government response to consultation. 
June 2013 
HM Treasury ‘Fixing the foundations – creating a more 
prosperous nation’ July 2015 
Improving Planning Performance: Criteria for 
Designation, DCLG November 2016 

 
Circulation of the Report:   Cllr Richard Chesterton 
     Members of Planning Committee  

Page 143

mailto:jclifford@middevon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 ENFORCEMENT LIST
	Enf 1
	Enf 2
	Enf 3 - Hillmoor

	7 THE PLANS LIST
	04.10.17
	PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA - 4th October 2017
	Applications of a non-delegated nature
	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT

	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT

	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT

	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT

	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT

	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT

	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT

	DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES
	MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS AND OBSERVATIONS
	REASON FOR APPROVAL OF PERMISSION/GRANT OF CONSENT




	8 MAJOR APPLICATIONS WITH NO DECISION
	9 APPLICATION 16/01830/FULL - SITING OF 1 MOBILE HOME, 2 MOTOR HOMES AND A COMPOST WC AT OAK MEADOW, SILVERTON (3-48-43)
	10 APPLICATION FOR A TREE PRESERVATION ORDER LAND AT NGR 306770/113041, CLAY LANE , UFFCULME (3-28-00)
	11 PLANNING PERFORMANCE

